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Market and Investment Performance Risks Our results of operations and financial condition are primarily dependent on the
value, composition and relative investment performance of our AUM, all of which are subject to fluctuation caused by factors
outside of our control. We derive our revenues primarily from investment management and related services we provide to
institutional and retail investors worldwide through our investment products. Our investment management fees typically are
calculated as a percentage of the market value of our AUM. Certain of our investment products are also subject to performance
fees, which vary based on a product’ s relative performance as compared to a benchmark index. As a result, our revenues are
dependent on the value, composition and investment performance of our AUM, all of which are subject to fluctuation caused by
factors outside of our control. Factors that could cause our AUM and revenue to decline include the following: @ Declines in
equity markets. Our AUM is concentrated in the U. S. and European equity markets. Equity securities may decline in value as a
result of many factors, including an issuer’ s actual or perceived financial condition and growth prospects, investor perception of
an industry or sector, changes in currency exchange rates, changes in regulations, inflation, labor disputes or shortages, supply
chain issues, natural disasters, and geopolitical and economic risks. Declines in the equity markets, or in the market segments
in which our investment products are concentrated, have in the past, and could in the future, cause our AUM to decrease. ®
Declines in fixed income markets. Fixed income investment products also constitute a large portion of our AUM. Fixed
income securities may decline in value as a result of various factors, principally increases in interest rates (partly due to
inflationary expectations), changes in currency exchange rates, changes in relative yield among instruments with different
maturities (including as a result of shifts in the U. S. treasury yield curve) , geopolitical and general economic risks, available
liquidity in the markets in which a security trades, an issuer’ s actual or perceived creditworthiness, or an issuer’ s ability to meet
its obligations. Declines in the fixed income markets, or in the market segments in which our investment products are
concentrated, have in the past, and could in the future, cause our AUM to decrease. ® Investment performance. Our investment
performance, along with achieving and maintaining superior distribution and client servtees— service , is critical to the success
of our business. Strong investment performance has historically stimulated sales of our investment products. Poor investment
performance as compared to third- party benchmarks or competitive products has in the past, and could in the future, lead to a
decrease in sales of investment products we manage and stimulate redemptions from existing products, generally lowering the
overall level of our AUM and reducing our management fees, and may have an adverse effect on our revenue and net income. In
addition, certain of our investment products are subject to performance fees that are based either on investment performance as
compared to an established benchmark index or on positive absolute return over a specified period of time. If our investment
products that are subject to performance fees underperform, our revenue, results of operations and financial condition may be
adversely affected. In addition, performance fees subject our revenue to increased volatility. No assurance can be given that past
or present investment performance in the investment products we manage is indicative of future performance. Our revenue and
profitability would be adversely affected by any reduction in our AUM as a result of redemptions and other withdrawals from
the funds and accounts we manage. Investors may reduce their investments in the funds and accounts we manage, or reduce
their investments generally, for many reasons, including: @ In response to adverse market conditions; @ To pursue other
investment opportunities; ® To reallocate investments to lower- fee strategies; ® To take profits from their investments; ® As a
result of poor investment performance of the funds and accounts we manage; ® As a result of the failure or negative
performance of investment products offered by competitors that could lead investors to lose confidence in similar investment
products we manage, irrespective of the investment performance of such products; ® As a consequence of damage to our
reputation; @ Due to portfolio risk characteristics, which could cause investors to move assets to other investment managers; or
e As aresult of changes to the investor’ s business model that could cause them to reduce their investments with us, such as
moving away from a sub- advised business model or exiting the mutual fund business. In addition, the loss of key personnel or
significant investment management professionals could reduce the attractiveness of our products to current and potential clients
and adversely affect our revenues and profitability. Volatility and disruption of the capital and credit markets, and adverse
changes in the global economy, may significantly affect our results of operations and may put pressure on our financial results.
The capital and credit markets may, from time to time, experience volatility and disruption worldwide. Declines in global
financial market conditions have yin the past, and could in the future, result in significant decreases in our AUM, revenues and
income. Such declines have had, and may in the future have, an adverse impact on our results of operations. We may need to
modify our business, strategies or operations, and we may be subject to additional constraints or costs in order to compete in a
changing global economy and business environment. Disruptions in the markets, to market participants and to the operations of
third parties whose functions are integral to our ETF platforms may adversely affect the prices at which ETFs trade, particularly
during periods of market volatility. The trading price of an ETF’ s shares or units fluctuates continuously throughout trading
hours. While an ETF’ s creation / redemption feature and the arbitrage mechanism are designed to make it more likely that the
ETF’ s shares or units normally will trade at prices close to the ETF’ s net asset value (“ NAV ), exchange prices may deviate
significantly from the NAV. ETF market prices are subject to numerous potential risks, including: e Significant market
volatility; @ Imbalances in supply and demand; e Trading halts invoked by a stock exchange; and e Inability or unwillingness
of market markers, authorized participants, settlement systems or other market participants to perform functions necessary for
an ETF’ s arbitrage mechanism to function effectively. If market events lead to instances where an ETF trades at prices that
deviate significantly from the ETF’ s NAV or indicative value, or trading halts are invoked by the relevant stock exchange or



market, investors may lose confidence in ETF products and sell their holdings, which may cause the ETF’ s AUM, revenue and
earnings to decline. Illiquidity in certain securities in which we invest may negatively impact the financial condition of our
investment products and may impede our ability to effect redemptions. Some of our funds or mandates invest in certain securities
or other assets in which the secondary trading market is illiquid or does not exist. Illiquidity may occur with respect to the
securities of a specific issuer, based on industry, sector or geographic region, or with respect to an asset class or an investment
type. An illiquid trading market may increase market volatility and may make it difficult to sell investments promptly without
suffering a loss. This may have an adverse impact on the investment performance of such funds and mandates, and on our
AUM, revenues and results of operations. Investors in certain funds we manage have contractual terms that provide for a shorter
notice period for redemptions or withdrawals than the time period during which these funds may be able to sell underlying
investments within the fund. This liquidity mismatch may be exacerbated during periods of market illiquidity and, in
circumstances in which there are high levels of investor redemptions, it may be necessary for us to impose restrictions on
redeeming investors or suspend redemptions. Such actions could increase the risk of legal claims by investors and regulatory
investigations and / or fines and may adversely affect our reputation. Changes in the value of our seeded investment products
could adversely affect our earnings and financial condition. We have a significant seed portfolio. Periodically, we add new
investment strategies to our investment product offering and provide the initial cash investment, or seeding, to facilitate the
launch of the new product. We may also provide substantial supplemental capital to an existing investment product to accelerate
the growth of a strategy and attract outside investment in the product. A decline in the valuation of these seeded investments
could negatively impact our earnings and financial condition. We could be adversely impacted by changes in assumptions used
to calculate pension assets and liabilities. We provide retirement benefits for our current and former employees in the UK
through the Janus Henderson Group Pension Scheme (“ UK Pension Scheme ). The UK Pension Scheme operates a number of
defined benefit sections, which closed to new entrants on November 15, 1999, and a money purchase section. As of December
31,2023-2024 , the UK Pension Scheme had a net pension asset of $ 85-68 . 3 million. Our funding obligations for the UK
Pension Scheme may be adversely affected by many factors, including poorer than expected long- term return on plan assets;
longer life expectancy; changes in actuarial assumptions by reference to which our contributions are assessed, such as changes to
assumptions on interest rates and inflation; changes to the regulatory regime for funding defined benefit pension schemes in the
UK; and other factors. We may also be subject to obligations to contribute funds or take other action imposed by the Pension
Protection Fund in connection with the UK Pension Scheme. If we were required to increase our contributions in the future to
cover any increased funding shortfall, levy by the Pension Protection Fund and / or expenses in the UK Pension Scheme, our
results and financial condition could be adversely affected. The global scope of our business subjects us to currency exchange
rate risk that may adversely impact revenue and income. We generate a substantial portion of our revenue in Great British
pounds (“ GBP ), enre-euros (“ EUR ) and Australian dollars (“ AUD ™). As a result, we are subject to foreign currency
exchange risk relative to the U. S. dollar (“ USD ”), our financial reporting currency, through our non- U. S. operations,
including through our exposure to non- USD income, expenses, assets and liabilities of our overseas subsidiaries, as well as net
assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than USD. Fluctuations in the exchange rates to the USD have adversely
affected, and may continue to adversely affect, our financial results from one period to the next. In addition, there is risk
associated with the foreign exchange revaluation of balances held by certain of our subsidiaries for which the local currency is
different from our functional currency. We could be impacted by counterparty or client defaults. In periods of significant market
volatility, the deteriorating financial condition of one financial institution may materially and adversely impact the performance
of others. We, and the funds and accounts we manage, have exposure to many different counterparties, and routinely execute
transactions with counterparties across the financial industry. As a result, we and our managed funds and accounts may be
exposed to credit, operational or other riskrisks in the event of a default by a counterparty or client, or in the event of other
unrelated systemic market failures. Business and Strategic Risks We operate in a highly competitive environment, and revenue
from fees may be reduced. The investment management business is highly competitive. In recent years, established firms and
new entrants to the asset management industry have expanded their application of technology, including the use of robo advisers
and artificial intelligence (“ Al ), to provide services to clients. Our traditional fee structures may be subject to downward
pressure due to these factors. Moreover, the asset management industry is facing transformative pressures and trends from a
variety of different sources, including a trend toward lower fee investment products, as evidenced by the movement toward
passively managed mutual funds and the growth of lower cost funds such as exchange- traded, smart beta and quantitative
funds. Fees for actively managed investment products may continue to come under increased pressure if such products fail to
outperform returns for comparable passively managed products or as a consequence of regulatory intervention. Fee reductions
on existing or future new business, as well as changes in regulations pertaining to fees, could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition. Additionally, we compete with investment management companies on the basis of
investment performance, fees, diversity of products, distribution capability, scope and quality of services, reputation and the
ability to develop new investment products to meet the changing needs and preferences of investors. Failure to adequately
compete could adversely affect our AUM, results of operations and financial condition. Our success depends on our key
personnel, and our financial performance could be negatively affected by the loss of their services. The success of our business
is highly dependent on our ability to attract, retain and motivate highly skilled and often highly specialized technical, executive,
sales and investment management personnel. The market for qualified investment and sales professionals is extremely
competitive and is characterized by the frequent movement of portfolio managers, analysts and salespeople among different
firms. Any changes to management structure, shifts in corporate culture, changes to corporate governance authority, or
adjustments or reductions to compensation could affect our ability to retain key personnel and could result in legal claims. To
retain certain key personnel, we may be required to increase compensation to such individuals, resulting in additional expense.
Laws and regulations could impose restrictions on the amount of compensation paid by financial institutions , as well as the



processes for paying and deferring compensation, which could restrict our ability to compete effectively for qualified
professionals . In addition, technological advancements in our industry, including with respect to AI and machine
learning technologies, could result in increased demand and competition for qualified professionals with such skills and
technological knowledge . There can be no assurance that we will be successful in finding, attracting and retaining qualified
individuals, and the departure of key personnel, particularly those personnel responsible for managing client funds that account
for a high proportion of our revenue, could cause us to lose clients, which could have a material adverse effect on our AUM,
results of operations and financial condition. Effective succession planning is also important to our long- term success. Failure to
ensure effective transfer of knowledge and smooth transitions involving key employees could hinder our strategic planning and
execution. We are dependent upon third- party distribution channels to access clients and potential clients. Our ability to market
and distribute our investment products is significantly dependent on access to the client base of financial intermediaries, such as
insurance companies, defined contribution plan administrators, securities firms, broker- dealers, financial advisors, multi-
managers, banks and other distribution channels. These companies generally offer their clients’ various investment products in
addition to, and competitive with, products offered by us. In addition, our existing relationships with third- party distributors and
access to new distributors could be adversely affected by recent consolidation within the financial services industry.
Consolidation may result in increased distribution costs, a reduction in the number of third parties distributing our investment
products or increased competition to access third- party distribution channels. Moreover, fiduciary regulations have led to
significant shifts in distributors’ business models and more limited product offerings, and additional fiduciary or other
regulations could lead to further changes, potentially resulting in reduced distribution of certain of our products. Our inability to
access clients through third- party distribution channels could adversely affect our business prospects, AUM, results of
operations and financial condition. The global scope of our business subjects us to market- specific political, economic and other
risks that may adversely impact our revenue and income generated overseas. Our global portfolios and revenue derived from
managing these portfolios are subject to significant risks of loss as a result of political, economic and diplomatic developments;
currency fluctuations; social instability; global hostilities; changes in governmental policies, regulation and enforcement;
expropriation; nationalization; asset confiscation; and changes in legislation related to ownership of non- U. S. securities.
Individual financial, equity, debt and commodity markets may be adversely affected by financial, economic, political, electoral,
diplomatic or other instabilities that are particular to the country or region in which a market is located, and such events may
also adversely impact other markets. Global economic conditions also affect the mix, market values and levels of our AUM and
are difficult to predict. Political, economic and environmental events in any country or region could result in significant declines
in equity and / or fixed income securities with exposure to such a country or region and, to the extent that we have a
concentration of AUM in such a country or region, could result in a material adverse effect on our AUM, results of operations
and financial condition. For example, the ongoing conflicts in Russta’s-invastonrof-Ukraine and the Middle East eenfliet
betweenIsrael-and-Hamas-have significantly impacted the global economy and financial markets and may continue to have an
adverse impact on our investment performance and flows in certain products. There is a risk that these conflicts, as well as any
future conflicts, may spread more broadly, increasing the potential adverse impact on our AUM, results of operations and
financial condition. We will continue to monitor any direct and indirect impacts of these circumstances on our business,
financial results and operations, although it is not possible to predict the broader consequences of these ongoing conflicts at this
time. In addition, international trading markets, particularly in some emerging market countries, are often smaller, less liquid,
less regulated and significantly more volatile than those in the U. S. Local regulatory environments may vary widely in terms of
scope, adequacy and sophistication. Moreover, regulators in non- U. S. jurisdictions could change their policies or laws in a
manner that might restrict or otherwise impede our ability to distribute or authorize products or maintain our authorizations in
their respective markets. Similarly, local distributors and their policies and practices, as well as financial viability, may also vary
widely or be inconsistent, less developed or less mature than other, more internationally focused distributors. As our business
grows in non- U. S. markets, any ongoing and future business, political, economic or social unrest affecting these markets may
have a negative impact on the long- term investment climate in these and other areas, and, as a result, our AUM and the revenue
and income we generate from these markets may be negatively affected. Our reputation is critical to the success of our business.
Harm to our reputation could reduce our AUM and impact sales, which could adversely affect our revenue and net income. We
believe that our brand name is well- received both in the asset management industry and with our clients, reflecting the fact that
our brand, like our business, is based in part on trust and confidence. If our reputation is harmed, existing clients may reduce
their investments or withdraw from funds we manage, or funds may terminate or reduce AUM under their management
agreements with us, which could reduce our AUM and negatively impact our revenue and profitability. As part of our business,
we are required to continuously manage actual and potential conflicts of interest, including situations where our services to a
particular client conflict, or are perceived to conflict, with the interests of another client or those of JHG or our employees. The
willingness of clients to enter into transactions in which such a conflict might arise may be affected if we fail, or appear to fail,
to deal appropriately with conflicts of interest. In addition, failure to appropriately manage potential, perceived or actual
conflicts could damage our reputation and give rise to litigation or regulatory enforcement actions. Our reputation could also be
damaged by factors such as: e Litigation; @ Regulatory action; ® Loss of key personnel; ® Operational failures; @
Underperformance of our investment products; ® Fraud, misconduct or mismanagement, theft, loss or misuse of client data by
our personnel or third parties; ® Failure to manage conflicts of interest or satisfy fiduciary responsibilities; and @ Negative
publicity or press speculation (whether or not any such allegations or claims are valid or ultimately disproved, dismissed or
withdrawn). Reputational harm may cause us to lose current clients and we may be unable to continue to attract new clients or
develop new business. If we fail to effectively address the underlying causes of any harm to our reputation, our financial results
and future business prospects would likely be adversely affected. The carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets on
our balance sheet could become impaired, which would adversely affect our results of operations. At December 31, 2623-2024 ,



our goodwill and intangible assets totaled $ 3-4 , 724023 . 6-7 million. The value of these assets may not be realized for a
variety of reasons, including significant redemptions, loss of clients, damage to brand name and unfavorable economic
conditions. We have recorded goodwill and intangible asset impairments in the past and could incur similar charges in the
future. Under U. S. GAAP, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment
annually or more often if an event or circumstance indicates that an impairment loss may have been incurred. Other intangible
assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight- line basis over their estimated useful lives and reviewed whenever there is an
indication of impairment. Should such reviews indicate impairment, a reduction of the carrying value of the intangible asset
could occur, resulting in a charge that may, in turn, adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Our
business depends on investment management agreements that are subject to termination, non- renewal or reductions in fees. We
derive revenue from investment management agreements with investment funds, institutional investors and other investors.
Whthrespeetto-These agreements generally provide investors or, in some cases, the independent directors of applicable
investment funds, with significant latitude to terminate such contracts, withdraw funds or liquidate funds, or to remove
Janus Henderson as a fund' s investment advisor (or equivalent). We also manage our U. S. mutual funds under
management agreements that with-b—S—mutual-funds;-these-agreements-may be terminated by either party with notice, or in the
event of an *“ assignment ” (as defined in the Investment Company Act), and must be approved and renewed annually by the
1ndependent members of each fund s board of dlrectors or trustees or its shareholders as requlred by law. {-n—add-rt-teﬁ—t-he—beafd

investors may choose to exercise such termination rights at any time. The {-n—add-rt-ten—t-he-annual review of investment
management agreements with U. S. mutual funds, as required by law, could result in a reduction in our advisory fee revenues.
The termination of, or failure to renew, one or more of these agreements could have a material adverse effect on our AUM,
results of operations and financial condition. Our expenses are subject to fluctuations that could materially affect our operating
results. Our results of operations are dependent on our level of expenses, which can vary significantly for many reasons,
including: e Changes in the level and scope of our operating expenses in response to market conditions or regulations; @
Variations in the level of total compensation expense due to changes in bonuses and stock- based awards, changes in employee
benefit costs due to regulatory or plan design changes, changes in our employee count and mix, competitive factors, market
performance and other factors; ® Expenses incurred to support distribution of our investment strategies and services, develop
new strategies and services, and enhance our technology, compliance and other infrastructure; ® Impairments of intangible
assets or goodwill; and e Impact of inflation and interest rate changes. Increases in the level of our expenses, or our inability to
reduce the level of expenses when necessary, could materially affect our operating results. We may engage in strategic
transactions that could pose risks to our business, financial condition and global operations. As part of our global business
strategy, we regularly consider, and have discussions with respect to, potential strategic transactions, including acquisitions,
dispositions, consolidations, joint ventures or similar transactions, some of which may be deemed material. There can be no
assurance that we will find suitable candidates for strategic transactions at acceptable prices or other terms, have sufficient
capital resources to accomplish our strategy or be successful in entering into agreements for strategic transactions. In-additton;
We have made acquisitions and divestitures in the past and may pursue similar transactions in the future. sueh-Such
transactions typically involve a number of risks and present financial, managerial and operational challenges, including: e
Difficulties in the integration of acquired businesses into our operations and control environment (including our risk
management policies and procedures); ® Assumed or unforeseen liabilities that arise in connection with the acquired businesses;
e Disputes with counterparties, including the possible failure of counterparties to satisfy any obligations to indemnify us against
liabilities arising from the acquired businesses; ® Adverse effects on our earnings if acquired intangible assets or goodwill
become impaired; and ® The possible need for us to increase our firm' s leverage or, if we issue equity securities to pay for
acquisitions, dilute the holdings of our existing shareholders. Acquisitions also pose the risk that any business we acquire may
lose customers, intermediaries or employees or could underperform snder—perfermrelative to growth expectations or expected
synergies from the acquired businesses. Additionally, the loss of investment personnel poses the risk that we may lose the AUM
we expected to manage, which could adversely affect our results of operations. Entries into definitive agreements for material
transactions typically are announced publicly even though completion of these transactions may remain subject to numerous
closing conditions, contingencies and approvals, and there is no assurance that any announced transaction will actually be
consummated. In addition, from time to time, we may enter into joint ventures or take minority stakes in companies in which we
do not have control. These investments may involve risks, including the risk that the controlling stakeholder or joint venture
partner may have business interests, strategies or goals that are inconsistent with ours. The business decisions or other actions or
omissions of the controlling stakeholder, joint venture partner or the entity 1tself may result in habrhty to us or harm to our
reputation, or adversely affect the value of our 1nvestment in the entity. ;

- Operatronal and Technology
Rrsks We could be subject to losses and reputatlonal harm if we, or our agents fall to properly safeguard sensitive and
confidential information against cyberattacks or other security breaches , or if our business processes are not sufficiently



resilient. We depend on the continued effectiveness of our information and cybersecurity policies, procedures and capabilities to
protect our computer and telecommunications systems and the data that resides in or is transmitted through such systems. As
part of our normal operations, we maintain and transmit confidential information about our clients and employees as well as
proprietary information relating to our business operations. We maintain a system of internal controls designed to secure and
protect such information. Nevertheless, all technology systems remain susceptible to unauthorized access and may be corrupted
by cyberattacks, computer viruses or other malicious software code. In addition, authorized persons could inadvertently or
intentionally misappropriate or release confidential or proprietary information. Any breach or other failure of our technology or
operational controls, including those of third parties with which we do business, or any failure to timely and effectively identify
and respond to a breach or failure, could result in the loss of valuable information, liability for stolen assets or information,
remediation costs to repair damage caused by the incident, additional costs to mitigate against future incidents and litigation
costs resulting from the incident. Our use of mobile and cloud technologies and Al applications could heighten these and other
operational risks, and any failure by the providers of these services to prevent cyberattacks could disrupt our operations and
result in misappropriation, corruption or loss of confidential or proprietary information. Moreover, any loss of confidential
customer identification information could harm our reputation, result in the termination of certain contracts by our existing
customers and subject us to liability under laws that protect confidential personal data, resulting in increased costs or loss of
revenue. Security breaches, including cyberattacks and phishing attacks, have become increasingly sophisticated. Cyberattacks
can originate from a variety of sources, including third parties affiliated with foreign governments, organized crime or terrorist
organizations. Third parties may also attempt to place individuals within our firm, or induce employees, clients or other users of
our systems, to disclose sensitive information or provide access to our data, and these types of risks may be difficult to detect or
prevent. Also, increasing use of Al may heighten these risks. There can be no assurance that our investments in precautions and
safeguards will protect our business from all attempted cyberattacks or other incidents. Recent well- publicized security
breaches at other companies have exposed failures to keep pace with the threats posed by cyberattackers and have led to
increased government and regulatory scrutiny, including investigations and enforcement actions, which could lead to increased
costs or fines or public censure. In addition, although we maintain insurance coverage that may, subject to terms and conditions,
cover certain aspects of cyber and information security risks, such insurance coverage may be insufficient to cover all losses,
such as litigation costs or financial losses that exceed our policy limits or are not covered under any of our current insurance
policies. Due to our interconnectivity with third- party vendors, advisors, central agents, exchanges, clearing organizations and
other financial institutions, we may be adversely affected if any of them are subject to a successful cyberattack or other
information security event, including those arising from the use of mobile technology, a third- party cloud environment or Al
applications. Certain software applications that we use in our business are licensed by, and supported, upgraded and maintained
by, third- party vendors. A suspension or termination of certain of these licenses or the related support, upgrades and
maintenance could cause temporary system delays or interruption that could adversely impact our business. Also, such third-
party applications may include confidential and proprietary data provided by vendors and by us. We may be subject to
indemnification costs and liability to third parties if we breach any confidentiality obligations regarding vendor data for losses
related to the data, or if data we provide is deemed to infringe upon the rights of others. Finally, cybersecurity, data privacy and
Al have become high priorities for regulators, and many jurisdictions are enacting laws and regulations in these areas. Our
failure to comply with these and other applicable requirements could result in regulatory investigations and penalties as well as
negative publicity, which could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Initiatives
to upgrade our information technology systems and business processes involve many risks, and our failure to execute
these upgrades successfully could have an adverse impact on our business. From time to time, we undertake significant
projects to upgrade our information technology systems and business processes intended to optimize our operational and
financial performance. Transitioning to these new or upgraded systems and processes may require significant capital
investments and personnel resources. These projects may be subject to cost overruns and delays, and the transition to
these new or upgraded systems and processes may cause disruptions in our daily business operations. There is also no
guarantee that we will realize the anticipated synergies and benefits related to these initiatives. Any material disruptions
in our information technology systems or business processes could have a material adverse effect on our business. We are
incorporating artificial intelligence into some of our business workflows and processes, and challenges with properly managing
its use could result in reputational harm, competitive harm and legal liability, and adversely affect our results of operations. We
have begun using Al and machine learning technologies to enhance certain workflows and processes used in our business, and
our research into and continued deployment of such capabilities remain ongoing. Al is still in its early stages, and the
introduction and incorporation of Al technologies may result in unintended consequences or other new or expanded risks and
liabilities. If the content, analyses or recommendations that Al applications assist in producing are, or are alleged to be,
deficient, inaccurate or biased, such as due to limitations in Al algorithms, insufficient or biased base data or flawed training
methodologies, our business, financial condition, results of operations and reputation may be adversely affected. Additionally,
Al technology is continuously evolving, and we may incur costs to adopt and deploy Al technologies that could become
obsolete earlier than expected, and there can be no assurance that we will realize the desired or anticipated benefits from Al.
Also, our competitors or other third parties may incorporate Al into their products and services more quickly or more
successfully than us, which could impair our ability to compete effectively and adversely affect our results of operations. The
use of Al applications to support business processes carries inherent risks related to data privacy and security, such as
unintended or inadvertent transmission of proprietary or sensitive information, including personal data. Al presents emerging
ethical issues, and we may be unsuccessful in identifying and resolving these issues before they arise. If our use of Al becomes
controversial, we may experience brand or reputational harm, competitive harm, or legal liability. There is uncertainty in the
legal and regulatory landscape for Al, which is not fully developed, and any laws, regulations or industry standards adopted in



response to the emergence of Al may be burdensome, could entail significant costs, and may restrict or impede our ability to
successfully develop, adopt and deploy Al technologies efficiently and effectively. Failure to maintain adequate controls and
risk management policies, the circumvention of controls and policies, or fraud, as well as failure to maintain adequate
infrastructure or failures in operational or risk management processes and systems could have an adverse effect on our AUM,
results of operations and financial condition. Although we have a comprehensive risk management process, there can be no
assurances that our controls, procedures, policies and systems will successfully identify and manage internal and external risks
to our business. For example, our employees, contractors or other third parties may deliberately seek to circumvent established
controls to commit fraud or act in ways that are inconsistent with our controls, policies and procedures. Any operational errors
or negligence by our employees, or others acting on our behalf, or weaknesses in the internal controls over those processes could
result in losses for us, and we may be required to compensate clients for losses suffered and / or regulatory fines. Persistent or
repeated incidents involving conflicts of interest, circumvention of policies and controls, fraud or insider trading could have a
materially adverse impact on our reputation and could lead to costly regulatory inquiries. Our business is also highly dependent
on the integrity, security and reliability of our information technology systems and infrastructure. If any of our critical systems
or infrastructure do not operate properly or are disabled, our ability to perform effective investment management on behalf of
our clients could be impaired. In addition, if we fail to maintain our information technology systems and an infrastructure
commensurate with the size, scope and technological requirements of our business, our productivity, growth and reputation
could be negatively affected, which could have an adverse impact on our AUM, results of operations and financial condition.
Insurance may not be available on a cost- effective basis to protect us from potential liabilities. We face the inherent risk of
liability and costs related to or arising from claims from clients, employees and other third parties; actions taken by regulatory
agencies; losses arising from fraud or other criminal activity; and costs and losses associated with cyber incidents. To help
protect against these and other potential liabilities, we have purchased insurance in amounts, and against risks, that we consider
appropriate, where such insurance is available at prices ywe deem reasonable. There can be no assurance, however, that a claim
or claims will be covered by insurance or, if covered, will not exceed coverage limits; that an insurer will meet its obligations
regarding coverage; or that insurance coverage will continue to be available on a cost- effective basis. Insurance costs are
impacted by market conditions and the risk profile of the insured, and may increase significantly over relatively short periods. In
addition, certain types of insurance coverage may not be available or may only be available at prohibitive cost. Renewals of
insurance policies may expose us to additional costs through higher premiums or the assumption of higher deductibles or co-
insurance liability. Our business may be vulnerable to failures of support systems and client service functions provided by third-
party vendors. Our client service capabilities as well as our ability to obtain prompt and accurate securities pricing information
and to process client transactions and reports are significantly dependent on communication and information systems and
services provided by third- party vendors. The ability to consistently and reliably obtain securities pricing information, process
client transactions , and provide reports and other client services to the shareholders of funds and other investment products we
manage is essential to our operations. Any delays, errors or inaccuracies in pricing information, processing client transactions ,
or providing reports, and any other inadequacies in other client service functions could impact client relationships, result in
financial losses and potentially give rise to regulatory actions and claims against us. We depend on third- party service providers
and other key vendors for various fund administration, accounting, custody, risk analytics, market data, market indices and
transfer agent roles, and other distribution and operational needs. If our third- party service providers or other key vendors fail to
fulfill their obligations, experience service interruptions, cease providing their services on short notice or otherwise provide
inadequate service, operational and regulatory problems could occur, including with respect to certain of our products, which
could result in losses, enforcement actions or reputational harm, and which could negatively impact our AUM, results of
operations and financial condition. Our inability to recover successfully, should we experience a disaster or other business
continuity problem, could cause material financial loss, regulatory actions, legal liability and / or reputational harm. Significant
portions of our business operations and those of our critical third- party service providers are concentrated in a few geographic
areas, including the UK, the U. S., Luxembourg and Australia. Should we, or any of our critical service providers, experience a
significant local or regional disaster or other event that disrupts business continuity, such as an earthquake, hurricane, tsunami ,
wildfire , terrorist attack, epidemic or pandemic, or other natural or man- made disaster, our continued success will depend in
part on the safety and availability of our personnel, our office facilities and the proper functioning of our technology, computer,
telecommunications and other systems and operations that are critical to our business. We have developed various backup
systems and contingency plans, but no assurance can be given that they will be adequate in all circumstances that could arise or
that material interruptions and disruptions will not occur. In addition, we will rely to varying degrees on outside vendors for
disaster recovery support, and no assurance can be given that these vendors will be able to perform in an adequate and timely
manner. If we, or any of our critical service providers, are unable to respond adequately to such an event in a timely manner, we
may be unable to continue our business operations, which could damage our reputation and lead to a loss of customers and have
an adverse effect on our AUM, revenue and net income. Climate change- related risks could adversely affect our business,
products, operations and clients, which may cause our AUM, revenue and earnings to decline. Our business and those of our
clients could be impacted by risks related to climate change. Climate change may present risk to us through changes in the
physical climate or from the process of transitioning to a lower- carbon economy. Climate- related physical risks arise from the
direct impacts of a changing climate over the short, medium and long term. Such risks may include extreme weather events,
rising sea levels , water searcity, and changes in temperature, which may damage infrastructure and facilities, as well as disrupt
connectivity or supply chains. Climate- related transition risks arise from our exposure to the transition to a lower- carbon
economy through policy, regulatory, technology and market changes. For instance, new regulations or guidance relating to
climate change, as well as the perspectives of stakeholders regarding climate change, may impact our investment products,
business processes and reputation, which could increase our costs of doing business. At times, regulations and market demands



regarding climate impact in one region may be in direct conflict with regulations and market demands in another region, which
may create risk that our activity in one region adversely impacts activity in the other. Climate- related physical and transition
risks could impact us both directly and indirectly through adverse impacts on our clients, including as a result of declines in
asset values, changes in client investing preferences, increased regulatory and compliance costs, and significant business
disruptions. Any of these risks may cause our AUM, revenue and earnings to decline. Negative changes in our credit ratings and
global market volatility may impair our ability to obtain financing and may increase our borrowing costs. Our ability to access
the capital markets, as well as our borrowing costs under our credit facility, depend-depends significantly on our credit ratings
and credit outlook. Changes in our credit ratings or credit outlook, which are determined by rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’ s (“S & P’ s ) and Moody’ s Investors Service, as well as global market volatility and interest rate increases, could cause
us to incur higher borrowing costs or to have greater difficulty in accessing the capital markets. In addition, volatility in global
financial and capital markets may also affect our ability to access the capital markets in a timely manner. Legal and Regulatory
Risks Regulatory and governmental examinations and / or...... negative impact on our financial results. We operate in an industry
that is subject to extensive, complex, overlapping and sometimes conflicting regulation and supervision around the world, and
any enforcement action or changes in the laws or regulations governing our business could adversely affect our AUM, results of
operations or financial condition. Like all investment management firms, our activities, products and services are highly
regulated in almost all markets in which we conduct business, including the U. S., the UK, Continental Europe, Australia,
Singapore and other international markets. Compliance with these regulations is costly and complex. Laws and regulations
applied at the international, national, state or provincial , and local levels generally grant governmental agencies and industry
self- regulatory authorities ~broad administrative discretion over our activities, including the power to limit or restrict our
business activities; conduct examinations, risk assessments, investigations and capital adequacy reviews; and impose remedial
programs to address perceived deficiencies. As a result of regulatory oversight, we could face requirements that negatively
impact the way in which we conduct business, increase compliance costs, impose additional capital requirements and / or
involve enforcement actions that could lead to sanctions, including the potential revocation of licenses to operate certain
businesses, the suspension or expulsion from a particular jurisdiction or market of any of our business organizations or key
personnel, or the imposition of increasingly substantial fines and censures on us or our employees. Judgments or findings of
wrongdoing by regulatory or governmental authorities, or in private litigation against us, could affect our reputation, increase our
costs of doing business and / or negatively impact our AUM and revenues, any of which could have an adverse impact on our
results of operations or financial condition. The regulatory environment in which we operate changes frequently and has seen a
significant increase in proposed and adopted regulations in recent years. Certain enacted provisions and proposals for new
regulation are potentially far- reaching and, depending upon their implementation, could increase the cost of offering investment
products and services in the markets where we conduct business and have material adverse effects on our business, results of
operations or financial condition. Additionally, challenges associated with interpreting regulations issued in numerous countries
in a globally consistent manner may add to such risks and impacts if regulators in different jurisdictions have inconsistent views
or provide only limited regulatory guidance. The aggressive pace, scope and complexity of regulatory change place additional
demands on resources and intreduees— introduce additional operational strains, which may impact our ability to fully and
timely satisfy those regulatory requirements or constrain our ability to pursue other strategic projects and business priorities. In
the U. S., government agencies like the SEC have proposed or adopted several new regulations that have increased our
regulatory burdens and related compliance costs. These include the Dodd- Frank Act, ERISA fiduciary obligations ane
regulationsrelated-to-private-funds-, cybersecurity risk management ;-shertening-the-seeurities-transaetion-settlementeyele-, the

investment company names rule, ESG disclosures for investment advisers and investment companies, outsourcing and fund
liquidity risk management programs, and swing pricing and-meney-marketfundreforms-. The SEC and other agencies and
institutions have taken action, and may continue to take further action, in response to global financial market developments,
internal political dynamics and perennial industry challenges, such as conflicts of interest. Further actions by regulatory
authorities could include new rules and requirements that may be applicable to us, the effect of which could have additional
adverse consequences to our business, results of operations or financial condition . In addition, there remains uncertainty
about the ultimate impact of recent changes to the leadership within the U. S. government under the current
administration, including changes to policy or priorities that could impact the current regulatory landscape . The EU has
promulgated or is considering various new or revised legislation pertaining to financial services firms, including investment
managers. On November 10, 2023, the EU published the final compromise text amending the Alternative Investment Funds
Managers Directive (“ AIFMD II ). Key changes include a new pan- European regime for loan origination funds, amendments
to delegation and depositary processes, and enhanced reporting and transparency requirements. Such regulatory changes may
have a direct impact on the revenue of our business should they result in structural or operational changes and may increase
operational or compliance costs. We do not believe implementation of these requirements will fundamentally change the asset
management industry or cause us to reconsider our fundamental strategy, but certain provisions may require us to change or
impose new limitations on the manner in which we conduct business and may result in increased fee and margin pressure from
clients. The full extent of the impact on us of any laws, regulations or initiatives that may be proposed, and regulatory reform
initiatives and enforcement agendas pursued by regulators such as the SEC and the DOL (which have separately expressed
support for investor protection initiatives that may impact how and to whom certain investment products can be distributed in
the U. S.), is impossible to determine. Recent changes have imposed, and may continue to impose, new compliance costs and /
or capital requirements or impact us in other ways that could have a material adverse impact on our business, results of
operations or financial condition. Moreover, certain legal or regulatory changes could require us to modify our strategies,
businesses or operations, and these changes may result in the incurrence of other new constraints or costs, including the
investment of significant management time and resources in order to satisfy new regulatory requirements or to compete in a



changed business environment. Regulatory and governmental examinations and / or investigations,litigation and the legal risks
associated with our business could adversely impact our AUM, increase costs and negatively impact our profitability and / or our
future financial results.From time to time,we receive and respond to regulatory and governmental requests for documents or
other information,subpoenas,examinations and investigations in connection with our business activities.In addition,from time to
time,we are named as a party in litigation.Even if claims made against us are without merit,litigation typically is an expensive
process.Risks associated with legal liability often are difficult to assess or quantify and their existence and magnitude can
remain unknown for significant periods of time.Among other things,such matters may result in substantial fines,censure,legal
damages,suspension of personnel,revocation of licenses and reputational damage,which may reduce our sales and increase
redemptions.Eventual exposures from and expenses incurred relating to any examinations,investigations,litigation and / or
settlements could adversely impact our AUM, increase costs and / or negatively impact our profitability and financial
results.Allegations,findings or judgments of wrongdoing by regulatory or governmental authorities or in litigation against us,or
settlements with respect thereto,could affect our reputation,increase our costs of doing business and / or negatively impact our
revenues,any of which could have a material negative impact on our financial results. Regulators may impose increased capital
requirements on our subsidiaries, which could negatively impact our ability to return capital or pay dividends to our shareholders
and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Regulators typically have broad discretion to impose
increased regulatory capital requirements on the regulated entities within their jurisdiction. It is possible that the regulatory
capital requirements that currently apply to our subsidiaries could be increased. The imposition of increased regulatory capital
requirements could negatively impact our ability to return capital or pay dividends to shareholders, restrict our ability to make
future acquisitions or, should we be required to raise additional capital, negatively impact our results of operations and financial
condition. Failure to comply with client contractual requirements and / or investment guidelines could negatively impact our
AUM, results of operations and financial condition. Many of the investment management agreements under which we manage
assets or provide services specify investment guidelines or requirements that we are required to observe. Laws and regulations
also impose similar requirements for certain accounts. A failure to follow these guidelines or requirements, or implement them
appropriately, could result in damage to our reputation or in clients seeking to recover losses, withdrawing their assets or
terminating their contracts, any one of which could cause revenues and profitability to decline. In addition, a breach of these
investment guidelines or requirements could result in regulatory investigation, censure and / or fines —Fhe-exit-ofthe- HK—from




. We may be subject to claims of lack of suitability. If our clients suffer losses on funds or investment mandates we manage,
they may seek compensation from us on the basis of allegations that these funds or mandates were not suitable for them or that
the fund prospectuses or other marketing materials contained material errors or were misleading. Despite the controls relating to
disclosure in fund prospectuses and marketing materials, it is possible that such action may be successful, which in turn could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Any claim for lack of suitability could also result in
a regulatory investigation, censure or fines, and may damage our reputation. Changes to tax laws could adversely affect us. The
determination of our provision for income taxes requires judgment, the use of estimates and the interpretation and application of
complex tax laws. Our provision for income taxes reflects a combination of income earned and taxed in the various U. S. federal
and state, UK and other jurisdictions. Jurisdictional tax law changes, increases or decreases in permanent differences between
book and tax items, accruals or adjustments of accruals for unrecognized tax benefits or valuation allowances, and any changes
in our mix of earnings from these taxing jurisdictions affect the overall effective tax rate and the amount of taxes payable. Our
tax affairs will, in the ordinary course of business, be reviewed by tax authorities, which may disagree with certain positions that
we have taken or will take in the future and assess additional taxes. We regularly assess the likely outcomes of such tax
inquiries, investigations or audits in order to determine the appropriateness of their respective tax provisions. However, there
can be no assurance that we will accurately predict the outcomes of these inquiries, investigations or audits, and the actual
outcomes of these inquiries, investigations or audits could have a material impact on our financial results. In addition, changes to
tax laws or income tax rates could materially impact our tax provision, cash tax liability, deferred income tax balances and
effective tax rate. Jersey Company Risks Our ordinary shares, which we refer to as our common stock, are governed by the laws
of Jersey, Channel Islands, which may not provide the level of legal certainty and transparency afforded by incorporation ina U.
S. state. We are organized under the laws of Jersey, Channel Islands, a British crown dependency that is an island located off the
coast of Normandy, France. Jersey is not a member of the EU. Jersey, Channel Islands, legislation regarding companies is
largely based on English corporate law principles. However, there can be no assurance that the laws of Jersey, Channel Islands,
will not change in the future or that it will serve to protect investors in a similar fashion afforded under corporate law principles
in the U. S., which could adversely affect the rights of investors. U. S. shareholders may not be able to enforce civil liabilities
against us. Certain of our directors and executive officers are not residents of the U. S. A substantial portion of the assets of such
persons are located outside the U. S. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the U. S.
upon such persons. Judgments of U. S. courts may not be directly enforceable outside of the U. S., and the enforcement of
judgments of U. S. courts outside of the U. S. may be subject to limitations. Investors may also have difficulties pursuing an
original action brought in a court in a jurisdiction outside the U. S. for liabilities under the securities laws of the U. S. ITEM 1B.
UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY Risk Management and Strategy We-To
effectively manage the cyber risk posed to our organization and to remain within our risk appetite, we maintain a
cybersecurity strategy and risk management program to identify, assess and manage material risks from cybersecurity threats
and-to-with the aim of preteetprotecting the confidentiality, integrity and availability of our critical systems and information.
Our cybersecurity program takes a cyberthreat and risk- based approach and was developed to align with ISO 27001, the-an
international standard for information security, and we also assess ourselves against the National Institute of Standards and
Technology (“ NIST ”) Cybersecurity frameweorkFramework . In addition, our cybersecurity risk management program aligns
with ISO 31000, the international standard for risk management. The foregoing does not imply that we meet any-all technical
standards, specifications or requirements, or that we have been certified on these requirements in any respect, only that we have
used these industry standards as guides when designing our cybersecurity and risk management programs. Our cybersecurity
risk management program is integrated into our overall enterprise risk management program and shares common
methodologies, reporting channels and governance processes that apply across our enterprise risk management program to other
legal, compliance, strategic, operational and financial risk areas. For example, cybersecurity threats are subject to our firm- wide
Risk Events Policy, which sets forth procedures for the identification, escalation, recording, investigation and approval of
handling of such risk events. Our cybersecurity risk management program includes a cybersecurity incident response plan.
Major incidents emanating from cybersecurity threats are netified-communicated to our Operational Risk team through our
enterprise risk management system and escalated in accordance with our incident response plan. In addition, cybersecurity has
been designated as a principal risk by the Risk Committee of our Board of Directors (the ““ Risk Committee ), which requires
regular monitoring and reporting. We identify material risks from cybersecurity threats through various sources, including, but
not limited to, controls testing, compliance testing of our security standards, independent penetration testing, open- source
threat intelligence feeds , and lessons learned and assessments against control frameworks. These threats are assessed by
applying our Risk and Control Self- Assessment (“ RCSA ), H-information technology risk ;-and cybersecurity risk
management processes, each of which we review regularly. Based on the RCSA, risks from cybersecurity threats that exceed
established risk tolerance thresholds are recorded and incorporated into our reporting to the Risk Committee and senior
management as described in more detail below. We also engage third- party assessors, consultants and auditors to assist in the
administration, assessment and improvement of our cybersecurity risk management program. To help bring risks from
cybersecurity threats within an acceptable range-risk appetite and tolerance level , we address-created a cybersecurity
strategy and associated program of necessary activities. The program mitigates the risks through the effective design and
implementation of compensating controls or remediation actions , commensurate with the assessed risk level from such threats




tetdentrespense-plan-. With respect to third- party service providers with access to our information systems, assets or data, our
security policies , standards and procedures are designed so that periodic due diligence is conducted as appropriate on the
cybersecurity controls maintained by such third parties and-. The aim is to ensure that-the Cempany-third- party service
provider has adequate and appropriate cyberqeeurrty measures 1n place commensurate wrt-h—fespeet—to the rlsk therr access
to our 1nformat10n %yqtem% assets or data presents VY ve-rotta y 6 y a

Committee to assist the Board in its overqrght of risk. As part of'i 1t§ responsibilities, the Risk Commrttee oversees management
s implementation of our cybersecurity and risk management program. The Risk Committee receives regular reports from our
Information Security leadership on our cybersecurity risks, including key status updates, security issues, current and future
priorities, independent assurance, threat landscape and audit findings. The Risk Committee regularly report% to the full Board
regardmg 1t§ act1v1t1e§ 1nclud1ng thoqe related to Cybereecurrty overslght he ; v 6 esenta

-Be&fd—s—eeﬁt—mtnﬁg—edueat—teﬁ-pfegfam—Our lnformatron Securrty team, 1nclud1ng our lnformat1on Securrty leaderthp, ha%

primary responsibility for identifying, assessing and managing material risks to the Company from cybersecurity threats,
including our overall cybersecurity risk management program and supervision of our internal cybersecurity personnel and our
external cybersecurity consultants . Qur Chief Information Security Officer (“ CISO ”) has over 20 years of information
security / cybersecurity experience, working in a variety of roles within PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, as the Director of
Cyber Operations for Nationwide Building Society, the CISO at The Crown Estate and the CISO at Insight Investment .
Our Information Security team supervises efforts to prevent, detect, mitigate and remediate cybersecurity risks and incidents
through various means, including receiving regular briefings from internal security personnel; threat intelligence and other
information obtained from governmental, public or private sources, including external consultants engaged by us; and alerts and
reports produced by security tools deployed in the IT environment. Our Information Security leadership regularly briefs our
Global Chief Operating Officer and Chief Technology Officer on cybersecurity issues, the scope of which is similar to the
information presented by the Information Security leadership to the Risk Committee as described above. Major risks from
cybersecurity threats determined following application of an RCSA are escalated by our Information Security leadership to the
Risk Committee, Global Chief Operating Officer, Chief Technology Officer and other senior management. ITEM 2.
PROPERTIES We have 23-27 offices across the UK, Europe, North America, Asia and Australia. Our corporate headquarters is
located in London, where it occupies approximately 116, 000 square feet on a long- term lease that expires in 2028. We also
have significant operations in Denver, Colorado, occupying approximately 161, 000 square feet of office space, and its lease
expires in 2025-- 2032 . The remaining 2425 offices total approximately 69-103 , 000 square feet and are all leased. In the
opinion of management, the space and equipment we lease is adequate for existing operating needs. See Note 9 — Leases, in
Part I1, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for further information on our property leases. ITEM 3. LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS The information set forth in response to Item 103 of Regulation S- K under *“ Legal Proceedings ” is
incorporated by reference from Part I1, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, Note 19 — Commitments and
Contingencies: Litigation and Other Regulatory Matters. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES Not applicable. PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES JHG Common Stock Our common stock is traded on the NYSE (symbol: JHG). On
F ebruary 2325, %9%4—2025 there were approxrmately 4, 659—382 holders of record of our common stock. Oﬂ—Nevember—l—

D1V1dend§ On January 3—1—30 %9%4—2025 our Board of Drrectors declared a Caih drvrdend of $ 0. 39 per share. The quarterly
dividend will be paid on February 28-27 , 2024-2025 , to shareholders of record at the close of business February 42-11 , 2824
2025 . Performance Graph The following graph illustrates the cumulative total shareholder return of our common stock over the
five- year period ending December 29-31 , 2823-2024 , the last trading day of 2023-2024 , and compares it to the cumulative
total return on the S & P 500 Index (1) and to the S & P U. S. BMI Asset Management & Custody Banks Index. (2) The S & P
500 Index consists of 500 stocks chosen for market size, liquidity and industry group representation and is one of the most
widely used benchmarks of U. S. equity performance. The S & P U. S. BMI Asset Management & Custody Banks Index is a
market- value weighted index of 40 asset management companies. The comparison assumes a $ 100 investment on December
31,2648-2019 , in our common stock and in each of the foregoing indices, and assumes reinvestment of dividends, if any. This
data is not intended to forecast future performance of our common stock. (1) STANDARD & POOR’ S ®, S & P ® and S & P
500 ® are registered trademarks of Standard & Poor’ s Financial Services LLC. (2) As of December 31, 2623-2024 , the S & P
U. S. BMI Asset Management & Custody Banks Index comprised the following companies: Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.;
AlTr Global lnc Amerlprr%e F 1nanc1al lnc ; Ares Management Corporation; Artisan Partners Asset Management Inc.;

Ass e~ Assoets apita re--BlackRock, Inc.; Blackstone Inc.; Blue Owl Caprtal Inc.;

Brrdge lnveatment Group Hold1ng§ lnc Bﬂght—Sphere—I-nves&neﬁt—Gfeup—I-ne—Cohen & Steers, Inc.; Dramond Hill lnveatment
Group, Inc.; DigitalBridge Group, Inc.; Ellington Credit Company; Federated Hermes, Inc.; F ranklrn Resources, Inc.;

Galaxy Digital Holdings Ltd.; GCM Grosvenor Inc.; GQG Partners Inc —Gfeweﬂefeapﬁal—Maﬁagemeﬁt—IrP— Hamilton

Lane Incorporated; Heritage Global Inc.; Invesco Ltd.; Janus Henderson Group plc; KKR & Co. Inc.; Northern Trust




Corporation; P10, Inc.; SEI Investments Company; Silvercrest Asset Management Group Inc.; State Street Corporation;
StepStone Group £P-Ine. ; T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.; The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation; The Carlyle Group Inc.;
TPG Inc.; Victory Capital Holdings, Inc.; Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.; WisdomTree, Inc. (3) Data source: S & P Global
Market Intelligence. Common Stock Purchases — Corporate Buyback Program On October 31, 2023, our Board of Directors
approved the 2023 Corporate Buyback Program pursuant to which we are-were authorized to repurchase up to $ 150. 0 million
of our common stock on the NYSE at any time prior to the date of our 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders , which
was held on May 1, 2024 . We-eommeneed-During 2024, we repurehases-repurchased 2, 876, 189 shares of common stock
for $ 88. 2 million under the 2023 Corporate Buyback Program i#nNevember-. On May 1, 2623-2024 ., and-our Board of
Directors approved the 2024 Corporate Buyback Program pursuant to which we are authorized to repurchased-—-
repurchase 2;-349;:-876-shares-up to $ 150. 0 million of our common stock fer-, and on October 30, 2024, our Board of
Directors approved an incremental share buyback authorization to repurchase up to an additional $ 6+-50 . 9-0 million
during-the-of our common stock at any time prior to three—- the months-ended-date of our 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , cumulative shares repurchased under the 2024 Corporate Buyback
Program were 3, 159, 199 shares for $ 120 . 0 million. Common Stock Purchases — Share Plan Purchases Some of our
executives and employees obtain rights to receive our common stock as part of their remuneration arrangements and employee
entitlements. We satisfy these entitlements by transferring shares of existing common stock that we repurchase on- market for
this purpose (“ Share Plan Repurchases 7). Fhe-These repurchases are in addition to the repurchases under the Corporate
Buyback Program discussed above. On October 31, 2023, our Board of Directors separately-approved the repurchase of up to
4 million additional shares of common stock for the purpose of making grants to executives and employees at any time prior to
the date of our 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, which was held on May 1, 2024 . During the-feurth-guarter
2623-2024 , we didnetrepurchased 2, 268, 376 shares of common stock for $ 70. 0 million. On May 1, 2024, our Board of
Directors also approved the purehase-repurchase of up to S million additional shares of common stock to make grants to
executives and employees at any time prior to the date of our 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. As of
December 31, 2024, cumulative shares related-to-remunerationrarrangementsrepurchased under the 2024 Share Plan
Repurchases were 250, 001 shares or-for employee-entittements-$ 8. 6 million . The following table summarizes our common
stock repurchases by month during the three months ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Total number of Approximate U. S.
dollar Total shares purchased value of shares that may number of Average as part of yet be purchased shares price paid publicly
announced under the programs Period purchased per share programs (end of month, in millions) October 1, 2623-2024 , through
October 31, 2623-2024 —416, 768 $ 39. 45 416, 768 S November 1, 20623-2024 , through November 30, 2623-2024 +
393 , 487 44 30358225 371-28 393 , 487 303,-582-$ December 1, 2023-2024 | through December 31, 2023-2024 440, 471
43. 69 440, 471 $ Total |1, 6+6-250 , 28828726 $ 42 . 3647 1, 616250 , 288-$TFetal2-319,-876-$26-726 682,319,870
ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ] ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS Business Overview We are an independent global asset manager, specializing in active
investment across all major asset classes. We actively manage a broad range of investment products for institutional and retail
investors across four capabilities: Equities, Fixed Income, Multi- Asset and Alternatives. Our strategy revolves around three
strategic pillars: Protect & Grow, Amplify, and Diversify, emphasizing relentless focus and disciplined execution in our core
business for future success as a global active asset manager. Our strategy aims to foster sustained organic growth while also
capitalizing on opportunistic inorganic growth opportunities to generate value for all of our stakeholders. We serve a diverse
clientele worldwide, comprising intermediaries, institutional investors and self- directed clients. To cater to regional needs
effectively, we maintain local presence across most markets and provide investment materials tailored to local customs,
preferences and languages supported by our global distribution team. Segment Considerations We are a global asset manager
and manage a range of investment products, operating across various product lines, distribution channels and geographic
regions. However, information is reported to the chief operating decision- maker, our Chief Executive Officer (“ CEO ), on an
aggregated basis. Strategic and financial management decisions are determined centrally by our CEO and, on this basis, we
operate as a single- segment investment management business. Revenue Revenue primarily consists of management fees and
performance fees. Management fees are generally based on a percentage of the market value of our AUM and are calculated
using either the daily, month- end or quarter- end average asset balance in accordance with contractual agreements.
Accordingly, fluctuations in the financial markets have a direct effect on our operating results. Additionally, our AUM may
outperform or underperform the financial markets and, therefore, may fluctuate in varying degrees from that of the general
market. Performance fees are specified in certain fund and client contracts, and are based on investment performance either on
an absolute basis or compared to an established index over a specified period of time. These fees are often subject to an HWM.
Performance fees are recognized at the end of the contractual period (typically monthly, quarterly or annually) if the stated
performance criteria are achieved. Certain fund contracts allow for negative performance fees where there is underperformance
against the relevant index. 2623-2024 SUMMARY 2623-2024 Financial Highlights e Solid long- term investment
performance, with 668-65 %, 69-72 % , 55 % and H-73 % of our AUM outperforming benchmarks on a one-, three-, five- and
10- year basis, respectively, as of December 31, 2623-2024 . ¢ AUM increased to $ 334-378 . 9-7 billion, up 3713 % from the
year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , primarily due to positive market performance. ® Net eutflows-inflows for the year ended
December 31, 2023-2024 , were $ 2. 4 billion, compared to $ (0. 7 ) biien-eempared-te-$36-8-billion of net outflows 5
e*el-ud-rﬁg—l-n’eeeh—for the year ended December 31 %92—2—2023 —Refer—te—Nete%—Bispesﬁtens—rn—Paﬁ—H—HeﬂH}—Fmaﬁﬁa%
atements-an o oth es nteeh-. @ 2023-2024 diluted carnings per share
was $ 2. -3—7’—56 or$23. 63—53 on an adju%ted basl% Refer to the Non GAAP F1nanc1al Measures section for information on
adjusted non- GAAP figures. ® Strong balance sheet and cash generation, with $ 1. 2 billion in cash and cash equivalents and $
441+-694 . 6 million of cash provided by operating activities in the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . ® During the year




ended December 31, 2623-2024 , the Board of Directors declared and paid dividends of § 1. 56 per share. ® During the year
ended December 31, 2023-2024 , we acquired 2-6 , 3+9-035 | 876-388 shares of our common stock for $ 6+-208 . 9-2 million as
part of the share buyback program. Financial Summary Results are reported on a U. S. GAAP basis. Adjusted non- GAAP
figures are presented in the Non- GAAP Financial Measures section. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , was
$ 2,464+473 . 82 million, a-an deerease-increase of $ +64+-371 . 84 million, or 18 5% ¥, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2622-2023 . The key drtver-drivers of the deerease-increase was-were : ® A—deelire-An increase of $ 99-257 . 3
6 million in management fees primarily due to the impact of tewer-higher average AUM . ® An increase of $ 65. 3 million in
performance fees due to an improvement in the performance of U. S. mutual funds, SICAVs and absolute return funds
and other funds . Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , were $ 1, 648827 . +-5 million, &
deeline-an increase of $ 95-209 . 74 million, or 13 £6-% ¥, compared to operating expenses for the year ended December 31,
2622-2023 . Key drivers of the deerease-increase include the following: ® A-An deerease-increase of $ 42-65 . 4-0 million in
dlStl‘lbuthH expenses prlmdnly due to -}ewer—hlgher dveras_e AUM .0 A—An deerease-increase of $ 35-122 . 8 million in

st G mithon-temployee compensation and benefits primarily due
to -}eweiehlgher varlable compensdtlon eha-fges—expenses Opemtmo income for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , was
$ 483-645 . 7 million, a-an deerease-increase of $ 6-162 . +-0 million, or 33 % ¥, compared to the year ended December 31,
2622-2023 . Our operating margin was 26. 1 % in 2024 compared to 23. 0 % in 2023 eompared-to22-2-%n2622-. Net income
attributable to JHG for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , was $ 392-408 . 8-9 million, an increase of § +3-16 . 6-9
million, or 54 %, compared to the year ended December 31, 26222023 . In addition to the aforementioned factors affecting
revenue and operating expenses, key drivers of the inerease-variance 1nc1ude the followmo ° A fdvomble mov ement of b 156
27 . 74 million in investment gains (losses), net ;-part 3 5 bttab

fe—ﬁeﬂeeﬁtfeng—rr&efesPs—m%@%—eefma&fed-te%@Q—Z— MO\ ements in inv estment gains (losses netaﬁd—ﬂet—}ess—&neeﬂ&e}
attributable-to-noneontrothnginterests-are primarily due to market movements in relation to our seeded investment products and

derivative instruments and the consolidation or deconsolidation of third- party ownership interests in seeded investment
products . © An unfavorable movement of $ 99. 2 million in other non- operating income (expense), net, primarily due to a
$ 138. 1 million reclassification of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments to net income related to
liquidated JHG entities. ® A $ 66. 0 million increase in our income tax provision, primarily due to higher operating
income in 2024 . Investment Performance of Assets Under Management The following table is a summary of our investment
performance as of December 31, 2023-2024 : Percentage of AUM outperforming benchmark (1): 1 year 3 years 5 years 10 years
Equities % % % % Fixed Income % % % % Multi- Asset % % % % Alternatives % % % % Total % % % % (1)
Outperformance is measured based on composite performance gross of fees versus primary benchmark, except where a
strategy has no benchmark index or corresponding composite in which case the most relevant metric is used: (1)
composite gross fees versus zero for absolute return strategies, (2) fund net of fees versus primary index or (3) fund net
of fees versus Morningstar peer group average or median. Non- discretionary and separately managed account assets
are included with a corresponding composite where applicable. Cash management vehicles, ETF- enhanced beta
strategies, legacy Tabula passive ETFs, Fixed Income Buy & Maintain mandates, legacy NBK Capital Partners and
Victory Park Capital funds, Managed CDOs, Private Equity funds and custom non- discretionary accounts with no
corresponding composite are excluded from the analysis. Excluded assets represent 4 % of AUM for the period ended
December 31, 2024. Our AUM as of December 31, 2623-2024 , was $ 334-378 . 9-7 billion, an increase of $ 4743 . 6-8 billion,
or ++13 %, from December 31, 28222023 , driven primarily by positive market movements of $ 45-41 . +-8 billion. Our non-
USD AUM is primarily denominated in GBP, EUR and AUD. During the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , the USD
yreakened-strengthened against GBP, EUR and AUD, resulting in a $ 3-4 . 2-7 billion inerease-decrease in our AUM. As of
December 31, 2023-2024 , approximately 36-26 % of our AUM was non- USD- denominated. Our AUM and flows by capability
for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and2024-, were as follows (in billions): Closing AUM Closing AUM
December 31, Net sales Acquisitions and December 31, 2023 Sales Redemptions (1) (redemptions) Markets FX (2)
Reelassifteations-reclassifications (3) 2024 By capability: Equities $205.1$31.1$(37.6) $(6.5)$32.7$(1.9)$—3$
229. 4 Fixed Income 71.529. 5 (18.7) 10. 8 1.9 (2. 4) 0. 9 82. 7 Multi- Asset 48.9 6.3 (8.2) (1. 9) 6.4 (0. 2) (0. 1) 53. 1
Alternatives 9.4 3.6 (3. 6) — 0. 8 (0.2) 3.513.5 Total $334.9$70.5$ (68.1) $2.4$41.8$ (4.7) $4.3 3 378. 7 Closing
AUM Closing AUM December 31, Net sales December 31, 2022 Sales Redemptions (1) (redemptions) Markets FX (2)
Reclassifications and-dispesats—(3) 2023 By capability: Equities $ 171.3 $31.0$(33.2)$(2.2)$34.882.1$(0.9) $205. 1
Fixed Income 59. 8 24. 1 (16.9) 7.2 3.8 0.7 —71. 5 Multi- Asset 45.54.1(7.7) (3.6)6.20.20. 648. 9 Alternatives 10. 7
1.7(3.8)(2.1)0.30.20.39.4 Total $287.3$60.9$(61.6)$(0.7)$45.1$3.2%— $ 334. 9 Closing AUM Closing
AUM December 31, Net sales Reclassifications December 31, 2021 Sales Redemptions (1) (redemptions) Markets FX (2) and
disposals (3) 2022 By capability: Equities $ 244.3 $24.4 $ (45.6) $(21.2)$(47.2)$(5.9)$ 1.3 $ 171. 3 Fixed Income 79. 6
23.0(29.4) (6.4) (8.9) (4.5) — 59. 8 Multi- Asset 59. 7 6.5 (10. 8) (4. 3) (9. 3) (0. 6) — 45. 5 Alternatives 10. 7 6.4 (5. 3) 1

1 (0. 3) (0. 8) — 10. 7 Quantitative Equmes 38 () () 2 (5 9) (5 7) (2 6) (0. 1) (29 6) — Totdl 3> 432 3 3> 60. 5 $097.0)% (36 )
3>(68 3)5(119)$(28 3)5287. g tetsa e

—10-F Fotal $40-6-$7445-906) 5625513544 $—$432- 3 (1) Redemptlons mclude the 1mpdct of chent

transfers. (2) FX reflects movements in AUM resulting from changes in foreign currency rates as non- USD- denominated AUM
is translated into USD. (3) Acquisitions relate to the acquisition of Tabula Investment Management (“ Tabula ) and NBK
Capital Partners (“ NBK ”), both completed in the third quarter 2024, and the acquisition of Victory Park Capital



Advisors, LLC (“ VPC ”), which was completed in the fourth quarter 2024. Reclassifications relate to the reetassifteations—

reclassification of existing funds between capabilities frem—Eqwﬁes—te—Mt&&%sse%&ndﬂ-}tematwes—m—Ze%—aﬁd—freﬂ&
Qua-nt-rt&t—rve—Equtﬁes—te—eq&ﬁes—m—E@%%— Drsposal actrvrty 1n 2022 relates to the sale of Intech Investment Management LLC

t-he—d-westufe—e—f—lntech ”) Our AUM and ﬂows by chent type for the years ended December 31, 2024 2023 and 2022 and
2624, were as follows (in billions): Closing AUM Closing AUM December 31, Net sales Acqu1s1tlons and December 31,

2023 Sales Redemptions (1) (redemptions) Markets FX (2) Reelassifteations-reclassifications (3) 2024 By client type:
Intermediary $ 183.4 $55.0 % (46.3) $8.7$20.4 8 (2.2) $0.7 $ 211. 0 Self- directed 76.1 2. 0 (5. 8) (3. 8) 14.2 — — 86.
5 Institutional 75. 4 13. 5 (16. 0) (2.5) 7.2 (2.5) 3.6 81. 2 Total $334.9$70.5$(68.1) $2.4$41.8%(4.7) $4.3$378.7
Closing AUM Closing AUM December 31, Net sales December 31, 2022 Sales Redemptions (1) (redemptions) Markets FX
(2) Reclassifications and-dispesals-(3) 2023 By client type: Intermediary $ 162.0$39.5$(43.1)$(3.6)$22.8$2. 1$0.1$
183. 4 Self- directed 64. 3 1. 3 (4. 8) (3.5) 14.9 0.2 0. 2 76. 1 Institutional 61. 020. 1 (13.7) 6.4 7.4 0.9 (0. 3) 75. 4 Total $
287.3$60.9%$(61.6)$(0.7)$45.1%$3.2%— $334. 9 Closing AUM Closing AUM December 31, Net sales
Reclassifications December 31, 2021 Sales Redemptions (1) (redemptions) Markets FX (2) and disposals (3) 2022 By client
type: Intermediary § 215.0 $39.9 §(53.3) $ (13.4) $ (32.8) $ (5. 9) $ (0. 9) $ 162. 0 Self- directed 90. 1 1. 5 (5. 1) (3. 6) (21.
6) (0. 6) — 64. 3 Institutional 127. 2 19 1 (38 6) (19 5) (13 9) (5 4) (27 4) 61. 0 Total $ 432. 3 $ (O 5 $ (97. O) $ (36. 5) $
(68 3)$(11 9)$(28 3)$2873 311 N 3 p ation

isposals—3) Acqu1s1tlons relate to the acqulsltlon of Tabula and
NBK both completed in the thlrd quarter %92—1—2024 Byeeheﬂt—%‘pe—}ﬂteﬂﬁedierfv%%% and the acquisition of VPC,
Whlch was completed in the fourth quarter 2024 9—$66—9—$—64—8)—$—24—$€3ﬂ%—$-(2—9)—$+k8¥$—24§—94ﬂstmmeﬂa4424—6

between client types 5
Drsposal act1V1ty in 2022 relates to the sale 0

d he-divestare-of Intech. Average Assets Under Management The followrng
table presents our average AUM by Capablhty for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2024(in billions):
Average AUM Year ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 ¥s—2622-vs. By Capablhty 2024 2023 2022 26242023 2022 262+
Equities $224.7$ 191. 6 $ 193. 2 % $2364-(1 ¥%8) % Fixed Income 75. 6 65. 5 67. 2 % 86—6-3 ¥%+) % Multi-
Asset 51.6 47. 1 49. 2 % 5324 ¥%+8-) % Alternatives 10. 2 9. 6 11. 5 % +0-5-(17) %% Quantitative Equities (1) — —7.7
— % 43100 ¥%+8+) % Total $362.1$313. 8§ 328. 8 Y% $422-0-(53%22) % (1) On March 31, 2022, we completed
the sale of our 97 %- owned Quantitative Equities subsidiary, Intech. Closing Assets Under Management The following table
presents our closing AUM by client location, as of December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2624-(in billions): Slesing-AM
ClosingAUM-Closing AUM December 31, 2024 vs. Beeember3+Deeember345-2023 ¥s-2022-vs. By client location: 2024
2023 2022 26242023 2022 2024-North America $ 236. 8 $ 198. 6 $ 168. 6 $244+0-% 36)-% EMEA and Latin America 104. 8
102. 9 85. 74323-% 35)9-% Asia Pacific 37. 1 33. 4 33. 0 59-0-% 44)>-% Total $ 378.7 $ 334. 9 $§ 287 -3-$432- 3 % EH-%
Valuation of Assets Under Management The fair value of our AUM is based on the value of the underlying cash and
investments securities of our funds, trusts and segregated mandates. A significant proportion of these securities is listed or
quoted on a recognized securities exchange or market and is regularly traded thereon; these investments are valued based on
unadjusted quoted market prices. However, for non- U. S. equity securities held by U. S. mutual funds, excluding ETFs, the
quoted market prices may be adjusted to capture market movement between the time the local market closes and the NYSE
closes. Other investments, including OTC derivative contracts (which are dealt in or through a clearing firm, exchanges or
financial institutions), are valued by reference to the most recent official settlement price quoted by the appointed market
vendor, and in the event no price is available from this source, a broker quotation may be used. Physical property held is valued
monthly by a specialist independent appraiser. When a readily ascertainable market value does not exist for an investment, the
fair value is calculated using a variety of methodologies, including the expected cash flows of its underlying net asset base,
taking into account applicable discount rates and other factors; comparable securities or relevant indices; recent financing
rounds; revenue multiples; or a combination thereof. Judgment is used to ascertain if a formerly active market has become
inactive and to determine fair values when markets have become inactive. Our Fair Value Pricing Committees-committees are
responsible for determining or approving these unquoted prices, which are reported to those charged with governance of the
funds and trusts. For funds that invest in markets that are closed at their valuation point, an assessment is made daily to
determine whether a fair value pricing adjustment is required to the fund’ s valuation. This may be due to significant market
movements in other correlated open markets, scheduled market closures or unscheduled market closures as a result of natural
disaster or government intervention . Qur private credit investments are valued using a variety of methodologies and
approaches, including the cost method, the market approach and the income approach, which in many cases leverage
unobservable inputs and assumptions, depending on the nature of the investment . Third- party administrators hold a key
role in the collection and validation of prices used in the valuation of the securities. Daily price validation is completed using
techniques such as day- on- day tolerance movements, invariant prices, excessive movement checks and intra- vendor tolerance
checks. Our data management team performs oversight of this process and completes annual due diligence on the processes of
third parties. In other cases, we and the sub- administrators perform a number of procedures to validate the pricing received
from third- party providers. For actively traded equity and fixed income securities, prices are received daily from both a primary
and secondary vendor. Prices from the primary and secondary vendors are compared to identify any discrepancies. In the event
of a discrepancy, a price challenge may be issued to both vendors. Securities with significant day- to- day price changes require
additional research, which may include a review of all news pertaining to the issue and issuer, and any corporate actions. All



fixed income prices are reviewed by our fixed income trading desk to incorporate market activity information available to our
traders. In the event the traders have received price indications from market makers for a particular issue, this information is
transmitted to the pricing vendors. We leverage the expertise of our fund management teams across the business to cross- invest
assets and create value for our clients. Where cross investment occurs, assets and flows are identified, and the duplication is
removed. Results of Operations Foreign Currency Translation Foreign currency translation impacts our Results of Operations.
Revenue is impacted by foreign currency translation, but the impact is generally determined by the primary currency of the
individual funds. Expenses are also impacted by foreign currency translation, primarily driven by the translation of GBP to
USD. The GBP strengthened-weakened against the USD during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to the year
ended December 31, 2622-2023 , and the GBP weakened-strengthened against the USD during the year ended December 31,
2622-2023 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2624-2022 . Meaningful foreign currency translation impacts to our
operating expenses are discussed in the Operating Expenses section below. Year ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 vs. 2022
2024 +s:-2023 2022 2624-2023 2022 202+-Revenue (in millions): Management fees $ 1,957.7$ 1, 700. 1 $ 1, 799. 4 % $2;
18946 ¥%-8-) % Performance fees 70.4 5. 1 (10. 7) 402—Fn / m * n/ m * Shareowner servicing fees 240.7 213. 3 224. 0
% 26075 Y%+4-) % Other revenue 204. 4 183. 3 190. 9 % 24424 yY%H-) % Total revenue $ 2,473.2$2, 101. 8 $ 2,
203. 6 % $257676-(5 ¥%20-) % * n/ m- Not meaningful. Management fees deereased-increased $ 99-257 . 3-6 million
during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , primarily due to &
deelinre-an improvement in average AUM. Management fees decreased $ 39699 . -3 million during the year ended December
31,2622-2023 , compared to the year ended December 31 %92—1—2022 prnnarrly due toa declme in -t-he—rnapﬂet—e-ﬂewef
averageAUM whie d-mana A —Th eas erence

. Average net management fee margrns by Capabrhty, consr%ted of the followrng for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 7and 2022 and2024 Year ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 vs. 2022-2024 xs-2023 2022 202+
2023 2022 20624+-Average net management fee margin (bps) (1): Equities 53. 7 54.455.2 (56-1) % (1 ¥%+2) % Fixed
Income 26.2 27. 8 29. 6 20—H6) % (6) % Multi- Asset §3.2 52.9 53. 1 % 52-9-0) %% Alternatives 75. 6 61. 9 60. 4 68—4-"%
2% Quantitative Equities (2) — — 15. 8 +6=5-n /m * (100 3%%4-) % Total average 48. 6 48. 9 48. 9 470-(1) % — %%
(1) Net management fee margins are based on management fees net of distribution expenses. (2) On March 31, 2022, we
completed the sale of our 97 %- owned Quantitative Equities subsidiary, Intech. * n / m- Not meaningful. Performance fees are
derived across a number of product ranges. U. S. mutual fund performance fees are recognized on a monthly basis, while all
other performance fees are recognized on a quarterly or annual basis. The investment management fee paid by each U. S.
mutual fund subject to a performance fee is the base management fee plus or minus a performance fee adjustment, as
determined by the relative investment performance of the fund, over a 36- month rolling period, compared to a specified
benchmark index. Performance fees by product type consisted of the following for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 5
and 2022 and2024: Year ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 vs. 2022-2024 ¥s-2023 2022 26242023 2022 202+-Performance
fees (in millions): SICAVs $26.3$2. 1 $2. 0 n/m * $63-7F%97-% UK OEICs and unit trusts 6. 2 — 0. | — % 92100
F%99-) % Absolute return funds and other funds 70. 8 56. 9 33. 5 +4-5-% % n+m*-Segregated mandates 4.9 3. 1 10. 0 % 6=
9-(69) %% Investment trusts 0.7 9. 1 6. 7 +4-3-(92) % 53>-% Private capital funds 1. 0 — — — % — % U. S. mutual funds
(39.5) (66. 1) (63.0) % G5995) % atmETotal performance fees $70.4$ 5. 1 $ (10. 7) $302Fn /m * n/ m * For the
year ended December 31, 2024, performance fees increased $ 65. 3 million compared to the year ended December 31,
2023, due to an improvement in the performance of U. S. mutual funds, SICAVs and absolute return funds and other
funds. For the year ended December 31, 2023, performance fees increased $ 15. 8 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2022, due to an improvement in the performance of absolute return funds and other funds primarily driven by
performance fees generated from a certain fund. This increase was partially offset by a decline in segregated mandates due to the

relative performance of certarn funds berng below the estabh%hed HWM. -Fer—t-he—yea—r—eﬁded—Beeeﬂﬂser—}l—ZG%Z—peffeiﬁaﬂee

¥ due-to-performaneefees—generated-from-the Jants cehtovation .Thefollowrngtable
outhneq per formance fees by product type and 1nclude§ 1nf0r1nat10n on fee% earned, number of funds generating performance
fees, AUM generating performance fees, number of funds eligible to earn performance fees, AUM with an uncrystallized
performance fee, performance fee participation rate, performance fee frequency and performance fee methodology (dollars in
millions, except where noted): Absolute UK OEICs Return Funds Private and and Segregated Investment Capital U. S. Mutual
SICAVs Unit Trusts Other Funds Mandates Trusts Funds Funds Performance fees : Year ended December 31, 2023-2024 $ 26.
3$6.2870.8%$4.950.79% 1 $—%$56- 90 $ 34591456639 . +5) Year ended December 31,2022-2023 $ 2. 8561 §
—33554056 . 893563 . 715963 01n/a$ (66.1) Yecar ended December 31,2624-2022 $2.08$0.1$33.5510.0$
6.7n/a8$ (63. 0 751925 H4-556-9-$14-3-$(159) Number of funds that earned performance fees : Year ended
December 31, 2023-2024 (1) —Year ended December 31, 2622-2023 (1) —n /a Year ended December 31, 20242022 (1)n/a
AUM generating performance fees (in billions) : AUM at December 31, 2024, generating FY24 performance fees $12.4$ 1.
2$2.956.950.950.18%66.1 AUM at December 31, 2023, generating FY23 performance fees $4.9$ —8$1.2$5. 8§ 1.
On/a$ 56.7 AUM at December 31, 2022, generating FY22 performance fees $5.1$1.5$2.3$9.3$0.8n/a$45.1
Number of funds eligible to earn performance fees: As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023 n / a As of




December 31, 2022 n / a AUM subject to performance fees (in billions): AUM at December 31, 2024, subject to FY24
performancefees$ 13. 9$ 1. 2$2 9$23 9$ 1. 7$0 3$66 1 AUMat December 31 %Ga—l—genefatmg—%—perfeﬂﬁanee

subject to FY23 perrormance fees $ 11 0 $ 1.2 $ L. 6 $ 22 1 $ 1 9 n / a $ 56. 7 AUM at December 31 2022 subject to FY22
performance fees $ 10. 7 $ 1. 5 $ 2.6812.7 $ 2.1n / a $ 45.1 Uncrystalllzed performance fees (m bllllons) AUM at

> Wlth an uncrystalhzed performance fee at December 31,2623-2024

, vesting in 26242025 (2) $20 .855 1.+55—n/a$ —0 4$0.8n/aAUM at December 31, 2622-2023 , with an
uncrystallized performance fee at December 31, 20222023 | vesting in 2023-2024 (2) $6-2 . 88 1 $—. 1
/an/a AUM at December 31, 20242022 , with an uncrystallized performance fee at December 31, 20242022 , vesting in 2622
2023 (2) $4-5$20%$0-218—8$—n/a$4+0.48n/an/aPerformance fee participation rate percentage (3) 10 %- 20 %
15 %-20 % 10 %- 20 % 5 %- 28 % % 15 %-=-25 % /— 0. 15 % Performance fee frequency Annually Annually Annually and
quarterly Annually Anngatly-and quarterly Annually Various and-gquarterby-Annualy-Monthly Performance fee methodology
(4) Relative plus HWM Relative / absolute plus HWM Absolute plus HWM Bespoke Relative plus HWM Relative plus HWM
Relative (1) For absolute return funds, this excludes funds earning a performance fee on redemption and only includes those
with a period- end crystallization date. Also, the number of funds that earned a performance fee during the year can exceed the
number of funds eligible to earn a performance fee at the end of the year due to fund closures. (2) Reflects the total AUM of all
funds with a performance fee opportunity at any point in the relevant year. (3) Participation rate related to non- U. S. mutual
fund products reflects our share of outperformance. Participation rate related to U. S. mutual funds represents an adjustment to
the management fee. (4) Relative performance is measured versus applicable benchmarks and is subject to an HWM for relevant
funds. Shareowner servicing fees are primarily composed of U. S. mutual fund servicing fees, which are driven by AUM.
Shareowner servicing fees deereased-increased by $ +6-27 . 74 million during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 ,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , and decreased by $ 36-10 . 7 million during the year ended December
31,2622-2023 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2624-2022 , primarily due to movements a-deelite-in average mutual
fund AUM. Other revenue is primarily composed of 12b- 1 distribution fees, general administration charges and other fee
revenue. General administration charges include reimbursements from funds for various fees and expenses paid for by the
investment manager on behalf of the funds. Other revenue deereased-increased by $ 721 . 6-1 million during the year ended
December 31, 20623-2024 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , primarily due to and- an improvement in
average AUM. Other revenue decreased by $ 23-7 . 3-6 million during the year ended December 31, 2622-2023 , compared to
the year ended December 31, 2024-2022 , primarily due to a decline in average AUM. Year ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023
vs. 2022-2024 52023 2022 2621-2023 2022 202+-Operating expenses (in millions): Employee compensation and benefits $
716.1$593.3$611.5 % ($693-3 33%H2) % Long- term incentive plans 166. 6 167. 4 180. 7 (48+-0) % (7 ¥%6-) %
Distribution expenses 520. 9 455. 9 498. 3 % 5549 Y%-+0-) % Investment administration 5§8. 2 47. 4 49. 4 54-6-(43% (4) %
Marketing 40. 4 36. 6 27. 1 3+=F% 5% General, administrative and occupancy 300. 8 294. 6 279. 3 2H=8% % Impairment
of intangible assets — —35. 8424-9-n/ m * (100 y%FH-) % Depreciation and amortization 24. 5 22. 9 31. 7 % 46728 3%
22-) % Total operating expenses $ 1, 827.581,618. 1 $ 1, 713. 8 % (6) % Employee compensation and benefits increased
$ 122. 8 million during the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily
driven by an increase of $ 95. 0 million in variable compensation, mainly due to higher profitability, an $ 11. 8 million
increase in fixed compensation costs due to higher average headcount, $ 9. 6 million of base- pay increases and
unfavorable foreign currency translation of $ 6. | million ;-946-. +(6)-%12)%Employee compensation and benefits
decreased $ 18. 2 million during the year ended December 31, 2023, compared to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily
driven by a decrease of $ 18. 1 million in variable compensation, primarily due to lower profitability, and a $ 13. 7 million
decline in fixed compensation costs due to lower average headcount. These decreases were partially offset by $ 7. 5 million of
base- pay increases, unfavorable foreign currency translation of $ 3. 6 million and a $ 2. 4 million increase in project charges
driven by less capitalization of internal labor costs related to the order management system transformation project, which was
completed in the second quarter of 2023. Employee-eompensationand-benefits-Long- term incentive plan expenses decreased
$ 840 . 8 million during the year ended December 31, 2622-2024 , compared to the year ended December 31, %92—1—2023
primarily drivenby-due to a decrease of § 89—8 9—3 million for v e d W
pootand-other—- the roll- va ; siretrren anstation
and a-$9-the forfeiture of awards related to departed employees exceedmg the roll- on of new awards and the
acceleratlon of expense related to departed employees ThlS Z-milthen-decrease was irtemporary-staffing-charges-mainty

ae-to-theconversionof temporary-staffto-full—timeemployees—These-deereases were pa1t1a11y offset by an $+9—8-mithenof

certaln long- term 1ncent1ve awards adjusted-eompensation § 8 A-th

incentive plan expenses decreased $ 13. 3 million durmo the year ended December 31 2023 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2022, primarily due to a decrease of $ 42. 4 million for the roll- off of vested awards and the forfeiture of expense
related to departed employees exceeding the roll- on of new awards and the acceleration of expense related to departed
employees. This decline was partially offset by an increase of $ 27. 6 million driven by market appreciation of mutual fund share
awards and certain long- term incentive awards. 2025 Compensation Fong—terarineentive-plancxpenses For deereased-$-6-—3
mrl-l-ren—&ttﬂng—the year ended—endmg December 31, %(-)2—2—2025 we antlclpate eempared—te—t-he—ye&eeﬁded—laeeem-beﬁ}l—ze%l—

an adjusted



or-the range roel—on-of new-awards-execedingthe
estedwardsand-theseeeleration d-to departed-employees-44 % . Distribution expenses

are paid to financial 1ntermedmrles for the distribution of our retall investment products and are typically calculated based on the
amount of the intermediary- sourced AUM. Distribution expenses deereased-increased by $ 42-65 . 4-0 million during the year
ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 ., primarily due to and-- an
improvement in average AUM subject to distribution charges. Distribution expenses decreased by $ 55-42 . 84 million
during the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , compared to the year ended December 31, 20242022 , primarily driven by a
decline in average AUM subject to distribution charges. Marketing expenses increased by $ 9-3 . 5-8 million during the year
ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 ., and deereased-increased by $ 49 . 6-5
million during the year ended December 31, 20222023 , compared to the year ended December 31, 20242022 . Year- over-
year fluctuations in marketing expenses were primarily driven by changes in the level of advertising campaigns and sponsored
events. Investment General-administrative-administration and-eeeupaney-cxpenses , which represent fund administration
and fund accounting, increased by $ +5-10 . 3-8 million during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , compared to the year
ended December 31, 2022-2023 |, primarily due to contractual changes with a $-9-third- party vendor . Investment
administration expenses decreased by $ 2. 0 million during the year ended December 31, 2023, compared to the year
ended December 31, 2022. There were no significant movements contributing to the year over year variance. General,
administrative and occupancy expenses increased $ 6 . 2 million during the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to
the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to a § 8. 2 million increase in the amortization of capitalized cloud
computing costs, primarily reldted to the order mdnag,ement system transformation prOJect which was Completed in the seeond
quarter of 2023, a b 97 .7 3m reharg ; : :

mllllon charge related toa separately managed account trade error recogmzed durmg 2023 and a subsequent insurance
reimbursement of $ 4. 7 million recognized during 2024. General, administrative and occupancy expenses increased $ 15.
3 million during the year ended December 31, 2023, compared to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to a $
9. 6 million increase in the amortization of capitalized cloud computing costs, primarily related to the order management
system transformation project, which was completed in the second quarter of 2023, a $ 9. 3 million charge related to a
separately managed account trade error and a $ 4. 0 million increase in software costs primarily related to application
llcensmg fees. These increases were partlally offset by a $ 4. 6 million reductlon in rent- reldted expenses and a b 3.2 million

tr&ﬂs}a-t-teﬁ— lntanglble asset 1mpcnrment charges deueased by $ 35 8 mllllon durln;_, the year ended Decembel 3 1, 2073
compared to the year ended December 31, 2022. The decrease is due to no impairment charges being recognized during 2023,
compared to a $ 35. 8 million impairment of certain mutual fund investment management agreements, client relationships and
trademarks recognized during the year ended December 31, 2022. There were no Intangible-intangible asset impairment

charges recognized deereased-by-$-86—+mithen-during the year ended December 31, 2022-2024 -eempared-te-. Depreciation

and amortization expenses 1ncreased $ 1 6 mllllon durmg the yedr ended Decembel 31, %92—1—2024 compared—T—he

deerease-is-primarty-euae-to 8
feeegﬁrzed-&ttﬂﬁg—the yeal ended December %1 %92—1—2023 —part-ta-l-ly—effset—by—a%—%— There were no 51gn1ﬁcant movements

contributing to
trademaﬁes—reeegﬂ-rzed-dﬁrmg—the year over year variance eﬂded—Beeeﬂabei%—l—Z-GQ—Z— Depreudnon and amornzatlon expenses
decreased $ 8. 8 million during the year ended December 31, 2023, compared to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily
due to a $ 3. 6 million decline in the amortization of internally developed software as assets became fully amortized during the
current year, a $ 3. 5 million decrease in the amortization of prepaid commissions and a $ 1. 2 million reduction in the
dmOl‘tlZdthll of 1ntdn}_,1ble assets resulting from the sale of lntech W hth was recognized during the first quarter 2022

2025 —eempared—te

ech-and-a 55 r-deerease-n rofprepaid-eom 4Non- compensatlon
operating expenses For the year eﬂded-endlng December 31, 2624-2025 , we dnthlpdte ddjusted non- compensation expense
growth in the mid- to high- single digits. The anticipated g growth in our non- compensation expense is due to planned
investments supporting our strategic initiatives and operational efficiencies , as well as anticipated inflation and amertization
the full- year impact of eertatnreapitalized-eosts-the consolidation of VPC, NBK and Tabula . Non- Operating Income and
Expenses Year ended December 31, 2024 vs. 2023 vs. 2022-2024 vs-2023 2022 26242023 2022 2062+-Non- operating income
and expenses (in millions): Interest expense $ (18.0)$ (12.7) $ (12. 6) $+{ 42 42-8-) % (1) %% Investment gains (losses), net
70.843.4 (113. 3) % 8—-8n+m*n / m * Other non- operating income (expense) , net (86.6) 12. 6 11.588%n/m* %
Income tax provision ( 166. 3) ( 100. 3) (100. 9) ( 66 265-3-) % % *n-+m—Interest expense increased by $ 5. 3 million during
the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to the issuance of the
5. 450 % Senior Net-Notes meaningfut-due 2034 (“ 2034 Senior Notes ”) in the fourth quarter 2024. Proceeds from the
2034 Senior Notes were used to redeem the 4. 875 % Senior Notes due 2025 (“ 2025 Senior Notes ) . The components of




investment gains (losses), net for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and20624-, were as follows: Year ended
December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2824+-Investment gains (losses), net (in millions): Seeded investment products and hedges, net $
36.4 $20.3$ (15. 2) $2-6-Third- party ownership interests in seeded investment products 37. 5 34. 7 (97. 9 H8-9-) Equity
method investments (5. 6) (13.5) 2. 9 Other 2.5 1. 9 (3. 8-Other-1 —93—1) 3—8-Investment gains (losses), net $ 70. 8 § 43. 4
$ (113. 3) $0-8-Investment gains (losses), net moved favorably by $ +56-27 . 74 million during the year ended December 31,
2623-2024 , compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 , and unfaverably—- favorably by $ H4-156 . +7 million
during the year ended December 31, 2822-2023 , compared to the year ended December 31, 20242022 . Movements in
investment gains (losses), net are primarily due to consolidation and deconsolidation of third- party ownership interests in
seeded investment products and market adjustments in relation to our seeded investment products. In addition, a $ 12. 5 million
charge due to a correction of an error of previously recognized earnings associated with an equity method investment impacted
investment gains (losses), net for the year ended December 31, 2023. Gains and losses attributable to third- party ownership
interests in seeded investment products are noncontrolling interests and are not included in net income attributable to JHG. Other
non- operating income (expense) , net improved-declined $ +99 . +2 million during the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 ,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2022-2023 . The tnerease-decrease was primarily due to a year over year change of
$33-133 . 4 million in the reclassification of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments to net income related
to liquidated JHG entities. This decrease was partially offset by a $ 13. 4 million provision for a credit loss and an $ 11. 9
million contingent consideration fair value adjustment, both recognized during 2023, and an $ 8 . 8 million increase in

1ntere§t income prrmanly drrven by hlgher 1ntere§t rates on cash balances aﬁd—a—}ess-e%$—9—l—&n4herrfe}afed+e—t-he—sa}e—ef—}n’eeel+

year eﬂded—endmg December 31 2024-2025 , we expect irgmhcant foreign currency tran%latlon adju%tments to be rechi%lhed
from accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets to other non- operating income (expense) , net
on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income due to the anticipated liquidation of certain non- operating JHG
entities. The timing of the adjastments-reclassifications is uncertain and dependent on the progression of the liquidation
process. Our current estimate is The-adjustments-are-notexpeeted-to-exeeed-5 +94-53 million during-, net, which would
unfavorably impact the-other year-ended-Deeember3+non- operating income (expense) , 2624;-net on the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. hewever-However . the adjustmentsreclassifications could be significantly lower or
higher than this amount due to the progression of the liquidation process and, to a lesser extent, changes in foreign
currency rates . The reclassification activity is not part of our ongoing operations and will not be included in our adjusted
results. Other non- operating income (expense) , net improved $ 2-1 . 1 million during the year ended December 31, 2022
2023, cornp"lred to the year ended December 31,2624-2022 . The increase was primarily due to a § +4+33 . 8 ﬂa—rl-l-teﬁ—ef
million increase in interest income primarily driven by higher interest rates
on cash balances and a loss of $ 9. 1 million related to the sale of Intech, which was recognized in the first quarter 2022 .
These increases were partially offset by unfaverable foreign currency revaluation of $ 15. 2 million, a $ 13. 4 million

prov1s1on for a credlt loss e-f— an $11.9 —1—rmH10n—rektted—te+he—sa-le—eH&teeh—a—$—7—7—mllhon contrnoent conglderatlon

fair value adjuqtment fe—t-he—}n-tee%repﬁeﬁ—ag-reefﬂeﬂt—and a $ 4.7 mrlhon deefease—m—feﬁtel-reclassmcatlon of accumulated
foreign currency translation adjustments to net income from-subleased-office related to liquidated JHG entities . neome
FaxProviston-Our effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and-202+-, were as follows: Year
ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2824-Effective tax rate 27. 2 % 19. 0 % 26. 9 %25—+% The effective tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , compared to the same period in 2022-2023 , was impacted by the disalewed
noneontrotting-interestreclassification of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments to net income from &
eertatrseeded-investment produetand-liquidated JHG entities that are treated as non- deductible for tax purposes. The
effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2023, was also impacted by a reduction in the state income tax rate. As a
result of the reduction in the state income tax rate, the U. S . deferred tax assets and liabilities were revalued from 23. 9 % to 23.
5 % screating a non- cash deferred tax benefit of $ 8. 8 million. The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2022
2023 , compared to the same period in 20242022 , was impacted by a-deerease-in-pre—tax-boolincome-with-a-signifieant
tereasetrthe disallowed noncontrolling interest-interests toss-from a-certain seeded investment produet-products and a
reduction in the state income tax rate, as discussed above . For the year ended-ending December 31, 2024-2025 , we expect
our tax rate on adjusted net income attributable to JHG to be in the range of 23 % to 25 %. The Organization for Economic Co-
operation and Development (<~“OECD ) has a framework to implement a global minimum corporate tax of 15 % for companies
with global revenues and profits above certain thresholds ( referred-to-as-Pillar 2) . Some with-eertatraspects of Pillar 2 took
effeetive—-- effect on January 1, 2024, and ether-others aspeets-became cffective as of January 1, 2025. On June 20, 2023,
Finance (No. 2) Act 2023 was substantivelyenacted in the UK, introducing a global minimum effective tax rate of 15 %. fPhe
This legislation #mplements-includes a domestic top- up tax and a multinational top- up tax, effective for accounting periods
starting on or after December 31, 2023. While it is uncertain whether the U. S. will enaetdegistationte-adopt Pillar 2, eertain
several countries where t-whieh-we operate have adepted-enacted or are introducing similar legislation . As of December
31, and-2024, other—- the impact eountries-are-inrthe-proeess-of mtrodueinglegistationto-tmplement-Pillar 2 —We-donot
expeetPillar2-to-have-a-materialimpaet-on our effective tax rate , er-oureonsehdated-results of operations, financial position ,

and cash flows was not significant to the financial statements . We report our financial results in accordance with GAAP.
However, we evaluate our profitability and our ongoing operations using additional non- GAAP financial measures that exclude
costs or benefits that are not part of our ongoing operations. These measures are not in accordance with, or a substitute for,



GAAP, and our financial measures may be different from non- GAAP financial measures used by other companies.
Management uses these performance measures to evaluate the business, and adjusted values are consistent with internal
management reporting. We have provided a reconciliation below of our non- GAAP financial measures to the most directly
comparable GAAP measures. Alternative performance measures The following is a reconciliation of revenue, operating
expenses, operating income, net income attributable to JHG and diluted earnings per share to adjusted revenue, adjusted
operating expenses, adjusted operating income, adjusted net income attributable to JHG and adjusted diluted earnings per share,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 (in millions, except per share and operating margin data):
Yearended-Year ended December 31, 2024 Beeember34-2023 2022 Reconciliation of revenue to adjusted revenue : Revenue $
2,473.2%2,101. 8 $ 2,203. 6 Management fees ( 198. 9) ( 164. 8) (193. 2) Shareowner servicing fees ( 194. 4) (172. 4) (185.
2) Other revenue ( 139. 1) ( 118. 7) (119. 9) Adjusted revenue (1) 1,940.8 $ 1, 645.9 $ 1, 705. 3 Reconciliation of operating
expenses to adjusted operating expenses : Operating expenses $ 1, 827.5$ 1, 618. 1 $ 1, 713. 8 Employee compensation and
benefits (2) (20.0) (5. 8) (16. 8) Long- term incentive plans (2) (8. 1) (1. 2) (21. 1) Distribution expenses (1) ( 520. 9) (455.9)
(498. 3) General, administrative and occupancy (2 ) (2. 7)) (16. 3) (9. 5) Impairment of intangible assets (3) — — (35. 8)
Depreciation and amortization (3) (3. 1) (1. 7) (3. 7) Adjusted operating expenses $1,272.7 $ 1, 137.2 $ 1, 128. 6 Adjusted
operating income $ 668. 1 $ 508. 7 $ 576. 7 Operating margin (4) 26. 1 % 23. 0 % 22. 2 % Adjusted operating margin (5) 34. 4
% 30.9 % 33. 8 % Reconciliation of net income attributable to JHG to adjusted net income attributable to JHG : Net income
attributable to JHG $ 408.9 $ 392. 0 $ 372. 4 Employee compensation and benefits (2) 8. 5 5. 8 16. 8 Long- term incentive
plans (2) 8.1 1. 2 21. 1 General, administrative and occupancy (2) 2.7 16. 3 9. 5 Impairment of intangible assets (3) — — 35. 8
Depreciation and amortization (3) 3.1 1. 7 3. 7 Interest expense (6) 0. 3 — — Investment gains (losses), net (6) 0.8 12.50. 4
Other non- operating income (expense) , net (6) 136.9 28. 6 0. 3 Income tax provision (7) (4. 4) (22.9) (26. 2) Net loss
(income) attributable to noncontrolling interests (8) (1. 2) — — Adjusted net income attributable to JHG 563. 7 435. 2 433.
8 Less: allocation of earnings to participating stock- based awards ( 13. 6) ( 12. 4) (13. 1) Adjusted net income attributable to
JHG common shareholders $ 550. 1 § 422. 8 $ 420. 7 Weighted- average common shares outstanding — diluted $ 155. 8 $ 160.
5 $ 162. 0 Diluted earnings per share (89)$2.56 $ 2. 37 $ 2. 23 Adjusted diluted earnings per share (9-10) $3.53 $2.63 $
2. 60 (1) We contract with third- party intermediaries to distribute and service certain of our investment products. Fees for
distribution and servicing related activities are either provided for separately in an investment product’ s prospectus or are part
of the management fee. Under both arrangements, the fees are collected by us and passed through to third- party intermediaries
who are responsible for performing the applicable services. The majority of distribution and servicing fees we collect are passed
through to third- party intermediaries. JHG management believes that the deduction of distribution and service fees from
revenue in the computation of adjusted revenue reflects the pass- through nature of these revenues. In certain arrangements, we
perform the distribution and servicing activities and retain the applicable fees. Revenues for distribution and servicing activities
performed by us are not deducted from GAAP revenue. In addition to the adjustments related to distribution and servicing
activities, other revenue for the year ended December 31, 2024, includes an adjustment related to an employee
secondment arrangement with a joint venture. The arrangement is pass- through in nature, and we believe the costs do
not represent our ongoing operations. (2) Adjustments for the years— year ended December 31, 2024, include acquisition
related expenses, the acceleration of long- term incentive plan expense and redundancy expense related to the departure
of certain employees, and a $ 4. 7 million insurance reimbursement related to a separately managed account trade error
that occurred in 2023. Adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, include rent expense, rent income, other
rent- related adjustments associated with subleased office space and the acceleration of long- term incentive plan expense and
redundancy expenses— expense related to the departure of certain employees. Adjustments for the year ended December 31,
2023, also inelude-includes a $ 9. 3 million charge related to a separately managed account trade error. JHG management
believes these costs do not represent our ongoing operations. Additionally, within the reconciliation of operating expenses
to adjusted operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024, employee compensation and benefits include an
adjustment related to an employee secondment arrangement with a joint venture. The arrangement is pass- through in
nature, and we believe the costs do not represent our ongoing operations. (3) Investment management contracts have been
identified as a separately identifiable intangible asset arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses. Such contracts
are recognized at the net present value of the expected future cash flows arising from the contracts at the date of acquisition. For
segregated mandate contracts, the intangible asset is amortized on a straight- line basis over the expected life of the contracts.
Adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2022, also inelude-includes impairment charges of certain mutual fund
investment management contracts, client relationships and trademarks. JHG management believes these non- cash and
acquisition- related costs do not represent our ongoing operations. (4) Operating margin is operating income divided by revenue.
(5) Adjusted operating margin is adjusted operating income divided by adjusted revenue. (6) Adjustments for the year ended
December 31, 2024, include the reclassification of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments to net income
related to JHG liquidated entities. Adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2023, include a provision for a credit loss
and a contingent consideration fair value adjustment related to the 2022 sale of Intech, a correction due to an error of previously
recognized earnings associated with an equity method investment and the release-reclassification of accumulated foreign

currency translation adjustmenti to net income related to JHG hqu1dated J-HG—entltle% —Adjﬂsfmeﬁts—fer—t-he—ye&r—eﬂdeé

aee-and-a-on rne-charg ate hesale ateeh-. JHG management beheve% the%e
expenses do not represent our ongoing operations. (7) The tax 1mpact of the adjustments is calculated based on the U. S. or
foreign statutory tax rate as they relate to each adjustment. Certain adjustments are either not taxable or not tax- deductible.
Adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2023, were also impacted by the change to our state tax rate. As a result, the U.
S. deferred tax assets and liabilities were revalued from 23. 9 % to 23. 5 %, creating a non- cash deferred tax benefit of $ 8. 8



million. (8 ) Adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2024, include the noncontrolling interest on amortization of
acquisition related intangible assets. JHG management believes these non- cash and acquisition- related costs do not
represent our ongoing operations. (9 ) Diluted earnings per share is net income attributable to JHG common shareholders
divided by weighted- average diluted common shares outstanding. (9-10 ) Adjusted diluted earnings per share is adjusted net
income attributable to JHG common shareholders divided by weighted- average diluted common shares outstanding. Liquidity
and Capital Resources Our capital structure, together with available cash balances, cash flows generated from operations, and
further capital and credit market activities, if necessary, should provide us with sufficient resources to meet present and future
cash needs, including operating and other obligations as they fall due and anticipated future capital requirements. The following
table summarizes key balance sheet data relating to our liquidity and capital resources as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2022-(in millions): December 31, 2024 Peeember34;-2023 2022-Cash and cash equivalents held by the Company $ 1, 190.9 $
1, 145. 9 $31456-5-Investments held by the Company $ 474. 1 $ 399. 2 $359—4Fees and other receivables $ 356. 6 $ 294. 0 &
25291 ong- term debt $ 395. 0 $ 304. 6 $367-5-Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash held at banks, on- demand
deposits, investments in money market instruments, highly liquid short- term debt securities and commercial paper with a
maturity date of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents exclude cash held by consolidated variable interest entities (“
VIEs ”) and consolidated voting rights entities (“ VREs ”), and investments exclude noncontrolling interests as these assets are
not available to us under any circumstance. Investments held by us represent seeded investment products (exclusive of
noncontrolling interests), equity-methodHnvestments-investments related to deferred compensation plans and other less
significant investments classified as current assets in our Consolidated Balance Sheets . We believe that existing cash and
cash from operations should be sufficient to satisfy our short- term capital requirements. Expected short- term uses of cash
include ordinary operating expenditures, seed capital investments, interest expense, dividend payments, income tax payments
and common stock repurchases. We may also use available cash for other general corporate purposes and acquisitions. Cash
Flows A summary of cash flow data for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-202+, was as follows (in
millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2624+-Cash flows provided by (used for): Operating activities $ 694. 6 $
441.6 § 473. 3 $8954-Investing activities ( 285. 4) (328. 9) 58. 5 28333Financing activities (324.4) (151.9) (419 588
. 1) Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (18. 1) 30. 9 (54. 9 3¥33-5-) Net change in cash and cash
equivalents 66. 7 (8. 3) 57. 8 +#8—5-Cash balance at beginning of period 1, 168.1 1, 176. 4 1, 118. 6 53+88—Cash balance at
end of period $ 1,234.8$ 1, 168. 1 $ 1, 176. 4 $3;H8-6-Operating Activities Fluctuations in operating cash flows are
attributable to changes in net income and working capital items, which can vary from period to period based on the amount and
timing of cash receipts and payments. Investing Activities Cash provided by (used for) investing activities for the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023 r-and 2022 and2024-, was as follows (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 202+
Sales (purchases) of investments, net $ (37. 0) $ (59. 7) $ 44. 6 $-3FFHPurchases of investments by consolidated seeded
investment products, net ( 101. 4) (224. 9) (43. 9) €9F—-Purchases of property, equipment and software (10. 1) (10. 8) (17. 6}
46—+4-) Cash recelved (pald) on qettled %eed capltal hedgei net ( 10 7) ( 37.5)75. 9 Acquisitions, net 270y Reeeipt-of cash
acquired (126 eonting R pay e es0- 2-9) — — 274 ong- term note with Intech —
3.1(15.9) —Proceeds from 9ale of -I-nteeh—subs1d1ar1es — 14 9 Other —Dividends-reeetved-fromequity-method
tvestments-0. 7 0. 9 0. 5 +2-Cash provided by (used for) investing activities $ ( 285. 4) $ (328.9) $ 58. 5§ (283. 3) We......
purchases) of investments, net. We consolidate certain seeded investment products into our group financial statements. The
purchases and sales of investments within consolidated seeded investment products are disclosed separately from our capital
contributions to seed a product. We also maintain an economic hedge program that uses derivative instruments to mitigate
against market exposure of certain seeded investments. The cash received and paid as part of this program is reflected in the
table above. 3>We periodically add new investment strategies to our investment product offerings by providing the initial cash
investment,or seeding,in a product.The primary purpose of seeded investment products is to generate an investment performance
track record in these products,and leverage that track record to attract third- party investors.We may redeem our seed capital
investments for a variety of reasons,including when third- party investments in the relevant product are sufficient to sustain the
investment strategy.The cash associated with seeding and redeeming seeded investment products is reflected in the above table
as sales (purchases) of investments,net . The transactions discussed above represent a majority of the activity within investing
activities on our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Additionally, for the year ended December 31, 2024, cash used for
investing activities was also driven by acquisitions. Refer to Note 3 — Acquisitions and Dispositions, in Part II, Item 8,
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for further information on our acquisitions. Financing Activities Cash
used for financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and-2624-, was as follows (in millions):
Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2624-Dividends paid to shareholders $ ( 250. 1) $ (258. 7) $ (259. 4 ¥$256-90-)
Third- party capital invested into consolidated seeded investment products, net 123. 1 227. 2 51. 1 488—=3-Purchase of common
stock for stock- based compensation plans ( 79. 8) (57. 4) (113 =8H-. 8) Purchase of common stock for the share buyback
program and-fremDat-(208. 2) (61. 9) (98. 9) Issuance of long - term debt 394 1eh1—]:rfe—€6—1— 9 )—— Repayment of current
portion of long- term debt ( 98-304. 0) — — Other (0.3) (1.1) 1.9 F-Ste 3
3043125 0ther- 4-—2-4H--0)-Cash used for financing activities $ ( 324 4) $ ( 151 9) $ (419 —H—$—688— 1) The
majority of cash flows within financing activities are driven by the payment of dividends to shareholders, ané-the purchases of
common stock as part of the Corporate Buyback Program and for stock- based compensation plans , and third- party capital
invested into consolidated seeded investment products Buﬂﬂg—For the year ended December 31, %92—1—2024 we-cash flows
within financing activities were also driven by purehased-sha as-part-of-thc Dat—iehiHife
seeondary-publie-offering-repayment of the 2025 Senior Notes and the issuance of the 2034 Senlor Notes Thlrd party
capital invested into consolidated seeded investment products, net i8-an WS :
aetivittes—This-aetivity-represents the cash received from third- party investors in a qeeded investment product that is




consolidated into our group financial statements. When a third- party investor redeems the investment, a cash outflow is
disclosed as a distribution. Other Sources olequldlty On June 30, 2023, we entered 1nt0 a ﬁew—$ 200 mllhon unqeeured
revolving credit facility (*“ Credit Facility ) and A A aetity sHS-eX A-da
The rew-Credit Facility includes an option for us to request an increase to our borrownlg capaelty under the Credlt F aelhty of up
to an additional § 50. 0 million. The maturity date of the Credit Facility is June 30, 2628-2029 . The Credit Facility may be used
for general corporate purposes and bears interest on borrowings outstanding at the relevant interbank offer rate plus a spread.
The Credit Facility contains a financial covenant related to our long- term credit rating and financing leverage. If our long- term
credit rating fat-falls below a predefined threshold, our financing leverage ratio cannot exceed 3. 00x EBITDA. At the latest
practicable date before the date of this report, we were in compliance with all covenants, and there were no outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Facility. Refer to Note 11 — Debt, in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data, for further information on the Credit Facility. Regulatory Capital We are subject to regulatory oversight by the SEC,
FINRA, CFTC, FCA and other international regulatory bodies. We strive to ensure that we are compliant with our regulatory
obligations at all times. Our primary capital requirement relates to the FCA- supervised regulatory group (a sub- group of our
company), comprising Janus Henderson (UK) Holdings Limited, all of its subsidiaries and Janus Henderson Investors
International Limited (“ JHIIL ). JHIIL is included as a connected undertaking to meet the requirements of the Investment Firm
Prudential Regime (“ IFPR ) for MiFID investment firms (“ MIFIDPRU ”). The combined capital requirement is £ +36-159 . &
2 million ($443-199 . 4 million), resulting in £ 322-275. 8 million ($ 345 . 4 million {$-4H-—-0-millien) of capital above the
requirement as of December 31, 2823-2024 , based upon internal calculations and taking into account the effect of foreseeable
dividends. Capital requirements in other jurisdictions are not significant in aggregate. The FCA- supervised regulatory group is
also subject to liquidity requirements and holds a sufficient surplus above these requirements. Contractual Obligations
Contractual obligations and associated maturities relate to debt, interest payments and finance and operating leases. As of
December 31, 2623-2024 , our contractual obligations related to debt and interest payments totaled $ 323-611 . 2-3 million, with
$44-21 . 68 million of interest payable within 12 months. As of December 31, 2623-2024 , we had operating and finance lease
payment obligations of $ 82-106 . 4-3 million, with $ 24-18 . 2-0 million payable within 12 months Short Term L1qu1d1ty
-Reqtﬂfefﬂeﬂts—Seme-e-PConmderatlons On October 31 2023 our

Board of Directors separately-approved the repureha%e of up to 4 mllhon additional shares of common %tock for the purpo%e of
making grants to executives and employees at any time prior to the date of our 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders, which was held on May 1, 2024 . During the-fourth-quarter2623-2024 | we didnotpurehase-repurchased any
2,268, 376 sharcs of common stock related-to-remuneratiomrarrangements-or-for employee-entittements-$ 70. 0 million . The

payment of cash dividends is within the discretion of our Board of Directors and depends on many factors, including our results
of operations, financial condition, capital requirements, general business conditions and legal requirements. Dividends declared
and paid during the year ended December 31, 2823-2024 , were as follows: Dividend Date Dividends paid Date per share
declared (in US $ millions) paid $ 0. 39 Febraary+-January 31 , 2023-2024 $ 64-63 . 7-2 February 28, 2023-2024 $ 0. 39 May 2
1,2623-2024 $64-62 . 6 May 29,2024 $ 0. 39 July 31, 2623-2024 $ 9-62 . 39-3 August 428 , 2023-2024 $-64F August36;
2023-5 0. 39 October 34-30 , 20623-2024 $ 64-62 . 7-0 November 38-27 |, 2623-2024 On January 34-30 , 2624-2025 , our Board of
Directors declared a cash dividend of § 0. 39 per share. The quarterly dividend will be paid on February 2827 , 2624-2025 , to
shareholders of record at the close of business on February 42-11 , 2624-2025 . Long- Term Liquidity Regquirements
Considerations Expected long- term commitments as of Deeember 31, 2023-2024 , include principal and interest payments

related to our 2034 4-875%-Senior Notes , ¢ae-2025+(“2025-Sentor NotesJ-and-operating and finance lease payments , and
acquisition related contingent consideration . We expect to fund our long- term commitments with existing cash and cash

generated from opelatlon% or by aece%%lng capltal and credlt markets as neceqsary 5Phe—292§—SeﬂteiLNetes—have—a—pfme1—pa+

Anangementi As ofDeeember 31, %92—3—2024 we had no off balance sheet arrangements CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND ESTIMATES Our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes have been prepared in
accordance with U. S. GAAP. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U. S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
periods. We continually evaluate the accounting policies and estimates used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. In
general, management’ s estimates are based on historical experience, information from third- party professionals, as appropriate,
and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under current facts and circumstances. Actual results could
differ from those estimates made by management. The critical accounting policies and estimates management considers critical



to understanding the consolidated financial statements relate to the areas of consolidated investment products, investments,
goodwill and intangible assets, retirement benefit plans and income taxes. These policies and estimates are considered critical
because they have a material impact, or are reasonably likely to have a material impact, on the Company’ s consolidated
financial statements because they require management to make significant judgments, assumptions or estimates. For additional
information about our accounting policies, see Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, in Part II, Item 8,
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. Consolidated Investment Products We consolidate our seeded investment
products in which we have a controlling financial interest. We have a controlling financial interest when we own a majority of
the VRE or we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE. Assessing whether a product is a VIE or a VRE involves judgment and
analysis on a structure- by- structure basis. Factors considered in this assessment include the product’ s legal organization, the
product’ s capital structure and equity ownership, and any de facto agent implications of our involvement with the product. We
consolidate seeded investment products accounted for as VREs when we are considered to control such products, which
generally exists if we have a greater than 50 % voting equity interest. We consolidate a VIE if we are the VIE’ s primary
beneficiary. The primary beneficiary of a VIE is defined as the variable interest holder that has a controlling financial interest in
the VIE. A controlling financial interest is defined as (i) the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly
impact its economic performance and (ii) the obligation to absorb losses of the product or the right to receive benefits from the
product that potentially could be significant to the VIE. VIEs are generally subject to consolidation by us when we hold an
economic interest of greater than 9 % and we deconsolidate such VIEs once equity ownership falls at or below 9 %. VIEs are
also subject to specific disclosure requirements. See Note 4 — Consohdatlon in Part Il Item 8, F 1nanc1a1 Statements and
Supplementary Data, for more information. Malue ; Ar-a ; Rera

As%ets The reeognltlon and measurement of goodwill and 1ntang1b1e assets require significant management estimates and
judgment, including the valuation and expected life determination in connection with the initial purchase price allocation and the
ongoing evaluation for impairment. The jadgmentexereised-by-initial estimated fair value of indefinite lived and definite
lived intangible assets is based on the present value of estimated future cash flows attributable to the agreements and
contracts. Slgnlﬁcant assumptlons used to determlne estlmated fair value include AUM, investment management fee n
Ve 6 wih-rates, fund-discount rates, and expenses. The estimated
falr Value of trade names is determined using the rellef from royalty on the present value of estimated future cash flow
flows . Significant assumptions ;-expeeted-margins-used to determine fair value align with the aforementioned assumptions
for indefinite lived and eests-definite lived intangible assets, however, assumptions also include the royalty rate to
determine the estimated fair value of trade names. We believe the assumptions used to determine the estimated fair value
are reasonable, however, they are inherently uncertain and unpredictable and thus they may differ from actual results .
Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired businesses and is not
amortized. Indefinite lived intangible assets primarily represent investment management agreements and trademarks. Investment
management agreements without a contractual termination date are classified as indefinite- lived intangible assets based upon
the following: (i) there is no legal or statutory limitation on the contract period to manage these investment products; (ii) we
expect to, and have the ability to, operate these investment products indefinitely; (iii) the investment products have multiple
investors and are not reliant on an individual investor or small group of investors for their continued operation; (iv) the current
competitive environment does not indicate a finite life; and (v) there is a high likelihood of continued renewal based on
historical experience. The assumption that investment management agreements are indefinite lived assets is reviewed at least
annually or more frequently if facts and circumstances indicate that the useful life is no longer indefinite. Definite- lived
intangible assets represent certain other investment management contracts and trademarks , which are amortized over their
estimated lives using the straight- line method. Impairment Assessment Goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. We perform our annual impairment assessment of goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets as of October 1. If
the fair value of the sole reporting unit or intangible asset is less than the carrying amount, an impairment is recognized. Any
impairment is recognized immediately through net income and cannot subsequently be reversed. We performed our annual
assessment as of October 1, 2623-2024 . We first-eonsidered-goodwil-where-we-initially assess goodwill for impairment using
qualitative factors to determlne whether it is necessary to perform a quantitative impairment test. As part of our qualitative test,
along with considering macroeconomic conditions and the unadjusted book value per share, we performed a quantitative
calculation to estimate the enterprise value of the reporting unit, comparing it to our equity balance (carrying value). The results
of the goodwill assessment revealed it is more likely than not that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit was greater than
the carrying value as of October 1, 2823-2024 . The most significant inputs into the enterprise value assessment are our stock
price and an assumed control premium. We also assessed the indefinite- lived intangible assets for impairment as of October 1.
We used a qualitative approach to determine the likelihood of impairment, with AUM being the focus of the assessment. After
reviewing the results of the qualitative assessment, there were no indicators of impairment. Our definite- lived intangible assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. There were no events or changes in circumstances during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 . Retirement
Benefit Plans We provide certain employees with retirement benefits through defined benefit plans. The defined benefit




obligation is determined annually by independent qualified actuaries using the projected unit credit method and is measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate based on AA- rated corporate bond yields of
appropriate duration. The plan assets are recognized at fair value. The funded status of the defined benefit pension plan (*“ plan
), being the resulting surplus or deficit of defined benefit assets less liabilities, is recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets, net of any taxes that would be deducted at source. Actuarial gains and losses arise as a result of differences between
actual experience and actuarial assumptions. We have adopted the ““ 10 % corridor ” method for recognizing actuarial gains and
losses. This means that cumulative actuarial gains or losses up to an amount equal to 10 % of the higher of the liabilities and the
assets of the scheme (““ corridor ) have no immediate impact on net income and are instead recognized through other
comprehensive income. Cumulative gains or losses greater than this corridor are amortized to net income over the average
future lifetime of inactive members of the plan on the grounds that there are no further active members of the plans remaining.
Net periodic benefit cost is recorded as a component of net income in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
and includes service cost, interest cost and the expected return on plan assets. The net periodic benefit costs efand period- end
obligations under defined benefit pension plans are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves
making a number of assumptions, including those related to the discount rate, the expected rate of return on assets, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long- term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to
significant uncertainty. The table below shows the movement in funded status that would result from certain sensitivity changes
(in millions): Hypothetical decrease in funded status at December 31, 2623-2024 Discount rate:- 0. 1 % $ 6-5 . 2-0 Inflation: 0. 1
% $ 1. 51 Life expectancy: 1 year at age 65 $ 4715 . 2-0 Market value of return seeking portfolio falls 25 % $ 40 . 5-3 Income
Taxes We operate in several countries, states and other taxing jurisdictions through various subsidiaries and branches, and must
allocate income, expenses and earnings under the various laws and regulations of each of these taxing jurisdictions.
Accordingly, the provision for income taxes represents the total estimate of the liability that we have incurred for doing business
each year in all of the locations. We file tax returns annually that represent filing positions within each jurisdiction and settle
return liabilities. Each jurisdiction has the right to audit those returns and may take different positions with respect to income
and expense allocations and taxable earnings determinations. Because the determinations of the annual provisions are subject to
judgments and estimates, it is possible that actual results will vary from those recognized in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. As a result, it is likely that additions to, or reductions of, income tax expense will occur each year for prior
reporting periods as actual tax returns and tax audits are settled. In the assessment of uncertain tax positions, significant
management judgment is required to estimate the range of possible outcomes and determine the probability, on a more likely
than not basis, of favorable or unfavorable tax outcomes and the potential interest and penalties related to such unfavorable
outcomes. Actual future tax consequences on settlement of our uncertain tax positions may be materially different than
management’ s current estimates. As of December 31, 2023-2024 , unrecognized tax benefits were $ 28. 49 million. Deferred
tax assets, net of any associated valuation allowance, have been recognized based on management’ s belief that taxable income
of the appropriate character, more likely than not, will be sufficient to realize the benefits of these assets over time. In the event
that actual results differ from expectations, or if historical trends of positive operating income change, we may be required to
record a valuation allowance on some or all of these deferred tax assets, which may have a significant effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. In assessing whether a valuation allowance should be established against a deferred income
tax asset, we consider the nature, frequency and severity of recent losses, forecasts of future profitability and the duration of
statutory carryback and carryforward periods, among other factors. ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK The following information describes the key aspects of certain items for which we
are exposed to market risk. Management Fees Management fee revenues are generally based upon a percentage of the market
value of AUM and are calculated as a percentage of either the daily, month- end or quarter- end average asset balance in
accordance with contractual agreements. Accordingly, fluctuations in the financial markets have a direct effect on our operating
results. Although fluctuations in the financial markets have a direct effect on our operating results, AUM may outperform or
underperform the financial markets. As such, quantifying the impact of correlation between AUM and our operating results
would be misleading. Performance Fees Performance fee revenue is derived from a number of funds and clients. As a result, our
revenues are subject to volatility beyond market- based fluctuations discussed in the Management Fees section above.
Performance fees are specified in certain fund and client contracts and are based on investment performance either on an
absolute basis or compared to an established index over a specified period of time. Certain U. S. mutual funds contracts allow
for negative performance fees where there is underperformance against the relevant index. In many cases, performance fees are
subject to an-a HWM. Performance fees are recognized at the end of the contractual period (typically monthly, quarterly or
annually). Our performance fees depend on internal performance and market trends, and are, therefore, subject to volatility year-
over- year. We recognized performance fees of $ 70. 4 million, $ 5. 1 million, and $ (10. 7) mithenrand-$+62—Fmillion for the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024- respectively. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, our
AUM subject to performance fees totaled $ 110. 0 billion and $ 94. 5 bithenrand-$7F4—Fbillion, respectively. At December 31,
2623-2024 , we were exposed to market price risk as a result of investments in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following
is a summary of the effect that a hypothetical 10 % increase or decrease in market prices would have on our current investments
subject to market price fluctuations as of December 31, 2623-2024 (in millions): Fair value Fair value assuming a 10 %
assuming a 10 % Fair value increase decrease Current investments: Seeded investment products (including VIEs) $ 696-803 . 5
6 $766-884.0 $ 723 . 2 $626-—9-Investments related to deferred compensation plans 42-29 . 843-8 32 . 246-8 26 . 8 Other
investments 5. 8 6 . +8-4 5 . 2 9F3-Total current investments $ 746-839 . 6-2 § 788-923.1 $ 755 . 3 $-644-9-Certain
investments include debt securities that contribute to the achievement of defined investment objectives. Debt securities are
exposed to interest rate risk and credit risk. Movement in interest rates and credit risk would be reflected in the value of the
securities; refer to the quantitative analysis above. Derivative Instruments Derivative Instruments Used to Hedge Seeded



Investment Products We maintain an economic hedge program that uses derivative instruments to mitigate against market
exposure of certain seeded investments by using index and commodity futures (*“ futures ) , contracts for difference , credit
default swaps and total return swaps. Certain foreign currency exposures associated with our seeded investment products are
also hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts and-swaps-. We were party to the following derivative instruments as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2022-in millions): Notional value December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023
Futures and contracts for difference $ 789.0 $ 1, 018. 0 $496-8-Credit default swaps $ 148.5 $ 199. 7 $H53Total return
swaps $ 69.7 $ 51. 8 $3F2-Foreign currency forward contracts and-swaps-$ 328. 2 § 176. 2 $43+-FChanges in fair value of
derivative instruments are recognized during the period in which they occur in investment gains (losses), net in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. Derivative Instruments — Foreign Currency Hedging Program We maintain a foreign
currency hedging program to take reasonable measures to minimize the income statement effects of foreign currency
remeasurement of monetary balance sheet accounts. The program uses foreign currency forward contracts and swaps to achieve
its objectives, and it is considered an economic hedge for accounting purposes. The notional value of the foreign currency
forward contracts and swaps was $ 38. 4 million and $ 65. 3 miienand-$F4—F-million at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622, respectively. Changes in fair value of the derivatives are recognized in other non- operating income (expense) , net in our
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Foreign Currency Exchange Risk Foreign currency risk is the risk that we
will sustain losses through adverse movements in foreign currency exchange rates, where we transact in currencies that are
different from our functional currency. Our foreign currency exposure is primarily associated with GBP, AUD and EUR. As our
functional currency is USD, we are exposed to foreign currency risk through our exposure to non- USD income, expenses,
assets and liabilities of our overseas subsidiaries, as well as net assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than USD.
We manage our currency exposure by monitoring foreign currency positions. We seek to naturally offset exposures where
possible and actively hedge certain exposures on a case- by- case basis. ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA Index to Financial Statements Page Financial Statements: Report of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm — PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PCAOB ID 238) 43-39 Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting 45-41 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 42 and-2022-46-Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 43 and2024-47Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 --and 2022 44 and-2024-48-Consolidated Statements
of Changes in Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 45 and-262+49-Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements $8-46 Financial Statement Schedules: All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or are
insignificant, or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto. 42Repert-38Report
of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Janus Henderson Group plc
Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting We have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of Janus Henderson Group plc and its subsidiaries (the <" Company 2" ) as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2622-, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2623-2024 , including the related notes (collectively referred to as
the <" consolidated financial statements 2" ). We also have audited the Company' s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 and2022-, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2623-2024 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31,2623-2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO. Basis for
Opinions The Company' s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements and on the Company' s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U. S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. Definition and Limitations of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external



purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’ s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 43Critteat--
39Critical Audit Matters The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the
consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i)
relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter
below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Acquisition
Impairment-Assessmentof Geodwil-Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC (VPC)- Valuation of Certain Investment
Management Contracts As descr1bed in Notes 2-3 and $-10 to the consohdated financial statements, On t-l&e—@empa-ﬂy—has—&

impat i ctober 1 e-ﬂe&eh—ye&r— 2024 the Company completed the acqu1s1t10n of
VPC The purchase prlce or-for mere—frequefﬁlyﬂ-ﬁeh&ngeﬁn—erretuﬁstaﬂees—mdieate—ﬂ%&&the VPC acquisition was allocated
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon the-their earrying-estimated fair value-values at may-be-impaired:
H-the date of the transaction. The fair valuc of istessthan-the earryingnet intangible assets acquired in the VPC
acquisition was $ 54. 0 million, of which a significant portion relates to certain investment management contracts.
Management measured the fair value ;-animpairmentisrecognized-of intangible assets on initial recognition based on the
present value of estlmated future cash ﬂows As—d-lselesed-Slgmﬁcant assumptlons used by mamgement —maﬁagemeﬁt—s

discount rates, a-n—and expenses @ P :

for our determination that performing procedules relatmg to the valuatlon -rmpa-rﬂﬁeﬁt—asse&sﬁ&eﬂt—of geedwrl-l—certaln
investment management contracts acquired in the acquisition of VPC is a critical audit matter are (1) the significant
Judgment by management when developing the fair value estimate of certain investment management contracts acquired;

the-enterprise-value-of the-reporting-unit-and-(i1) a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing

procedures and evaluating management’ s significant assumption-assumptions rclated to AUM, the assumed-eontrotpremitnt
investment management fee rate, the discount rate, and expenses; and (iii) the audit effort involved the use of

professionals with specialized skill and knowledge . Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating
audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures

included testing the effectiveness of controls relating to management” s valuation impairmentassessment-of goodwillineluding
eontrols-over-developing certain investment management contracts acquired in the VPC acquisition fair-vatae-estimate-of

the-enterprise-vatue-of thereportingunit-. These procedures also included, among others (i ) reading the purchase agreement;

(ii ) testing management’ s process for developing the fair value estimate of certain investment management contracts

acqulred (111) evaluatlng the eﬂterpﬂse-approprlateness of the present value method efthe-reperting-unit; ( iv iH-evaluating

) testing the completeness and accuracy of the

underlying ddta used n present t-he—market—value appfeaeh—method and (#Vv ) evaluating the reasonableness of the significant

assumptierrassumptions used by management related to AUM, the assumed-eontrotpremitm-investment management fee
rate, the discount rate, and expenses . Evaluating management’ s assumption-assumptions related to related to AUM, the

assumed-eontrol-premiumrinvestment management fee rate, and expenses involved evalaating-considering (i) industry

knowledge and data° (ii) current and past performance on the certain investment management contracts, and (111)

Profess10nals w1th speclahzed Sklll and knowledge were used to as51st in evaluating (i) the approprlateness of the present
value method and (ii) the reasonableness of the discount rate assumption . / s / PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Denver,
Colorado February 27, 2024-2025 We have served as the Company’ s auditor since 2019. 44Management40Management * s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting JHG management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over JHG’ s financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934. JHG’ s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls



may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. JHG management has assessed the effectiveness of JHG” s internal control over financial reporting as of December
31,2023-2024 . In making its assessment of internal control over financial reporting, JHG management used the framework set
forth in the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013). Based on the assessment using those criteria, JHG management determined that as of December 31, 2023-2024 , JHG’ s
internal control over financial reporting was effective. JHG” s independent registered public accounting firm,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, audited the effectiveness of JHG’ s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
20623-2024 , as stated in I[tem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. February 27, 2624-2025 45JANUGS-41JANUS
HENDERSON GROUP PLC CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Dollars in Millions, Except Share Data) December 31,
December 31, 2024 2023 2022-ASSETS Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents $ 1, 217.2 $ 1, 152. 4 $-Investments 337. |
62 3Hnvestments-334. 2 264—6-Fees and other receivables 356. 6 294. 0 252—9—OE1C and unit trust receivables 68. 7 94. 6 65-
FAssets of consolidated VIEs: Cash and cash equivalents 17. 6 15. 7 +4-Investments 502 . | Investments-382. 4 334—3-Other
current assets 5. 7 7 . 8 3—6-Other current assets 134. 5 174. 5 $26-3-Total current assets 2, 639. 5 2, 455. 6 2;244—8-Non-
current assets: Property, equipment and software, net 39. 4 44. 2 5+—8-Intangible assets, net 2, 43+473 . 3 2, 4+4-431 . 73
Goodwill 1, 550. 4 1, 290. 3 4,253+ Retirement benefit asset, net 70. 3 87. 6 9F-9-Other non- current assets 190. 2 187. 6 205
S-Total assets $ 6, 963.1 $ 6, 496. 6 $-6;2378-LIABILITIES Current liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $
266.1 $ 231. 4 $232-6-Current portion of accrued compensation, benefits and staff costs 388. 6 297. 9 389-8-OEIC and unit
trust payables 75. 6 98. 5 #2—8-Liabilities of consolidated VIEs: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4. 7 3. 2 4=3-Total
current liabilities 735. 0 631. 0 6+8—5-Non- current liabilities: Accrued compensation, benefits and staff costs 38. 8 45. 0 465
Long- term debt 395. 0 304. 6 367—5-Deferred tax liabilities, net 569. 3 570. 8 574—6Retirement-benefitobligations;net 233~
B-Other non- current liabilities 87141 . 4-98-9 89 . 8-7 Total liabilities 1, 880. 0 1, 641. | 5-64+3-Commitments and
contingencies (See Note 19) REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 365. 0 317. 2 233-9-EQUITY Common
stock, $ 1. 50 par value; 480, 000, 000 shares authorized, and 158, 126, 855 and 163, 338, 035 and465;657-905-shares issued
and outstanding as of December 31, 2623-2024 , and December 31, 2022-2023 , respectively 237. 2 245. 0 248-5-Additional
paid- in- capital 3, 722-745 . 3 3, 706-722 . 6-3 Treasury shares, 36, 171 and 41, 444 and342,469-shares held at December 31,
2623-2024 , and December 31, 26222023 , respectively ( 0. 9) (1. 1 383-) Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax (
485. 2) (563. 6 364%F) Retained earnings 1, 095.1 1, 135. 5 -660-—FTotal shareholders” equity 4, 591. 5 4, 538. | 43598
Nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 126. 6 0. 2 2-8-Total equity 4, 718. 1 4, 538. 3 4;362—6-Total liabilities, redeemable
noncontrolling interests and equity $ 6, 963. 1 $ 6, 496. 6 $6;237-8-The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements. JANUS HENDERSON GROUP PLC CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Dollars in Millions, Except Per Share Data) Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2624+
Revenue: Management fees $ 1,957.7 $1,700. 1 $ 1, 799 —4-$2,489-. 4 Performance fees 70.4 5. 1 (10. 7) +62-7-Sharcowner
servicing fees 240.7 213. 3 224. 0 260-FOther revenue 204. 4 183. 3 190. 9 244—2-Total revenue 2, 473.2 2, 101. 8 2, 203. 6
2-767-6-Operating expenses: Employee compensation and benefits 716. 1 593. 3 611. 5 693—3-Long- term incentive plans 166.
6 167. 4 180. 7 +84-0-Distribution expenses 520. 9 455. 9 498. 3 554—-Investment administration 58. 2 47. 4 49. 4 546
Marketing 40. 4 36. 6 27. 1 3+=FGeneral, administrative and occupancy 300. 8 294. 6 279. 3 2H=8-Impairment of intangible
assets — — 35. 8 #2493-Depreciation and amortization 24. 5 22. 9 31 —#48-. 7 Total operating expenses 1, 827.51,618. 1 1,
713. 8 5946—+4-Operating income 645. 7 483. 7 489. 8 820-9-Interest expense ( 18.0) (12. 7) (12. 6 H42-8-) Investment gains
(losses), net 70. 8 43. 4 (113. 3) 88-Other non- operating income (expense) , net (86. 6) 12. 6 11. 5 88-Income before taxes
611.9 527.0375. 4 8FFFIncome tax provision ( 166. 3) ( 100. 3) (100. 9 H205-3-) Net income 445. 6 426. 7 274. 5 6424
Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests ( 36. 7) (34. 7) 97. 9 #-6-Net income attributable to JHG § 408. 9 $
392.0 $ 372. 4 $-620-0-Earnings per share attributable to JHG common shareholders: Basic $ 2. 57 $ 2. 37 $ 2. 23 $3-59
Diluted $ 2. 56 $ 2. 37 $ 2. 23 $3-57-Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax: Foreign currency translation gains (losses)
$ H04-5-$( 22552. 6) $ 96. 8 $ (221. 0) Reclassification of foreign currency translation to net income 138 . 1 3$4.7 (564 .
1) Actuarial losses ( 12. 6) ( 14. 3) (37. 6 H22—4-) Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 72.9 87. 2 (262. 7 HF25)
Other comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests 5. 5 (3. 1) 2. 0 8—~4-Other comprehensive income
(loss) attributable to JHG $ 78.4 § 84. 1 § (260. 7 ¥$723) Total comprehensive income $ 518.5$513.9 $ 11. 8 $539-9
Total comprehensive loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests ( 31. 2) (37. 8) 99. 9 8-6-Total comprehensive
income attributable to JHG $ 487.3 $476. 1 $ 111. 7 $5479-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Dollars
in Millions) Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 202+-CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED FOR): Operating
activities: Net income $ 445, 6 $ 426. 7 § 274. 5 $-6324-Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities: Depreciation and amortization 24. § 22. 9 31 —748-. 7 Impairment of intangible assets — — 35. 8§ 424—9-Deferred
income taxes 2.4 (6. 1) (14. 3 322 Stock- based compensation plan expense 71.7 77. 4 90. 6 68-Reclassification of foreign
currency translation to net income 138 . 2-1 4. 7 (4. 1) Loss on sale of Intech — — 9. 1 —Provision for credit losses and
contingent con§1derat10n adjustment% — 23 7 Investment losqe% (galns) net (70. 8) (43.4) 113. 3 Other, net (6-11 . 1)
(9. 1) (8 yContrib pen 0 O+ 2 Other;net(5—H-9—1H+8—4) Changes in
operating assets and hablhtleq OEIC and unit trust recelvables and payable% (—3 0 (3 2) (0. 7) +-8-Other assets ( 12. 2) (25. 2)
41. 6 44—5)-Other accruals and liabilities 103 22-. 4 - +66-26 . +8 ) +65-(96 . 9-0) Net operating activities 694. 6 441. 6 473.
3 895—4-Investing activities: Sales (purchases) of: Investments, net ( 37.0) (59. 7) 44. 6 Property, equipment and software (
17710 . 1) Propertyequipment-and-software-10. 8) (17. 6 HH0-4) Investments by consolidated seeded investment products,
net (101. 4) (224.9) (43. 9 H9F+4) Cash recelved (paid) on qettled %eed capltal hedgei net ( 10 7) ( 37.5)75. 9 Acquisitions,
net of cash acquired (27126 . 6-9 ) — — Div A

with Intech — 3. 1 (15. 9) —Proceeds from sale of qubsldlarleq —— 14 9 Other —Reeei-pt—e-ﬁeeﬁt—l-ngeﬁt—eeﬁﬂdefaﬁeﬂ




pa*y&ﬁeﬁ-ts—freﬂa—sa-le—e-ﬁﬁtbﬁd-taﬂes-o 70 H—’,’— 4—9 0. 5 Net 1nve§t1ng activities ( 285. 4) (328. 9) 58. 5 €83—3)Financing

activities: —5-Purchase of common stock for stock- based
compensation plan@ ( 79 8) (57. 4) (1 13 —8)—(—7—1— 8) Purchaie of common stock for the share buyback program (208. 2) and

fremPat—ehiEife-(01. 9) (98. 9 H392—+) Dividends paid to shareholders ( 250. 1) (258. 7) (259. 4) 2560 Revolvingeredit

faetlity-issuanee-Issuance eosts(+of long- term debt 394 . 9 - — Distributions-te-noneontrotlinginterests-Repayment of
current portion of long- term debt ( 304 2631+ 0) — —(9%)—Th1rd party capltal invested 1nto con@ohdated 9eeded

investment products, net 123.1227.2 51. 1 +66-Other, net (0 . 3 P y
1)1¢6- 95)yNet financing activities ( 324.4) (151. 9) (419 —588-. 1) Ca@h and Caqh equlvalentq Efrect of forelgn exchange
rate changes (18. 1) 30. 9 (54. 9 ¥43-5-) Net change 66. 7 (8. 3) 57. 8 #8-5-At beginning of period 1, 168.1 1, 176.4 1, 118. 6
+198+-Atend of period $ 1,234.8$ 1, 168. 1 $ 1, 176. 4 $34H8-6-Supplemental cash flow information: Cash paid for
interest $ +4-18 . 65§ 14. 6 $ 14. 6 Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds $ 133.3 § 104. 3 § 140. 7 $247F-6-Reconciliation
of cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,217.2$1, 152. 4 $ 1, 162 -3-$4+14067. 3 Cash and cash
equivalents held in consolidated VIEs 17. 6 15. 7 14. 1 3-3-Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,234.8$1,168.1$1,176.4 %
+H8-6-CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Amounts in Millions) Accumulated Additional
other Nonredeemable Number of Common paid- in Treasury comprehensive Retained noncontrolling Total shares stock capital

qhare% loqs earnings 1ntere§t§ equlty Balance at January 1 %92—1—2022 +89—4—$€49—6—$—3—8—1§—9—$—&97—3)—$—(—3+4—9)—$—1—939—8

—l%%—l%—Bﬂ}&ﬂee-&t—BeeefﬁbeHHG%I—MQ 0$253 6$3 771. 8$(55 1)$(387 O)$1 040 2$15 454,

638. 9 Net income¢ — — — — — 372.4 — 372. 4 Other comprehensive loss — — — — ( 266-256 . 76 ) — — ( 266-256 . 7-6)
Reclassification of foreign currency translation to net income — — — — (4. 1) — — (4. 1) Dividends paid to shareholders
($ 1. 55 per share) — — 0. 1 — —(259.5) — (259. 4) Purchase of common stock for the Share-share buyback program (3. 3)
(5.1) ———1(93. 8) — (98. 9) Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (1. 0) (1. 0) Sale of Intech — — —
— ——(11.6) (11. 6) Fair value adjustments to redeemable noncontrolling interests — — — — — 1.4 — 1. 4 Purchase of
common stock for stock- based compensation plans — — (105. 0) (8. 8) — — — (113. 8) Vesting of stock- based compensation
plans — — (55. 2) 55. 6 — — — 0. 4 Stock- based compensation plan expense — — 90. 6 — — — —90. 6 Proceeds from
stock- based compensation plans — — 4.3 — — — — 4. 3 Balance at December 31, 2022 165.7 $248.5$3,706.6$ (8.3) $
(647.7)$1,060.7$2.88%4,362. 6 Netincome —— — — — 392. 0 — 392. 0 Other comprehensive income — — — — 84
79.4 —— 79 4 Reclassification of foreign currency translation to net income — — ——4. 7 — — 4. 7 Dividends paid

to shareholders ($ 1. 56 per share) — — 0 . | — — 844 Dividendspatd-te-sharcholders{( 258 $1- 56per8) — (258.7)
Purchase of common stock for the share y———0—4——2588)—258-H-Share-buyback program (2. 4) (3. 5) — — —
(58.4) — (61. 9) Distributions to noncontrolling interests — — — — — — (2. 6) (2. 6) Purchase of common stock for stock-
based compensation plans — — (56. 4) (1. 0) — — — (57. 4) Vesting of stock- based compensation plans — — (8. 4) 8.2 —
— — (0. 2) Stock- based compensation plan expense — — 77. 4 — — ——77. 4 Proceeds from stock- based compensation
plans — — 3. 0 — — — — 3. 0 Balance at December 31,2023 163.3 $245.0$3,722.3$(1.1) $(563.6)$1,135.5$0.2 %
4,538. 3 Net income (loss) — — — — — 408. 9 (0. 9) 408. 0 Other comprehensive loss — — — — (589.7) — — (589. 7)
Reclassification of foreign currency translation to net income — — — — 138. 1 — — 138. 1 Dividends paid to
shareholders ($ 1. 56 per share) —— — — — (250. 1) — (250. 1) Purchase of common stock for the share buyback
program (6. 0) (9. 0) — — — (199. 2) — (208. 2) Acquisition of VPC 0. 8 1. 2 29. 9 — — — 127. 3 158. 4 Purchase of
common stock for stock- based compensation plans — — (78. 6) (1. 2) — — — (79. 8) Vesting of stock- based
compensation plans — — (1. 4) 1. 4 — — — 0. 0 Stock- based compensation plan expense — —71. 7 — —— —71. 7
Proceeds from stock- based compensation plans — — 1.4 — — — — 1. 4 Balance at December 31, 2024 158.1 $ 237.2 §
3,745.35(0.9) $(485.2) $1,095.1$126.6 $4,718.1 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 — Description of the Business As used herein, “ JHG, ” “ we, ” “ us, ” “ our ” and similar terms refer to Janus Henderson
Group plc and its subsidiaries, unless indicated otherwise. JHG is an independent global asset manager, specializing in active
investment across all major asset classes. We actively manage a broad range of investment products for institutional and retail
investors across four capabilities: Equities, Fixed Income, Multi- Asset and Alternatives. JHG is a public limited company
incorporated in Jerqey, Channel Islands, and is tax- reqldent and domrcrled in the UK. Our common stock is traded on the

-Beeeﬂabe%é—%@%—we—dehsted—freﬂh‘s—S%@Note 2— Summary of Slgnlhcant Accountlng POllCle§ Ba@lq of Pre%entatlon Our
consolidated financial statements have been prepared according to U. S. GAAP and include all majority- owned subsidiaries and
consolidated seeded investment products. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Events
subsequent to the balance sheet date have been evaluated for inclusion in the accompanying consolidated financial statements
through the issuance date. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation with
no effect on our consolidated net income or cash flows. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Recently adopted accounting
pronouncements In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASB ) issued ASU 2023- 07, “ Segment
Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures, ” to require disclosure of certain significant segment
expenses. ASU 2023- 07 is effective for our annual periods beginning January 1, 2024, and interim periods beginning January 1,

2025. We have adopted denotexpeet-the-adoption-ofthis standard for our fiscal year 2024 annual new-guidanee-to-havea



materiabimpaet-on-the-eonsolidated-financial statements and interim financial statements thereafter and have applied this
standard retrospectively for all prior periods presented in the financial statements . Recently issued accounting
pronouncements not yet adopted [n December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 09, “ Income Taxes (Topic 740):
Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, ” to expand the disclosure requirements for income taxes, specifically related to the
rate reconciliation and income taxes paid. ASU 2023- 09 is effective for our annual periods beginning January 1, 2025. We do
not expect the adoption of this new guidance to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. In November
2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03, “ Income Statement — Reporting Comprehensive Income — Expense
Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic 220- 40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses, ” to expand disclosure
requirements about specific expense categories within the notes to the financial statements. ASU 2024- 03 is effective for
our annual period beginning January 1, 2027 and interim periods beginning January 1, 2028. Adoption of this ASU can
either be applied prospectively to consolidated financial statements issued for reporting periods after the effective date of
this ASU or retrospectively to any or all prior periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. Early adoption
is also permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact this guidance will have on the disclosures included in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Accounting Estimates The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with U. S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and the
differences could be material. Our significant estimates relate to investments, goodwill and intangible assets, retirement benefit
assets and obligations, and income taxes. Segment Information We are a global asset manager and manage a range of investment
products, operating across various product lines, distribution channels and geographic regions. However, resources are allocated
and the business is managed by the chief operating decision- maker, the CEO, on an aggregated basis. Strategic and financial
management decisions are determined centrally by the CEO and, on this basis, we operate as a single- segment investment
management business. Consolidation of Investment Products We perform periodic consolidation analyses of our seeded
investment products to determine if the product is a VIE or a VRE. Factors considered in this assessment include the product’ s
legal organization, the product’ s capital structure and equity ownership, and any de facto agent implications of our involvement
with the product. Investment products that are determined to be VIEs are consolidated if we are the primary beneficiary of the
produetproducts . VREs are consolidated if we hold the majority voting interest. Upon the occurrence of certain events (such
as contributions and redemptions, either by JHG or third parties, or amendments to the governing documents of our investment
products), management reviews and reconsiders its previous conclusion regarding the status of a product as a VIE or a VRE.
Additionally, management continually reconsiders whether we are considered a VIE’ s primary beneficiary and thus would be
required to consolidate such product or discontinue consolidation of the VIE if we are no longer considered the primary
beneficiary. Variable Interest Entities Certain investment products for which a controlling financial interest is achieved through
arrangements that do not involve or are not directly linked to voting interests are considered VIEs. We review factors, including
whether or not (i) the product has equity that is sufficient to permit it to finance its activities without additional subordinated
support from other parties and (ii) the equity holders at risk have the obligation to absorb losses, the right to receive residual
returns and the right to direct the activities of the product that most significantly impact the product’ s economic performance, to
determine if the investment product is a VIE. We reevaluate such factors as facts and circumstances change. We are the
manager of various types of seeded investment products, which may be considered VIEs. Our involvement in financing the
operations of the VIEs is generally limited to our investments in the products. VIEs are generally subject to consolidation by us
when we hold an economic interest of greater than 9 % and we deconsolidate such VIEs once equity ownership equals or falls
below 9 %. VIEs are subject to specific disclosure requirements. Voting Rights Entities We consolidate seeded investment
products accounted for as VREs when we are considered to control such products, which generally exist if we have a
greater than 50 % voting equity interest. Property, Equipment and Software Property, equipment and software are recorded
at cost. Depreciation is recorded using the straight- line method over the estimated useful life of the related assets (or the lease
term, if shorter). Computer software is recorded at cost and depreciated over its estimated useful life. Internal and external costs
incurred in connection with researching or obtaining computer software for internal use are expensed as incurred during the
preliminary project stage, as are post- implementation training and maintenance costs. Internal and external costs incurred for
internal use software during the application development stage are capitalized until such time that the software is substantially
complete and ready for its intended use. Application development stage costs are depreciated on a straight- line basis over the
estimated useful life of the software. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying value of the asset exceeds the fair value of
the asset. The amount of the impairment loss is equal to the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value. The evaluation is
based on an estimate of the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposal. If expected
future undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount
equal to the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over the fair value of the asset. There were no impairments of property,
equipment and software for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2621-. Cloud Computing Arrangements
Costs paid to vendors for third- party cloud- based hosting services are capitalized and recorded to other current assets or other
non- current assets and subsequently amortized to general, administrative and occupancy expense on a straight- line basis over
the life of the contract. Implementation costs incurred related to the cloud hosting arrangement are capitalized or expensed
depending on the nature of the costs and the project stage during which they are incurred. We capitalize costs incurred during
the application development stage to other assets and other non- current assets and subsequently amortize those costs to general,
administrative and occupancy expense on a straight- line basis over the life of the contract beginning when the asset is ready for
its intended use. Long- term debt consists of senior notes and is stated at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any issuance costs and any discount or premium on settlement. Debt will



cease to be recognized when the obligation under the liability has been discharged or cancelled or has expired. We periodically
add new investment strategies to our investment product offerings by providing the initial cash investment (*“ seed capital ). The
primary purpose of seed capital is to generate an investment performance track record in a product to attract third- party
investors. Seeded investment products are initially assessed for consolidation. If it is determined consolidation is required, the
individual securities within the portfolio are accounted for as investments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. If consolidation
is not required, the fair value is determined using the number of shares held multiplied by the share price of the respective fund.
The change in fair value of seeded investment products is recorded within investment gains (losses), net in our Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. Noncontrolling interests in consolidated seeded investment products represent third-
party ownership interests and are included within investments in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. These assets are not available
for general corporate purposes and may be redeemed by the third parties at any time. Refer to the Consolidation of Investment
Products section in this note for information regarding the consolidation of certain seeded investment products. We may redeem
invested seed capital for a variety of reasons, including when third- party investments in the relevant product are sufficient to
sustain the given investment strategy. The length of time we hold a majority interest in a product varies based on a number of
factors, including market demand, market conditions, investment performance and internal policies. Investments in Advised
Mutual Funds and Investments Related to the Economic Hedging of Deferred Compensation We grant mutual fund share awards
to employees that are indexed to certain funds managed by us. Upon vesting, participants receive the value of the mutual fund
share awards adjusted for gains or losses attributable to the mutual funds to which the award was indexed, subject to tax
withholding, or participants receive shares in the mutual fund. When investments in our fund products are purchased and held
against deferred compensation liabilities, any movement in the fair value of the assets and corresponding movements in the
deferred compensation liability are recognized within the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. We maintain
deferred compensation plans for certain highly compensated employees and members of the Board of Directors. Eligible
participants may defer a portion of their compensation and have the ability to earn a return by indexing their deferrals to mutual
funds managed by us and our subsidiaries. We make no contributions to the plans. To protect against market variability of the
liability, we create an economic hedge by investing in mutual funds that are consistent with the deferred amounts and mutual
fund elections of the participants. Such investments remain assets of JHG. Changes in market value of the liability to
participants are recognized as long- term incentive plans within our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, and
changes in the market value of the mutual fund securities are recognized within investment gains (losses), net in our
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Equity Method Investments Our investment in equity method investees,
where we do not control the investee but can exert significant influence over the financial and operating policies (generally
considered to be ownership between 20 % and 50 %), is accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Investments are
initially recognized at cost when purchased for cash or at the fair value of shares received where acquired as part of a wider
transaction. The investments are subsequently carried at cost adjusted for our share of net income or loss and other changes in
comprehensive income of the equity method investee, less any dividends or distributions received by us. The Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income includes our share of net income or loss for the year, or period of ownership, if shorter,
within investment gains (losses), net. Trade Receivables Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value, which is
normally equivalent to the invoice amount. When the time value of money is material, the fair value is discounted. Provision for
specific doubtful accounts is made when there is evidence that we may not be able to recover balances in full. Balances are
written off when the receivable amount is deemed uncollectable. OEIC and Unit Trust Receivables and Payables OEIC and unit
trust receivables and payables are in relation to the purchase of units / shares (by investors) and the liquidation of units / shares
(owned by trustees). The amounts are dependent on the level of trading and fund switches in the four working days leading up to
the end of the period. Since they are held with different counterparties, the amounts are presented gross on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents primarily consist of cash held at banks, on- demand
deposits, investments in money market instruments, highly liquid short- term debt securities and commercial paper with a
maturity date of three months or less. Cash balances maintained by consolidated VREs are not considered legally restricted and
are included within cash and cash equivalents on the Consolidated Balance Sheets while cash balances held by consolidated
VIEs are disclosed separately as a component of assets of consolidated VIEs in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Cash held in
consolidated VREs and VIEs is not available to us to use in our operations. We may, from time to time, use derivative financial
instruments to mitigate price, interest rate, foreign currency and credit risk. We do not designate derivative instruments as
hedges for accounting purposes. Derivative instruments are measured at fair value and classified as either other current assets or
accounts payable and accrued liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments
are recorded within investment gains (losses), net in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Our consolidated
seed investments may also be party to derivative instruments. These derivative instruments are disclosed separately from our
corporate derivative instruments. We determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Operating lease right- of- use (“ ROU
) assets are included in other non- current assets within our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The current and non- current portions
of operating lease liabilities are included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities and within other non- current liabilities,
respectively. Finance lease ROU assets are included within property, equipment and software, net. The current and non- current
portions of finance lease liabilities are included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities and within other non- current
liabilities, respectively. ROU assets represent our right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities
represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are
recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of our leases do
not provide a stated rate, we use our incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in
determining the present value of lease payments. The operating lease ROU asset also includes any lease payments made and
excludes lease incentives. Our lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that



the option will be exercised. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight- line basis over the lease term within
general, administrative and occupancy expense within our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Nonredeemable
Noncontrolling Interests and Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests Nonredeemable noncontrolling interests that are not subject
to redemption rights are classified in equity. Redeemable noncontrolling interests are classified outside of equity on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are measured at the estimated fair value as of the balance sheet date. Noncontrolling interests
in consolidated seed investments are classified as redeemable noncontrolling interests where there is an obligation on the fund to
repurchase units at the investor’ s request. Fair Value Measurements Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of
financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded securities and derivatives) is based on quoted market
prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial instruments is the last traded market price for both
financial assets and financial liabilities where the last traded price falls within the bid ask spread. In circumstances where the
last traded price is not within the bid ask spread, management will determine the point within the bid ask spread that is most
representative of fair value current bid price. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined using valuation techniques commonly used by market participants, including the use of comparable recent arm’ s
length transactions, discounted cash flow (“ DCF ”) analysis and option pricing models. Estimating fair value requires
significant management judgment, including benchmarking to similar instruments with observable market data and applying
appropriate discounts that reflect differences between the securities that we are valuing and the selected benchmark.
Measurements of fair value are classified within a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. The valuation hierarchy
contains three levels: ® Level 1 — Valuation inputs are unadjusted quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets; ® Level 2 — Valuation inputs are quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active, quoted market prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and other observable inputs directly or indirectly
related to the asset or liability being measured; and e Level 3 — Valuation inputs are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement. The valuation of an asset or liability may involve inputs from more than one level of the hierarchy. The
level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Level 1 Fair Value Measurements Our Level 1 fair value
measurements consist mostly of seeded investment products, investments in advised mutual funds, cash equivalents and
investments related to deferred compensation plans with quoted market prices in active markets. The fair value level of
consolidated investments held by seeded investment products is determined by the underlying securities of the product. The fair
value level of unconsolidated seeded investment products is determined by using-the-underlyinginputs-tused-in-the-eatenlationof
the NAV efeachproduet-, which is considered a quoted price in an active market . Level 2 Fair Value Measurements Our
Level 2 fair value measurements consist mostly of consolidated seeded investment products and our long- term debt. The fair
value of consolidated seeded investment products is determined by the underlying securities of the product. The fair value of our
long- term debt is determined using broker quotes and recent trading activity, which are considered Level 2 inputs. Level 3 Fair
Value Measurements Our assets and liabilities measured at Level 3 are primarily deferred compensation liabilities that are held
against investments in our fund products where the significant valuation inputs are unobservable. Details of inputs used to
calculate the fair value of contingent deferred consideration can be found in Note 10 — Fair Value Measurements in Part II,
Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurements Nonrecurring Level 3 fair value
measurements include goodwill and intangible assets. We measure the fair value of goodwill and intangible assets on initial
recognition using DCF analysis that requires assumptions regarding projected future earnings and discount rates. Because of the
significance of the unobservable inputs in the fair value measurements of these assets and liabilities, such measurements are
classified as Level 3. See the Goodwill and Intangible Assets accounting policy set forth within this note for further information.
Investments Measured at Net Asset Values As a practical expedient, the Company uses the NAV as the fair value for
certain investments. Investments in fund products for which fair value is estimated using the NAYV as a practical
expedient (when the NAYV is available to the Company as an investor but is not publicly available) are not classified in
the fair value hierarchy. We provide for current tax expense according to the tax laws in each jurisdiction in which we operate,
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recorded
for temporary differences between the financial statement and income tax basis of assets and liabilities as measured by the
enacted income tax rates that may be in effect when these differences reverse. The effect of changes in tax rates on our deferred
tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income tax within net income in the period that includes the enactment date.
Significant management judgment is required in developing our provision for income taxes, including the valuation allowances
that might be required against deferred tax assets and the evaluation of unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. We periodically assess the recoverability of our deferred tax assets and
the need for valuation allowances on these assets. We make these assessments based on the weight of available evidence
regarding possible sources of future taxable income and estimates relating to the future performance of the business that results
in taxable income. In evaluating uncertain tax positions, we consider the probability that the tax benefit can be sustained on
examination by a taxing authority on the basis of its technical merits (“ the recognition threshold ). For tax positions meeting
this threshold, the amount recognized within the financial statements is the benefit expected to be realized upon settlement with
the taxing authority on the basis of a cumulative- probability assessment of the possible outcomes. For tax positions not meeting
the recognition threshold, no financial statement benefit is recognized. We recognize the accrual of interest and penalties on
uncertain tax positions as a component of the income tax provision. Revenue Recognition Revenue is determined based on the
transaction price negotiated with the customer, net of rebates. Management fees, performance fees, shareowner servicing fees
and other revenue are derived from providing professional services to manage investment products. Management fees are earned



over time as services are provided and are generally based on a percentage of the market value of AUM. These fees are
calculated as a percentage of either the daily, month- end or quarter- end average asset balance in accordance with contractual
agreements. Performance fees are specified in certain fund and client contracts and are based on investment performance either
on an absolute basis or compared to an established index over a specified period of time. Performance fees are generated on
certain management contracts when performance hurdles or other specified criteria are achieved. Performance fees for all fund
ranges and other investment products are recognized when it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue recognized will
not occur in future periods. Certain fund contracts allow for negative performance fees where there is underperformance against
the relevant index. There are no performance fee contracts where revenue can be clawed back. There are no cumulative
revenues recognized that would be reversed if all of the existing investments became worthless. Management fees are primarily
earned monthly or quarterly, while performance fees are usually earned monthly, quarterly or annually, although the frequency
of receipt varies between agreements. Management and performance fee revenue earned but not yet received is recognized
within fees and other receivables on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Shareowner servicing fees are earned for services
rendered related to transfer agent and administrative activities performed for investment products. These services are transferred
over time and are generally based on a percentage of the market value of AUM. Other revenue includes distribution and
servicing fees earned from U. S. mutual funds associated with mutual fund transfer agent, accounting, shareholder servicing and
participant recordkeeping activities. These services are transferred over time and are generally based on a percentage of the
market value of AUM. U. S. Mutual Fund Performance Fees The investment management fee paid by each U. S. mutual fund
subject to a performance fee is the base management fee plus or minus a performance fee adjustment as determined by the
relative investment performance of the fund compared to a specified benchmark index. Under the performance- based fee
structure, the investment advisory fee paid by each fund consists of two components: (i) a base fee calculated by applying the
contractual fixed rate of the advisory fee to the fund’ s average daily net assets during the previous month, plus or minus (ii) a
performance fee adjustment calculated by applying a variable rate of up to 0. 15 % to the fund’ s average daily net assets during
the performance measurement period. The performance measurement period is a rolling 36- month period. The addition of
performance fees to all funds without such fees is subject to the approval of both a majority of the shareholders of such funds
and the funds’ independent board of trustees. Principal Versus Agent We use third- party intermediaries to fulfill certain
performance obligations in our revenue agreements. Generally, we are considered the principal in these arrangements because
we control the investment management and other related services before they are transferred to customers. Such control is
evidenced by our primary responsibility to customers, the ability to negotiate the third- party contract price and select and direct
third- party service providers, or a combination of these factors. Therefore, distribution and service fee revenues and the related
third- party distribution and service expenses are reported on a gross basis. Operating expenses are accrued and recognized as
incurred. Stock- Based Compensation We grant stock- based awards to certain employees, all of which are classified as equity
settled stock- based payments. Equity settled stock- based payments are measured at the fair value of the shares at the grant
date. The awards are expensed, with a corresponding increase in equity, on a graded basis over the vesting period. Forfeitures
are recognized as they occur. The grant date fair value for stock options is determined using the Black- Scholes option pricing
model, and the grant date fair value of restricted stock is determined from the market price on the date of grant. The Black-
Scholes model requires management to determine certain variables; the assumptions used in the Black- Scholes option pricing
model include dividend yield, expected volatility, risk- free interest rate and expected life. The dividend yield and expected
volatility are determined using historical Company data. The risk- free interest rate for options granted is based on the three-
year UK treasury coupon at the time of the grant. The expected life of the stock options is generally three years. We generally
use the Monte Carlo model to determine the fair value of performance- based awards with market conditions. The assumptions
used in the Monte Carlo model include dividend yield, share price volatility and discount rate. Commissions Commissions on
management fees are accounted for on an accrual basis and are recognized in the accounting period in which the associated
management fee is earned. Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share attributable to our shareholders is calculated by dividing
net income (adjusted for the allocation of earnings to participating restricted stock awards) by the weighted- average number of
shares outstanding. We have-ealeutated— calculate carnings per share using the two- class method. Fhere-aresome-We have
certain participating restricted stock awards that are paid non- forfeitable dividends. Under the two- class method, net income
attributable to JHG is adjusted for the allocation of earnings to participating restricted stock awards. Diluted earnings per share
is calculated in a similar way to basic earnings per share but is adjusted for the effect of potential common shares unless they are
anti- dilutive. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the identifiable net assets of acquired companies and
is capitalized within the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Intangible assets consist primarily of investment management contracts
and trademarks acquired as part of business combinations. Investment management contracts have been identified as separately
identifiable intangible assets arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses. Such contracts are recognized at the present
value of the expected future cash flows of the investment management contracts at the date of acquisition. Investment
management contracts may be classified as either indefinite- lived investment management contracts or definite- lived client
relationships. Indefinite- lived intangible assets comprise investment management agreements where the agreements are with
investment companies themselves and not with underlying investors. Such contracts are typically renewed indefinitely and,
therefore, we consider the contract life to be indefinite and, as a result, the contracts are not amortized. Definite- lived intangible
assets comprise certain other investment management contracts, client relationships and trademarks where-the-agreements

t g . Definite- lived client relationships are amortized on a straight- line basis over their remaining
useful lives. Goodwill and indefinite- lived intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. Intangible assets subject to amortization are tested
for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If the fair value of
our sole reporting unit or intangible asset is less than the carrying value, an impairment is recognized. Any impairment is



recognized immediately through net income and cannot subsequently be reversed. We have determined that we have one
reporting unit for goodwill impairment testing purposes, which is consistent with internal management reporting and
management’ s oversight of operations. We may first assess goodwill for impairment using qualitative factors to determine
whether it is necessary to perform a quantitative impairment test. Goodwill and intangible assets require significant management
estimates and judgment, including the valuation and expected life determination upon inception and the ongoing evaluation for
impairment. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the appropriate exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary balances at the reporting date are converted at the prevailing exchange rate. Foreign
currency non- monetary balances carried at fair value or cost are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
or cost is determined. Gains and losses arising on retranstatiorrremeasurement are recognized as a component of net ether
eomprehensive-income. On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of our operations for which the functional currency is not
USD are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Income and expense items are recognized at the
appropriate exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency translation differences arising, if any, are
recorded to accumulated other comprehensive income. In the period in which an operation is liquidated, translation differences
previously recognized within accumulated other comprehensive income are recognized as a component of net ether
eomprehenstve-income. Post- Employment Retirement Benefits We provide employees with retirement benefits through beth-a
defined contribution plan. Additionally, we provide a defined benefit and-contribution to certain employees; however, the
defined benefit contribution plans— plan is closed to new members . The assets of these plans are held separately from our
general assets in trustee- administered funds. Contributions to the defined contribution plan are expensed to employee
compensation and benefits on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income when they become payable. Defined
benefit obligations and the cost of providing benefits are determined annually by independent qualified actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. Our annual measurement date of the defined benefit plan is December 31. The defined benefit
obligation is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using a discount rate based on AA- rated
corporate bond yields of appropriate duration. The plan assets are recognized at fair value. The funded status of the defined
benefit pension plans (the resulting surplus or deficit of defined benefit assets less liabilities) is recognized within retirement
benefit asset, net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, net of any taxes that would be deducted at source. Actuarial gains and
losses arise as a result of the difference between actual experience and actuarial assumptions. We have adopted the 10 %
corridor method for recognizing actuarial gains and losses, which means that cumulative actuarial gains or losses up to an
amount equal to 10 % of the higher of the liabilities or assets of the scheme (the corridor) have no immediate impact on net
income and are instead recognized through other comprehensive income. Cumulative gains or losses greater than the corridor
are amortized to net income over the average future lifetime of inactive members of the plan on the grounds that there are no
further active members of the plans remaining. Net periodic benefit cost is recorded as a component of net income within the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and includes service cost, interest cost, expected return on plan assets and
any actuarial gains and losses previously recognized as a component of other comprehensive income that have been amortized in
the period. Net periodic benefit costs, with the exception of service costs, are recognized within other non- operating income
(expense) , net on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income; service costs are recognized within employee
compensation and benefits. JHG’ s ordinary shares, par value $ 1. 50 per share, are classified as equity instruments. Equity
shares issued by us are recorded at the fair value of the proceeds received or the market price on the day of issue. Direct issue
costs, net of tax, are deducted from additional paid- in- capital within equity. Treasury shares held are equity shares of JHG
acquired by or issued to employee benefit trusts. Treasury shares held are recorded at cost and are deducted from equity. No
gain or loss is recognized within the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income on the purchase, issue, sale or
cancellation of our own equity shares. Note 3 — Acquisitions and Dispositions On October 1, 2024, JHG completed the
acquisition of VPC, a global private credit manager. VPC expands our capabilities into the private markets for our
clients. JHG acquired 55 % of the voting equity interests for $ 114. 0 million, using existing cash resources, and 824, 208
shares of JHG common stock which had a closing market price of $ 37. 74 on October 1, 2024. In addition, subject to
achieving certain revenue targets, JHG will deliver earnout consideration to be payable in 2027. As of October 1, 2024
the fair value of the contingent consideration related to the acquisition of VPC was $ 25. 5 million. The maximum total
contingent consideration per the agreement is $ 111. 4 million. The purchase price for the VPC acquisition was allocated
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based upon their estimated fair values at the date of the transaction. The
goodwill recognized in connection with the acquisition is primarily attributable to anticipated growth opportunities and
synergies from the transaction. The amount of goodwill expected to be deductible for tax purposes is approximately $
130 million. A summary of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in this acquisition is as follows:
Fair Value Fees and other receivables $ 20. 8 Other current assets 0. 8 Property, equipment and software, net 2. 8
Intangible assets, net (1) 54. 0 Goodwill 251. 3 Other non- current assets 3. 6 Accounts payable and other liabilities (26. 8)
Current portion of accrued compensation (8. 5) Other non- current liabilities (4. 3) Noncontrolling interest (2) (127. 3)
Total consideration, net of cash acquired $ 166. 4 Summary of consideration, net of cash acquired: Cash paid $ 114. 0
Common stock issued 31. 1 Contingent consideration recorded 25. 5 Cash acquired (4. 2) Total consideration, net of cash
acquired $ 166. 4 (1) The fair value of the intangible assets is comprised of investment management contracts with a fair
value of $ 28. 0 million, client relationships with a fair value of $ 20. 5 million and a trademark with a fair value of $ 5. 5
million as of the acquisition date. The fair value of the investment management contracts was determined based on the
multi- period excess earnings method (a Level 3 input), has a useful life of approximately 4 years. The fair value of the
client relationships was determined based on the multi- period excess earnings method (a Level 3 input) and has a useful
life of approximately 4- 10 years. The fair value of the trademark was determined based on the relief- from- royalty
method (a Level 3 input) and has a useful life of 9 years. The useful lives are based on the individual contractual terms



and the period over which the majority of cashflows would be realized. The definite lived intangibles are amortized on a
straight- line basis over the useful life and have a weighted- average useful life of approximately 6 years. (2) The fair
value of the noncontrolling interest was determined based on an extrapolation of consideration method. Further, in
addition to our acquisition of VPC, we closed on our acquisition of a 55 % voting equity interest in Triumph Capital
Markets Holdco, LP (“ TCM ”), which represents VPC' s broker- dealer business, on February 3, 2025. The TCM
acquisition is not material to the financial statements. On July 1, 2024, JHG completed the acquisition of Tabula, a
leading independent ETF provider in Europe with an existing focus on fixed income and sustainable investment
solutions. JHG acquired 98. 8 % of the voting equity interests of Tabula. Prior to the acquisition, we held a 1. 2 %
investment in Tabula. The Tabula acquisition is not material to the financial statements. On September 19, 2024, JHG
completed the acquisition of NBK, the wealth management arm of the National Bank of Kuwait Group, whereby NBK” s
private investments team will join JHG as the firm’ s new emerging markets private capital division. JHG has acquired
100 % of the voting equity interests of NBK. Following the closing of the acquisition, NBK was rebranded as Janus
Henderson Emerging Markets Private Investments Limited. The acquisition is not material to the financial statements.
Management- Led Buyout of Quantitative Equities Subsidiary Intech On February 3, 2022, we announced the strategic decision
to sell our 97 %- owned Quantitative Equities subsidiary, Intech, to a consortium composed of Intech management and certain
Intech non- executive directors (‘“ Management Buyout ”’). On March 31, 2022, the Management Buyout closed , and we
recognized a § 9. 1 million loss on disposal of Intech. The loss is recognized in other non- operating income (expense) , net in
our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Consideration received as part of the Management Buyout included

cash proceeds of $ 14. 9 million; contingent consideration of up to $ 17. 5 million, which is based on future Intech revenue; and
an optlon agreement that pr0v1de§ JHG the option to purchase a certain equlty stake i in Intech at a predetemnned prlce on or

consohdated VlEs as of December 31 2024 and 2023 aﬁd%@%%— 1nclude certain consolldated seeded 1nvestment products n
which we have an investment and act as the investment manager. Third- party assets held in consolidated VIEs are not available
to us or to our creditors. We may not, under any circumstances, access third- party assets held by consolidated VIEs to use in our
operating activities or otherwise. In addition, the investors in these VIEs have no recourse to the credit of JHG. Unconsolidated
Variable Interest Entities The following table presents the carrying value of investments included in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets pertaining to unconsolidated VIEs as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-(in millions): December 31, 2024
Beeember34,-2023 2622-Unconsolidated VIEs $ 53. 6 $ 17. 2 $3--5-Our total exposure to unconsolidated VIEs represents the
value of our economic ownership interest in the investments. Consolidated Voting Rights Entities The following table presents
the balances related to consolidated VREs that were recorded in our Consolidated Balance Sheets, including our net interest in
these products, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-(in millions): December 31, 2024 Peeember3+-2023 2622
Investments $ 132, 5 § 242. 9 $2066-0-Cash and cash equivalents 26. 3 6. 5 5-8-Other current assets 2. 7 21. 6 +-8-Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities (0. 9) (1. 1) &-0)-Total $ 160. 6 $ 269. 9 $212-6-Redeemable noncontrolling interests in
consolidated VREs ( 22. 7) ( 100. 9 3+35—+) JHG’ s net interest in consolidated VREs $ 137. 9 $ 169. 0 $377-5-Third- party
assets held in consolidated VREs are not available to us or to our creditors. We may not, under any circumstances, access third-
party assets held by consolidated VREs to use in our operating activities or otherwise. In addition, the investors in the VREs
have no recourse to the credit of JHG. Our total exposure to consolidated VREs represents the value of our economic ownership
interest in these seeded investment products. Unconsolidated Voting Rights Entities The following table presents the carrying
value of investments included in our Consolidated Balance Sheets pertaining to unconsolidated VREs as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 and2622-(in millions): December 31, 2024 Peeember3+-2023 2022-Unconsolidated VREs $ 73.5$ 9. 9 $3—4-Our
total exposure to unconsolidated VREs represents the value of our economic ownership interest in the investments. Note 5 —
Investments Our investments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, are summarized as follows (in millions): December
31, 2024 Beeember3+-2023 2622-Current investments: Seeded investment products: Consolidated VIEs $ 502.1 $ 382. 4 &
334—3-Consolidated VREs 132. § 242. 9 266-0-Unconsolidated VIEs and VREs 127. 1 27. 1 4-9-Separately managed accounts
41.9 44. 1 29—7FTotal seeded investment products 803. 6 696. 5 574-9-Investments related to deferred compensation plans 29. 8
12. 0 49-7Other investments 5. 8 8 . 1 48-3-Total current investments $ 839. 2 $ 716. 6 $5959-Non- current investments:
Equity method investments 23. 1 29. 5 +87FTotal investments $ 862. 3 $ 746. 1 $-644—6-Investment Gains (Losses), Net
Investment gains (losses), net in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income included the following for the years



ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and2624—(in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2024-Sceded
investment products and hedges, net $ 36. 4 $ 20. 3 $ (15. 2) $20-Third- party ownership interests in seeded investment
productq 37. 5 34.7 (97 9)—68—9—) Equrty method investments ( 5. 6) ( 13. 5) 2.9 Other 2.51. 9 ( 3. G-theiel —9—(—3—1—)3—8

eqtﬂ-t'y—methed—mvest-meﬂt—N et unreahzed gains (loeqeG) excludmg noncontrollmg mtere%t% on ieeded mveitmenti products and
associated derivative instruments still held at period end for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624,
were $ 40. 0 million, $ 2. 8 millionand $ (21. 7) mihenand-$4+-0-million, respectively. Our equity method investment
investments (other than investments in ieeded investment products) -mel-udes— 1nclude Prw&eere-ea-pﬁa-l-(ipﬂvaeefe—)—eﬂ

Pt A ity-interest in Long Tall Alpha Privacore-frontthe-prinetpalsin
e*eh&ﬂge—fer—t-he—F—M—VLef—sueh—sh&fes— Cash ﬂowe related to our investments for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;
and 2022 and2024-, are summarized as follows (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 %92—1—Purcha§e§ Sales,
Purchases Sales, Purchases Sales, and settlements and Net and settlements and Net and settlements and Net settlements
maturities cash flow settlements maturities cash flow settlements maturities cash flow Investments by consolidated seeded
investment products $ (127.8) $26.4 $ (101.4) $ (227.3)$2.4$(224.9) $(88.4) $44.5$ (43. 9) $-Investments ( 211 +66-
453 0 $09F4) Investments-174. 0 (37. 0) (180. 6) 120. 9 (59.7) (143. 1) 187. 7 44. 6 38369125917 F+HNote 6 —
Derivative Instruments We maintain an economic hedge program that uses derivative instruments to mitigate against market
exposure of certain seeded investments by using index and commodity futures (“ futures ), contracts for difference, credit
default swaps and total return swaps-and-eredit-defantt-swaps. Certain foreign currency exposures associated with our seeded
investment products are also hedged by using foreign currency forward contracts and-swaps- We were party to the following
derivative instruments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-(in millions): Notional value December 31, 2023-2024
December 31, 20222023 Futures and contracts for difference $ 789.0 $ 1, 018. 0 $3496—8-Credit default swaps 148.5 199. 7
HS5—-Total return swaps 69. 7 51. 8 3F2-Foreign currency forward contracts and-swaps-328. 2 176. 2 43+-—FThe derivative
instruments are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes. Changes in fair value of the derivatives are recognized in
investment gains (losses), net in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. The changes in fair value of the
derivative instruments for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024-, are summarized as follows (in
millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2824-Futures and contracts for difference $ (10.5) $ (7. 0) $ 40. 8 $24-
6)-Credit default swaps (3. 0) (6. 5) 3. 7 &—6)-Total return swaps (9. 3) ( 12. 8) 21. 3 43—3)-Foreign currency forward
contracts and-swaps-6. 4 8. 4 (9. 6) H—6-Total gains (losses) from derivative instruments $ ( 16. 4) $ (17.9) § 56. 2 $279
Derivative assets and liabilities are generally recognized on a gross basis and included in other current assets or in accounts
payable and accrued liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The derivative assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 and-2022-, are summarized as follows (in millions): Fair value December 31, %92—3—2024 December 31, %922—2023
Derrvatrve assets $ 8 8 $ 1.8 -$é—3—Derrvatrve liabilities 8 5 16. 7 4—6-Jmradd Ot

Derivative lnitruments Used in Consohdated Seeded Inveqtment Products Certain of our consohdated ieeded mve%tment
products use derivative instruments to contribute to the achievement of defined investment objectives. These derivative
instruments are classified within other current assets or in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Gains and losses on these derivative instruments are classified within investment gains (losses), net in our Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income. Our consolidated seeded investment products were party to the following derivative
instruments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-(in millions): Notional value December 31, 2023-2024 December 31,
20222023 Futures and contracts for difference $ 160.5 $ 1, 555. 1 $+4-3-Credit default swaps 4. 3 13 22~ 2 Total return
swaps 10. 3 0. 3 +6-4-Interest rate swaps 13.9 2. 2 —epﬁeﬁs—e—l—SWfipﬁeﬁs—Ev.—G—F oreign currency forward contracts
aﬁd-sw&ps—l% 6 135.3 -l-S—Other — 0 3 As fPhe—majeﬂty—of December 31 2024 and 2023 the ﬁeﬁeﬁal—va}ue—asseeiafedﬁfrﬂ&

West—meﬂt—ebjeet-wes—’l:h&derrvatrve assets and habrhtreq 88
our Consolidated Balance Sheets were insignificant ﬁﬂﬂieﬁs)—F&H—V&me—BeeembeﬁH—Z%BeeembeﬁH—Z%%Berwafwe
asset$-6-. 7501 Pertvative Habilittes 1-2-0-6-We maintain a foreign currency hedging program to take reasonable measures to
minimize the income statement effects of foreign currency remeasurement of monetary balance sheet accounts. The program
uses foreign currency forward contracts and swaps to achieve its objectives, and it is considered an economic hedge for
accounting purposes. The notional value of the foreign currency forward contracts and swaps as of December 31, 2024 and
2023 and2022-, is summarized as follows (in millions): Notional value December 31, 2023-2024 December 31, 2022-2023
Foreign currency forward contracts and swaps $ 38. 4 $ 65. 3 $74FThe derivative assets and liabilities are generally
recognized on a gross basis and included in other current assets or in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in our Consolidated




Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, the derivative assets and liabilities in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets were insignificant. Changes in fair value of the derivatives are recognized in other non- operating income (expense) , net
in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. Foreign currency remeasurement is also recognized in other non-
operating income (expense) , net in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. For the years ended December 31,
2024, 2023 rand 2022 and2024- the change in fair value of the foreign currency forward contracts and swaps was
insignificant. Note 7 — Property, Equipment and Software The following table presents depreciation expense for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 ard2624—(in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2024+
Depreciation expense $ 17.4 $ 18. 4 § 21. 6 $23-5-Property, equipment and software as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and
2622~ are summarized as follows (in millions): Depreciation December 31, period 2024 2023 2022-Furniture, fixtures and
computer equipment 3-48-5 years $ 53. 0 $ 50. 1 $23-9-Leaschold improvements Over the shorter of the useful life or the lease
term 53. 7 47. 7 27-6-Computer software 3 —F-years 95. 2 103. 3 98-6-Property, equipment and software, gross $ 201. 49 § 142
201 . 1 Accumulated depreciation ( 162. 5) ( 156. 9) £96-3)-Property, equipment and software, net $ 39. 4 § 44. 2 $5+-8Note 8
— Goodwill and Intangible Assets The following tables present movements in our intangible assets and goodwill during years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-(in millions): Foreign December 31, currency December 31, 2023 Amortization
Additions translation 2024 Indefinite - lived intangible assets:Investment management agreements $ 2, 44064 8§ —$ —§
(258 .3 95424 $ 2,046056 .5 Trademarks 360 366:F—4-P2-0 y— — — 360.0 Definite- lived intangible
assets:Client relationships +684——8483F96-8)-68. 9-6 — 20.5 (3.0) 86.1 Investment management agreements — —
28.0 — 28.0 Trademarks — — 5.5 — 5.5 Accumulated amortization (46762 . 2-1 ) (3. #1 ) 44—2 . 7—54 (62 . 8 5607
Net intangible assets $ 2, 542431 . F3 $ (3. 71 ) $ 54 (44-. 0 8)-5 (35-8 . 9 8)-$43-F) $ 2, 444473 . 73 Goodwill § 1, 34+290

5385276 F 6 - $—S5 (8416 .45) S 1,253-550 . 4 Foreign December 31,currency December 31, 2022
Amortization Disposal fmpairment-translation 2023 Indefinite- lived intangible assets: Investment management agreements $ 2,
046.58 —$ —3$—%-18.3 $ 2, 064. 8 Trademarks 360. 0 — —360. 0 Definite- lived intangible assets: Client
relationships 68. 9 — (2. 6) —2. 3 68. 6 Accumulated amortization (60. 7) (1. 7) 2. 6 —(2. 3) (62. 1) Net intangible assets $ 2,
414.78$(1.7)$ —$—$-18.3$2,431.3 Goodwill $1,253.1$ —$ — $—$37.2 $ 1, 290. 3 Foreign December 31,
currency December 31......) $ 1, 253. 1 Indefinite- lived intangible assets represent certain investment management contracts
where we expect both the renewal of the contracts and the cash flows generated by them to continue indefinitely. Indefinite-
lived Frademarks-trademarks relate to the Janus brand, which was acquired as a result of the Merger and subsequently
rebranded as Janus Henderson. Definite- lived intangible assets represent client relationships, investment management
contracts and trademarks, which are amortized over their estimated lives using the straight- line method. Definite- lived
trademarks were acquired as a result of the 2024 acquisition of VPC. The remaining estimated weighted- average useful
life of the-definite- lived client relationships , investment management contracts and trademarks is +5-6. 5 years. Foreign
currency translation movements in the table primarily relate to the translation of the intangible assets and goodwill balances
denominated in non- USD currencies to our functional and presentational Currency of USD uqlng the closing forelgn Currency
exchange rate at the end of each reportmg period —v rteeh -

. Goodwill and 1ndeﬁn1te hved mtanglble assets are rev1ewed for impairment annually or more frequently 1f change% in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. We perform our annual impairment assessment of goodwill and
indefinite- lived intangible assets as of October 1 of each year by performing a qualitative impairment (step 0) test to determine
if it is necessary to perform a quantitative impairment test. To assess our goodwill balance, our qualitative impairment test is
inclusive of consideration of macroeconomic conditions along with performing a quantitative calculation, to estimate the
enterprise value of the reporting unit, under a market value approach, and compared it to the carrying value of the reporting unit.
The results of the assessment revealed it is more likely than not that the fair value estimate of the reporting unit was greater than
the carrying value. The most significant inputs into the estimated enterprise value were our stock price and an assumed control
premium, which required significant judgment. We also assessed our indefinite- lived intangible assets as part of our annual
impairment assessment. We used a qualitative approach to determine the likelihood of impairment, with AUM being the focus
of the assessment. The results of the indefinite- lived intangible assessment revealed it is more likely than not that the fair values
of our intangible assets exceeded their carrying values; no impairment was recorded. Our definite- lived intangible assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
There were no events or changes in circumstances that would have a triggered an assessment of the definite- lived intangibles
assets. Future Amortization Expected future amortization expense related to definite- lived intangible assets is summarized
below (immatertal-on-anannual-basis-and-in the-aggregatets-millions): Future amortization: Amount 2025 $ 11. 1 2026 11.
12027 11. 12028 8. 9 2029 2. 6 Thereafter 12 . S-miHion-0 Total $ 56 . 8 Our leases include operating and finance leases for
property and equipment. Property leases include office space in the UK, Europe, the U. S. and the Asia Pacific region.
Equipment leases include copiers and server equipment located throughout our office space and off- site. Our leases have
remaining lease terms of one year to +6-nine years. Certain leases include options to extend or early terminate the leases;
however, we currently have not exercised these options, and they are not reflected in our lease assets and liabilities. The impact
of operating and financing leases on our financial statements is summarized below. Operating and-finanetng-lease assets and
liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, consisted of the following (in
millions) (1) : December 31, 2024 2023 Operating lease ROU assets: Deeember3+;2023-Deeember34-2622-Other non-
current assets $ 84. 1 $ 69. 5 $79-7F-Operating lease liabilities: Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 16. 5 $ 23. 0 $23-F



Other non- current liabilities 74. 9 54. 8 67—+Total operating lease 11db111t1es $ 91 4 $ 77 8 -$—99—8—F—rﬂanee—(1) As of December
31, 2024 and 2023, financing lease ROY-assets +Property-and equipmen 634

H4—29—Preper&and—eqtupmen&ne&$—9—34$%—Fmﬁwe4eas&1mb1htles were 1ns1gn1ﬁcant —Aeeetuﬁs—pay&b-}e—aﬁd—aeerued

Comprehenswe lncome The components of 1ease expense in our Consohddted Statements of ( omprehensne Income during the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-, are summarized below (in millions) (1) : ¥earended-Yearended
Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 DPeeember3+-2022 Deeember-34202+-Operating lease cost (2) $19.9 $22.6 $ 27. 5 (
1) -$—22—For the years ended December 31 2024 2023 and 2022, finance lease costs were insignificant . (6—$—2—7’%—$—3@—2
~An 3 - 8-5-0- ) lneluded n 5eneral admlmstratlve and occupancy i
RS ; atements e A attorr-in our Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive lneome We suble'lse certam office buﬂdlngs n the UK. Buring-For the years ended December
31,2024, 2023 —and 2022 and%@%l— wre-sublease i 1nc0me received t-he—fe{-}ewmg—hom tenants was 1ns1gn1ficant (—rn—n‘n-l-hens)—
; : 3559
-$—7.—2—F0r the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ,—and 2022 aﬁd%@%l—, the 1mpalrment of subleased ROU operating assets
was insignificant. Supplemental Information Cash payments for operating and-finanee-leases included in our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and2624-, consisted of the following (in
millions): ¥earended-Yearended-Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 Peeember3+;-2022 Beeember3+202+-Operating cash
flows from operating leases $ 27.7 $29. 4 § 26. 9 -$€—7—9—F0r the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, Finaneing
financing cash flows from finance leases $-0-were insignificant . 4-$-6-9-$6—4-Supplemental non- cash lease information ,
which includes changes in ROU assets related to modlﬁed operatlng lease hablhtles, was 1ns1gn1ﬁcant for the years ended

-l-ease—l-rabﬂ-rt-tes—$% —7—$—(—3—2—)—$—1—1—4—The Welghted dveras_e remaining 1e"lse term, Wel;chted average dlscount rate and futule
lease obligations are summarized below. ¥earended-Yearended-As of December 31, Weighted- average remaining lease term
(in months): 2024 2023 Operating leases 63 51 Finance leases 39 37 As of December 31, 2623-Deeember314;2622-Operating
leasesFinaneeleases—Yearended-Yearended-Weighted- average discount rate (1): 2024 Peeember3+-2023 Deeember-342022
Operating leases 4. 3 % 2. 5 %4-—3-% Finance leases 5.3 % 4. 0 %2-—2-% (1) Discounted using incremental borrowing rates
determined for each lease as of the date of adoption, including consideration for specific interest rate environments. Future lease
obligations (in millions) (1) : Operating leases 2024-$24—4-2025 $ 17. 9 2026 19. 3 2027 18. +7 2626-2028 +4-19. 7 2029 10 .

5 2029434262819 3-Thereafter +19 . 78 Total lease payments 82-105 . +9 Less interest 14. 5 Total $ 91. 4 3Fotal $77-8
(1) Fhe-fature-Future lease obhgdtlons for finance leases are—rnﬂma&teﬂa-l—were 1ns1gn1ficant as of December 31, %92—3—9ﬂ

10 — Falr V'llue Measurements The followmo table presents dssets and 11db111t1es in our consolldated fmdnClal stdtements or
disclosed in the notes to our consolidated financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2623-2024
(in millions): Fair value measurements using: Quoted prices in active Significant markets for other Significant Investments
identical assets observable unobservable valued at and liabilities inputs inputs practical (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
expedient (1 ) Total Assets: Cash equivalents $ $94-821 . 475 — § — § 894—§ 821 . 47 Current investments: Consolidated
VIEs 347260 . 6 64-241 . 76-5 — — 502 . 1 3824-Other investments 242273 . 8 33. 7 2 +22-. 0 27 —334-. 2-6 337. 1 Total
current 1r1vestments 5%9—534 -8—1—86—4 275 22.027.6 839 2 Other — 10 22.5—12.7 9—1—7—1—6—6—Seed-hedg&deﬂv&ﬁ¥es

etrittess Fetp " 6- Lono te1mdebt(-1—2)$—
%9-8—$ 383 . 9—3 $— %9-8—$ —$383. 9—3 Deferred bonuses —_— 115 77— 115 7 Contlngent consideration — — 30. 4 — 30.
4 Other 1. 9 H7 11 . 6177 — — 13 . 6 Total liabilities $ 1. 7$3H6-6-$HF6$5435-9¢$395.0$ 146. | $ —$543.0 (1)
Certain seeded investment products that do not have a readily determinable fair value have been measured at fair value
using the NAV as a practical expedient and have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy. (2 ) Carried at amortized
cost in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and disclosed in this table at fair value. The following table presents assets and
liabilities in our consolidated financial statements or disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements at fair value
on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2622-2023 (in millions): Fair value measurements using: Quoted prices in active
Significant markets for other Significant identical assets observable unobservable and liabilities inputs inputs (Level 1) (Level 2)
(Level 3) Total Assets: Cash equivalents § 688-894 . 4§ — $ — $ 688-894 . 4 Current investments: Consolidated VIEs 275-317.
664.70.1 382 . 454-64-93343-Other investments +H-212 . 9-89-2 122 . 40 — 334 . 2 3-26+—6-Total current investments
447—529 31438 186 4—70 1 716 60ther—8 51. 0%95—9 -Seed—heége—éerw&t—wes—S%%%—Berw&fwes—used—rn

—9%—Seed-hedge-deﬂ*v&mfes—4—9—4—9-L0ng term debt (1) $ —%9§—$ 298 . 4—0 $ — 2958 298 4—0 Deferred bonuses —
— 46117 . 5466 117 . 5-6 Other 1. 7 18. 6 — 20. 3 Total liabilities $ 8-5$304-1 $46- 57 $ 348316 . -6 $ 117. 6 $ 435. 9
(1) Carried at amortized cost in our Consolidated Balance Sheets and disclosed in this table at fair value. Our Level 1 fair value
measurements consist mostly of investments held by consolidated and unconsolidated seeded investment products and cash



equivalents with quoted market prices in active markets. The fair value level of consolidated investments held by seeded
investment products is determined by the underlying securities of the product. The fair value level of unconsolidated
investments held in seeded investment products is determined by the NAV, which is considered a quoted price in an active
market. Our Level 2 fair value measurements consist mostly of investments held by consolidated investment products 5

uneonsolidated-seeded-nvestmentproduets-and our long- term debt. The fair value level of consolidated investments held by
seeded investment produets is determined by the underlymg securities of the product —"Phe—faiﬁal-ue—}evel-ef—&neeﬂsehéated-

fﬁ&fket— The fair value 1evel of our 10ng— term debt is determined using reeent trading activity, which is c0n51de1ed a Le\ el 2
input. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, certain investments within consolidated VIEs and VREs were valued
using significant unobservable inputs, resulting in Level 3 classification. Deferred Bonuses Deferred bonuses represent liabilities
to employees over the vesting period that will be settled by investments in our products or cash. Upon vesting, employees
receive the value of the investment product selected by the participant, adjusted for gains or losses attributable to the product.
The significant unobservable inputs used to value the liabilities are investment desucn'ltlons and vesting periods. Changes in Fair
Value Changes in fair value of our Level 3 assets for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, were as follows
(in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Beginning of period fair value $1.18 18. 3 $8-8Centingent
eeﬁstdef&tteﬁ—ffeﬁa—sa%&ef—strbs—td-t&ﬂes—l—Z—I—Settlement of contingent consideration — (0. 2) —Fair value adjustments 1. 4
(12 1 )—H—Z—) Transfers hom (to) Level 1, net— (4 6) Purchases (sales) of securltles, net 2. 0 —2-03Transfersto-bevelH4-
s 0. 3) End of period fair
value $ 4. 5 $ 1 1 -$—1-8—3—(han;ces in fan value of our Level 3 11c1b111t1es for the years ended Decembe1 31,2024 and 2023 and
2022-, were as follows (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Beginning of period fair value $117.6 $ 46 =5
$-56-. 5 Fair value adjustments 13. 1 9. 0 Settlement of contingent consideration ( 2-0 . +3 ) — Vesting of deferred bonuses (
85.7) (34. 7 336-5-) Amortization of deferred bonuses 70. 8 58. 6 38-8-Foreign currency translation 0. 4 2. 4 —4-Additions
30.2 35. 8 —FEnd of period fair value $ 146.1 $ 117. 6 $46-Nonrecurring Level 3 fair value measurements include
goodwill and intangible assets and contingent consideration liabilities . 5-We measure the fair value of goodwill and
intangible assets on initial recognition based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. Significant assumptions
used to determine estimated fair value include AUM, investment management fee rates, discount rates, and expenses.
Refer to Note 8 — Goodwill and Intangible Assets, in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, for
additional information on the impairment assessments. We measure the fair value of the contingent consideration liabilities
on initial recognition using the Monte Carlo method that requires assumptions regarding projected future earnings and
discount rate. Because of the significance of the unobservable inputs in the fair value measurements of these assets and
liabilities , such measurements are classified as Level 3. Investments Valued at Practical Expedient As a practical expedient
to value certain investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value and have attributes of an investment, we
use the NAYV as the fair value. As such, investments in private investment funds with a fair value of $ 27. 6 million are
excluded from the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2024. Further, the respective fund’ s investment portfolio may
contain debt investments that are in the form of revolving lines of credit and unfunded delayed draw commitments,
which require the fund to provide funding when requested by portfolio companies in accordance with the terms of the
underlying loan agreements. As of December 31, 2024, the investments valued at the practical expedient had $ 12. 7
million of associated unfunded commitments. Note 11 — Debt Our debt as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-,
consisted of the following (in millions): Carrying Value December 31, 2023-2024 December 31 2022-2023 Carrying Fair
CarryingFair-value-value-valae-valae-4. 875 % Senior Notes due 2025 $—$304. 6 $298-5. 450 % Senior Notes due 2034
395 . 0 - $3067-5 $295- 450 44875 Senior Notes Due 2034 On September 10, 26252024 , JHG' s wholly- owned
subsidiary, Janus Henderson US (Holdings) Inc., completed a private placement of $ 400. 0 million aggregate principal
amount of 2034 Senior Notes. The 2625-2034 Senior Notes have a principal salee-amount of $ 366-400 . 0 million as of
December 31, 2623-2024 , and-pay interest at 4-5 . §75-450 % semiannually on Febrwary+March 10 and Augast+September
10 of each year , and mature on Augustt-September 10 , 2025-2034 . The 26252034 Scnior Notes include unamortized debt
premiuns,net-discount and issuance costs of $ 5. 0 million at December 31, 2623-2024 ;of$4-—6-mitlton, which will be
amortized-accreted over the remaining life of the notes. The unamortized debt premiuntis-discount and issuance costs are
recorded as a non- current contra lldblllty th-h-m—ln long term debt on our Consohddted Balance Sheets. 4. 875 % Senior
Notes Due 2025 JHG fully-a ; s-the gattons-of-' s wholly- owned subsidiary, Janus Henderson
US (Holdings) Inc. , redeemed 1ts tn—fe}at-teﬁ—te—t-he—2025 Semor Notes on November 7, 2024, at the redemption price as
outlined in the Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated May 30, 2017. The notice of redemption was issued to the holders of
the 2025 Senior Notes, and the $ 300. 0 million outstanding principal balance and accrued but unpaid interest through
the redemptlon date was settled w1th ex1st1ng cash on hand from our balance sheet On J une 30 2023, we entered mto a

expiration-date-. The ﬂeW-Credlt Faelllty 1nc1udes an option for us to request an increase to our borrowum capacity unde1 the
Credit Facility of up to an additional $ 50. 0 million. The rew-Credit Facility has-had a maturity date of June 30, 2028, with two
one- year extension options that can be exercised at the discretion of JHG with the lender’ s consent on the first and second
anniversary of the date of the agreement. We exercised the option to extend the term of the Credit Facility on the first
anniversary of the agreement. The revised maturity date of the Credit Facility is June 30, 2029. JHG and its subsidiaries
may use the Credit Facility for general corporate purposes. The rate of interest for each interest period is the aggregate of the
applicable margin, which is based on our long- term credit rating and the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“ SOFR ) in
relation to any loan in USD, the Sterling Overnight Index Average (“ SONIA ) in relation to any loan in GBP, the Euro
Interbank Offered Rate (“ EURIBOR ”) in relation to any loan in EUR or the Bank Bill Swap Rate (“ BBSW ”) in relation to any



loan in AUD. We are also required to pay a quarterly commitment fee on any unused portion of the Credit Facility, which is
based on our long- term credit rating. If our credit rating falls below a certain threshold, as defined in the Credit Facility, our
financing leverage ratio, cannot exceed 3. 00x EBITDA. At December 31, 2623-2024 , we were in compliance with all
covenants contained in, and there were no borrowings under, the Credit Facility. Note 12 — Income Taxes The components of
our provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-202+, are as follows (in millions):
Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2624—Current income taxes: UK $ 14.3 $ 15. 2 $ 10. 5 $4+-+U. S,, including state
and local 143.2 88. 1 95. 9 +54—6-International 6.4 3. 0 8. 8§ +2-4-Total current income taxes 163. 9 106. 3 115. 2 20745
Deferred income taxes: UK 2.2 (4. 0) (10. 3) 29+6-U. S., including state and local 1. 0 (2. 0) 10. 0 International ( 0. 8 —)
Internattenal-— (14. 0 H23—+) Total deferred income benefits 2.4 (6. 0) (14. 3 H2-2-) Total income tax expense $ 166. 3 $
100. 3 $ 100. 9 $2085-3-The components of our total income before taxes for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and
2022 and2021-, are as follows (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 202+-UK $57.4 $86.4 $ (44. 1) $24+
8-U. S.595. 6 423. 4 428. 7 627-International (41 . | Internatienal) 17. 2 (9 =227 2) Total income before taxes $ 611.9 $
527.0 $ 375. 4 $83F—FWe are a tax resident in the UK and a reconciliation is required from the UK statutory rate to the
effective tax rate. The following is a reconciliation between the UK statutory corporation tax rate and the effective tax rate on
our income from operations for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-20824 Year ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022 2024-UK statutory corporation tax rate 25. 0 % 23. 5 % 19. 0 % +9-8-%-Effect of foreign tax rates (1. 7) 0. 1 6.
3 3-5-Equity- based compensation 0. 4 0. 3 0. 7 6—+Tax adjustments 0. 9 0. 5 2. 0 6—~4-Impact of changes in statutory tax rates
on deferred taxes — (1. 9) (1. 3) Foreign currency translation reserves reclassification 5. 6 1. 6 (0. 3 ) —6-Taxes applicable to
prior years (1.2) (1. 9) (4. 5) Other, net (1. 7) (3. 4) Other;net-—8)—0. 3 yEffective income tax rate, controlling interest 27.
3% 18.8 % 22. 2 % 24-9%Net loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests (0. 1) 0. 2 4. 7 6-2-Total effective
income tax rate 27.2 % 19. 0 % 26. 9 %25—1% We operate in several tax jurisdictions around the world, each with its own
statutory tax rate and set of tax laws and regulations. As a result, our future blended average statutory tax rate will be influenced
by any changes to such laws and regulations and the mix of profits and losses of our subsidiaries. Tax Legislation Any
legislative changes and new or proposed tax regulations may result in additional income tax impacts, which could be material in
the period any such changes are enacted. Deferred Taxes The significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, are as follows (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Deferred tax assets:
Compensation and staff benefits $ 64.5 $ 59. 8 $5F-6-Loss carryforwards (1) 127. 6 88 4 F6—F-Accrued liabilities 8.0 7. 0 63
Bebtpremivmt-—32—+1 case liabilities 18. 7 16. 8§ 49-6-Other 4-(2 . 843-1) 5 . 9-3 Gross deferred tax assets 216.7 177. 3 +7#6-
2-Valuation allowance ( 119. 4) ( 76. 8 368-—3-) Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance $ 97.3 $ 100. 5 $187-9
Deferred tax liabilities: Retirement benefits $ (17. 4) $ (21. 4 3$-24-2-) Goodwill and acquired intangible assets (628. 9) (628.
6 H63+2) Lease ROU assets (18. 0) ( 16. 2) 8-99-Other (1.3 ) (3. 5 HF+) Gross deferred tax liabilities ( 665. 6) (669. 7 ¥
6844 Total deferred tax liabilities (2) $ ( 568. 3) $ (569. 2 ¥$573-5-) (1) The majority of the 2023-2024 loss carryforward
relates to the UK capital loss of $ 294-283 . 74 million and U. S. capital loss of $ 164. 0 million, before tax effects ;whieh
may-. The capital loss in the UK can be carried forward witheuttimetimitatiorrindefinitely, while the capital loss in the U.

S. will begin to expire in 2029 . There is a full valuation allowance against UK capital losses and a valuation allowance of $
37. 0 million after tax effects against U. S. capital losses. (2) The change in the net deferred tax liabilities does not equal the
deferred tax expense due to the foreign currency translation adjustment on deferred tax liabilities booked through equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities that relate to the same jurisdiction are recorded net on our Consolidated Balance Sheets as
non- current balances and as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, are as follows (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023
2022-Deferred tax assets, net (included in other non- current assets) $ 1. 0§ 1. 6 $+—"Deferred tax liabilities, net ( 569. 3) (
570. 8 H574-—6-) Total deferred tax liabilities $ ( 568. 3) $ (569. 2 3J$-573-5-) A valuation allowance has been established
against the deferred tax assets related to our tax loss carryforward where a history of losses in the respective tax jurisdiction
makes it unlikely that the deferred tax asset will be realized or where it is unlikely that we would generate sufficient taxable
income of the appropriate character to realize the full benefit of the deferred tax asset. The valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets increased by $ 42. 6 =3-million in 2623-2024 . The increase is primarily attributable to allowance fereigneurreney
transtation-on capital losses during the current year. Unrecognized Tax Benefits We operate in several tax jurisdictions and a
number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position, for which we have unrecognized tax benefits, is finally resolved.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-262+, is as
follows (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2824-Beginning balance $ 28.4 $26.7 $ 19. 2 $45-8
Additions for tax positions of current year 5. 7 6. 9 9. 7 5—8-Reduction due to settlement with taxing authorities (0. 8) (0. 3) (1. 4
F2-) Reduction due to statute expirations (4. 3) (4. 6) (0. 5 368—4) Total change due to true up — (0. 1) Total removed
due to audit payment — (0. 4) Foreign currency translation (0. 1) 0. 2 (0. 3) —Ending balance $ 28.9$28.4 $26.7 %
+6-2-If the balance in the table above is recognized, the balance would favorably affect our effective tax rate in future periods.
We recognize interest and penalties on uncertain tax positions as a component of the income tax provision. At December 31,
2024, 2023 yand 2022 and-2021- the total accrued interest balance relating to uncertain tax positions was $ 7. 4 million, $ 5. 8
million s-and $ 3. 9 mitherand-$2-6-million, respectively. Potential penalties at December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
262+, were insignificant and have not been accrued. We are subject to U. S. federal ineeme-tax-, state , and local income tax,
UK income tax, and income tax in several other JurlSdlCthHS All these attofwwhieh-can be examlned by the relevant taxing

authorities. Significant tax jurisdictions that remain open for examination by-the-taxing-authortties-include: eTFax-years2626
i U. S. federal and state tax authorities for tax —e—Fax-ycars starting with 26+9-

and-onward-remaitropen-to-examinationby-the-
2021 and 2013, respectlvely and for ﬁnwafd-femam—qaen—te-exanﬂﬂaﬁeﬂ—byht-he—UK tax authorltles for tax and-e—TFax-ycars
starting with 2020 : es- It is reasonably possible

that the total amounts of unrecognlzed tax beneﬁts W111 Change Wlthln the next 12 months due to Completlon of tax authorities’




exams or the expiration of statutes of limitations. Management estimates that the existing liability for uncertain tax positions
could decrease by approximately $ 87 . -0 million within the next 12 months, excluding changes due to foreign currency
translation. Note 13 — Other Financial Statement Captions Other current assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, are composed of the following (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Prepaid
expenses $ 82.3 $ 69. 9 $424-Current corporation tax 7. 4 26. 5 33—"Derivatives (including collateral and margin) 25. 6 41. 5
22-0-Other current assets 19. 2 36. 6 24—8-Total other current assets $ 134. 5 § 174. 5 $420-3-Other non- current assets on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets of $ 190. 2 million and $ 187. 6 million and-$265—5-mithen-as of December 31, 2024 and 2023
and-2022-, respectively, primarily relate to operating leases, capitalized cloud services implementation costs ydeferred
eonsideratiorrand equity- method investments. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities on our Consolidated Balance Sheets at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, comprise the following (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Accrued
distribution commissions $ 71. 2 $ 58. 6 $-60-9-Accrued rebates 17. 9 17. 2 387 Other accrued liabilities 62. 6 63. 6 72-8-Total
other accrued liabilities $ 151. 7 $ 139. 4 $45+--6-Current corporation tax (including interest) 19. 2 11 944~ 9 Operating and
financing leases 16. 6 23. 1 24-Derivatives 8. 6 17 . 5 Perivatives+7-5-5—+0ther current liabilities 70. 0 39 —5-36-. 5 Total
accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 266. 1 $ 23 1. 4 $232--6-Other non- current liabilities on our Consolidated Balance
Sheets at December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, comprise the following (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Non-
current tax liabilities (including interest) $ 26. 9 $ 22. 9 $23-6-Operating leases 74. 9 54. 8 67-Contingent consideration 29 . +
4 — Other ereditors9-non- current liabilities 10 . 7 8-12 . 70 Total other non- current liabilities § 87141 . 4-9 $ 98-89 . 8-7
Other ereditors-non- current liabilities include provisions for retirement obligations of leased office space and deferred
compensation for certain members of the board of directors. Other non- operating income (expense), net on our
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, comprise the
following (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 Foreign currency remeasurement gains (losses) $ (4. 1)
$ (2.9) $ 8. 2 Reclassification of foreign currency translation to net income (138. 1) (4. 7) 4. 1 Interest income 52.3 44.7 7.
7 Other 3. 3 (24. 5) (8. 5) Total other non- operating income (expense), net $ (86. 6) $ 12. 6 $ 11. 5 Note 14 —
Noncontrolling Interests Redeemable noncontrolling interests as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-, consisted of the
following (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Consolidated seeded investment products $ 365. 0 $ 317. 2 $233-9
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated seeded investment products are classified as redeemable noncontrolling interests when
there is an obligation to repurchase units at the investor’ s request. Redeemable noncontrolling interests in consolidated seed
seeded investment products may fluctuate from period to period and are impacted by changes in our relative ownership,
changes in the amount of third- party investment in seeded products and volatility in the market value of the seeded products’
underlying securities. Third- party redemption of investments in any particular seeded product is redeemed from the respective
product’ s net assets and cannot be redeemed from the assets of other seeded products or from our other assets. The following
table presents the movement in redeemable noncontrolling interests in consolidated seeded investment products for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624—(in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2024-Opening
balance $ 317.2 $ 233. 9 $ 148. 5 $70-6-Changes in market value 37. 5 34. 8 (97. 9) £6-2)-Changes in ownership 15. 8 46. 5
184. 2 84—3-Foreign currency translation (5. 5) 2. 0 (0. 9 36-2-) Closing balance $ 365.0$ 317.2 $ 233. 9 Nonredeemable
noncontrolling interests as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, consisted of the following (in millions): December 31, 2024
2023 VPC $ +48-126 . 5 $ — Note 15 — Long- Term Incentive Compensation We operate the followmg qtock and mutual fund-
based compensation plans: @ Deferred Incentive Plan (“ DIP ”); @ <
ERSAS)—eo-Mutnal Fund-Share- Awards“MESAs)-and-e-Other less significant plans (1nclude§ Restricted Share Plan (“
RSP ?), Deferred Equity Plan (“ DEP ), Saveshare Plan (“ SAYE ), Long- Term Incentive Plan (“ LTIP ), Buy As You
Earn Share Plan (“ BAYE ”) and-, Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ ESPP ) , Restricted Stock Awards (“ RSAs ) and
Mutual Fund Share Awards (“ MFSAs ” ). Further details on the material plans in operation during 2623-2024 are discussed
below. Starting in 2020 as part of our effort to consolidate how awards are issued, DIP awards are generally issued as part of
annual variable compensation and for recruitment and retention purposes in accordance with the 2022 Deferred Incentive Plan
and the Third Amended and Restated 2010 Deferred Incentive Plan. Awards are issued as stock or as mutual fund awards and
generally vest over a three- or four- year period. At December 31, 2623-2024 , the cost basis of unvested mutual fund awards
totaled $ 453-142 . 2-8 million. The awards are indexed to certain mutual funds managed by us. Upon vesting, participants
receive the value of the award adjusted for gains or losses attributable to the mutual funds to which the award was indexed and
are subject to tax withholding. Performance Share Units (“ PSUs ) are issued under the DIP and may or may not vest in whole
or in part three years after the date of grant based on performance measures. The expense of deferred short- term incentive
awards is recognlzed in net income over the penod of deferral on a graded basis, the fair value of which is determmed by
prevalhng share prlce or unit prlce at grant date. ansitton-te-th 5 55ys es-who-ree




incentive compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2624-, are summarized as
follows (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 %GQ—I—DIP $66.48%70.685 84. 0 $524+PEP—032-8RSA
—+98"-80ther4.44.346 .3 -1—4—2—Stock based payments expenie $ 70 8 $ 74 9 $ 90 3 -$—67—9—D1P funds — hablhty
settled 84.7 81. 5 84. 7 H= Fan ; N ; settled
-I-ﬂfefesfs-aﬁd-et-heﬁe—7—(-3—9)—2—9—50<nal Securlty costs 10.2 9. 5 10 5 +2-Profits 1nterests and other, net 0.9 1 5 (4 8) Total
long- term incentive compensation expense $ 166. 6 $ 167. 4 $ 180. 7 $484+-0-Unrecognized and unearned compensation
expense based on expected vesting outcomes as of December 31, 2823-2024 , including the weighted- average number of years
over which the compensation cost will be recognized, is summarized as follows (in millions): Unrecognized Weighted- average
compensation years DIP $ 44-50 . 8 1 4. 78 Other 2. 54 1. 3-2 Stock- based payments expense 46-53 . 62 1. 78 DIP funds —
liability settled 43-41 . 3-4 1. 5-8 Social Security costs 16.8-2 0. 7 Total unrecognized long- term incentive compensation
expense $ 406-110 . 78 1. 5-6 We generally grant long- term incentive awards in February in relation to annual awards but also
throughout the year due to seasonality of performance fee bonuses. Stock Options Stock options were granted under the SAYE
plan to employees in 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and262+- The fair value of stock options granted were estimated on the date of
each grant using the Black- Scholes option pricing model, with the following assumptions: Black- Scholes Option Pricing
Model Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2024-SAYE-SAYE-SAYE-Fair value of options granted £ 7.2 £ 6.2 £9.3 25
£146-28-Assumptions: Dividend yield 4. 82 % 5. 89 % 4. 27 % 3+68%-Expected volatility 33. 95 % 45. 33 % 41. 82 %5437
% Risk- free interest rate 4. 06 % 3. 47 % 1. 43 % 6—34F%Expected life (years) 3. +6-2 3. 472 3. 86-2 The table below
summarizes our outstanding options, exercisable options and options vested or expected to vest for the years ended December
31,2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024-: 2024 2023 2022 202+-Weighted- average Weighted- average Weighted- average Shares
price Shares price Shares price Outstanding at January 1 284, 954 $ 22. 82 386, 584 $ 19. 18 492, 889 $ 20. 83 1,255, 398-$27
+3-Granted 100, 151 $25.29 137,019 $ 21. 67 127,903 § 24. 83 83-Exercised (66 , 648-592) $ 22. 30 (201, 795) $ 14. 95 (193,
821) $ 24. 34 Forfeited (25, 118) $ 23. 85Exereised-20+— 21 ;7 795)-514-95-(193;-82H-$2434(418;292)-$-2904 Forfeited
(36, 854) $23.37 (40, 387) $ 22. 78 #427:-865)-$36-87-Outstanding at December 31 293, 395 § 23. 75 284, 954 § 22. 82 386,
584§ 19. 18 492,-889-$26-83-Exercisable (1) 4,823 $23.56 5, 954 § 8. 23 32, 710 § 10. 46 92,-630-$26-62-Vested or
expected to vest 293,395 § 23. 75 284, 954 $ 22. 82 386, 584 $ 19. 18 92,-630-$26-621) The number of exercisable options
represents instruments for which all vesting criteria have been satisfied and whose exercise price was below the closing price of
our common stock as of the end of the period. The following table summarizes the intrinsic value of exercised, outstanding and
exercisable options at December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2624-(in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022
2024-Exercised $0.9$ 2.4 $ 1 -3%6- 3 Outstanding $ 5.8 $ 2. 3 § 2 4$7F 4 Exercisable $ 0. 1 $0.1$ 0. 5 $3+-90-Deferred
Incentive Plan, Deferred Equity Plan and Restricted Stock Awards The table below summarizes unvested DIP, DEP and RSA,
excluding PSUs detailed separately, for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024-: 2024 2023 2022 2624+
Weighted- average Weighted- average Weighted- average Shares price Shares price Shares price Unvested at January 1 4, 884,
487 $29.86 5, 641, 839 $29.99 4,949,927 § 26. 42 5;-602,-828-$24-56-Granted 1,996, 676 $ 32.48 2, 141, 254 § 27. 08 3,
581,420 § 32. 44 Vested ( 2, 647, 424) $ 30. 285-- 25 (2, 669, 197) $ 257 27. 93 (2, 733, 825) $ 26. 29 Forfeited —94-Fested(
2136 , 067 669,197 $ 2730 . 93-96 ( 2-229 , 409 733;-825-) $ 26-29 {2,699 F2H-$26-F8Ferfeited(229;4091-$29-. 70 (155,
683) $ 31.48 (—2—38—4373—$—2—7—3—7—Unve§ted at December 31 4, 097, 672 $ 30. 85 4, 884, 487 $29. 86 5, 641, 839 $29.99 4;
049,927 $2642 The table below summarizes unvested PSUs granted to our CEO and-, Executive Committee members and
select other employees for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 a-nd—292—1—(1) 2024 2023 2022 202+
Weighted- average Weighted- average Weighted- average Shares price Shares price Shares price Unvested at January 1 276,

537 $27.44 50,900 $ 29. 38 258, 024 § 24. 31 264;695-$26-067Granted 247, 624 $ 32. 12 333, 389 § 27. 44- §- F,228-$29-
38-Adjustment to shares granted due to performance measures- $- - $- 39, 837 § 24. 55 23;996)-$34-52-Vested - $- (50, 900) $
29.38(246,961) § 22. 28 £59;983)-$-34--52-Forfeited ( 8,441) $ 31. 10 (56, 852) $ 27. 44 —$— §- Unvested at December 31
515,720 $ 29. 63 276, 537 $ 27. 44 50, 900 $ 29. 38 258;:024-$2434(1) FerPSUs granted in 2023 ;these-PSUs-and 2024
generally may or may not vest in whole or in part three years after the date of grant, based on JHG annual net new revenue and
adjusted operating margin for final grant year , and in —Vesting-ofthe PSUs-issued-priorte2623-2024 , was-subjeet-te-our three-
year Total Shareholder Return (“ TSR ") performance relative to a peer group. Vesting of the PSUs issued prior to 2023
was subject to our three- year TSR performance relative to a peer group over a three- year period following the grant date.
Performance related to shares vesting in 2022 and 2023 was determined as of June 30, 2022. Note 16 — Retirement Benefit
Plans Defined Contribution Plans We operate two main separate defined contribution retirement benefit plans: a 401 (k) plan
for U. S. employees and a separate plan for the majority of our international employees. Substantially all of our U. S. full- time
employees are eligible to participate in our 401 (k) plan. During the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , we matched 5. 0 % of
employee- eligible compensation in our 401 (k) plan . In addition, we offered an additional 1 % one- time retrospective 401
(k) match to all eligible employees as of December 31, 2024. Effective January 1, 2025, the 401 (k) plan match will be 6 %
of employee- eligible compensation . Expenses related to our 401 (k) plan are included in employee compensation and benefits
on our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income and were $ 810 . 1 million, $ 8. 1 million and $ 8. 6 millienand$-8-
3-million during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-202+, respectively. The assets of the plan are held in
trustee- administered funds separately from our assets. Sub%tantlally all of our non- U. S. full- time employees are eligible to
participate in our defined contribution plans. The total amounts included in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and-2024-, in respect to our non- U. S. defined contribution
plan were $ 17. 3 million, $ 14. 0 million yand $ 15. 7 mithenand-$39--8-million, respectively, which represents contributions
paid or payable to this plan by us. Defined Benefit Plans The main defined benefit pension plan sponsored by us is the defined
benefit section of the JHGPS, previously the Henderson Group Pension Scheme, which closed to new members on November
15, 1999. The JHGPS is funded by contributions to a separately administered fund. Benefits in the defined benefit section of the




JHGPS are based on service and final salary. The plan is approved by His Majesty’ s Revenue and Customs (“ HMRC ”) for tax
purposes and is operated separately from the Company and managed by an independent trustee board. The trustee is responsible
for payment of the benefits and management of the JHGPS assets. We also have a contractual obligation to provide certain
members of the JHGPS with additional defined benefits on an unfunded basis. The JHGPS is subject to UK regulations, which
require us and the trustee to agree to a funding strategy and contribution schedule for the scheme. Our latest triennial valuation
of the JHGPS resulted in a surplus on a technical provisions basis of $ 2. 4 million. Plan Assets and Benefit Obligations The
Plan assets and defined benefit obligations of the JHGPS, including money purchase benefits subject to a reference scheme test,
and the unapproved pension plan were valued as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-. Our plan assets, benefit
obligations and funded status as of the December 31 measurement date were as follows (in millions): 2024 2023 2622-Change in
plan assets: Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 696. 4 $ 660. 5 $4342-6-Return on plan assets (32. 9) 15. 2 33590y
Employer contributions 2. 4 2 . 2 —Benefits paid (19. 5) (17. 9) @58 Settlements ( 9. 6) ( 3. 2 H3—F) Foreign currency
translation (11. 7) 39. 6 G23—AH-Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 625. 1 696. 4 666-—5-Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation as of January 1 ( 611. 1) (565. 6 H9F5-—2-) Interest cost (27. 2) (27. 6) Settlements (169 y-Settements-. 6 3.
2 9—FBenefits paid 19. 5 17. 9 +5-8-Actuarial gain / (loss) #gair-42. 1 (5. 1) 205-4-Foreign currency translation 10. 3 (33. 9)
+05—6-Benefit obligation as of December 31 (556. 8) (611. 1 3H565—6-) Funded status as of year- end 68. 3 85. 3 94-9-Net
retirement benefit asset recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets $ 68. 3 $ 85. 3 $94-9-Actuarial fesses-gains on the
obligations during the year ended December 31, 2623-2024 , were primarily due to changes in financial assumptions over the
year, including a-an deerease-increase in the discount rate resulting from tewer-higher bond yields, leading to an-a tnerease
decrease in the benefit obligation. These tosses-gains were partially offset by inereases-decreases in the asset value, also
resulting from tewer-higher bond yields, leading to ara tnerease-decrease in the fair value of the assets. During the year ended
December 31, 2023-2024 , $ 3-9 . 2-6 million was paid to members transferring their benefits out of the scheme, reducing the
benefit obligation. The JHGPS contains a money purchase section (“ MPS ) that operates in a similar way to a defined
contribution plan, but also provides for a minimum benefit to members of the JHGPS if the investment performance of their
MPS investments falls below defined thresholds. The minimum benefit is referred to as a reference scheme test (“ RST )
underpin. The RST underpin serves as a defined benefit guarantee in the case that investment returns of the MPS do not meet
statutorily defined returns. As the MPS is providing a defined benefit in the form of the RST underpin, disclosure of the related
plan assets and liabilities are made on a gross basis, similar to that of a defined benefit plan, and are included in the plan assets
and benefit obligations of the retirement benefit asset. Amounts recognized on our Consolidated Balance Sheets, net of tax at
source, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, consist of the following (in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2622
Retirement benefit assets recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets: Janus Henderson Group UK Pension Scheme $ 70.3 §
87. 6 $-9F9Retirement benefit obligations recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets: Janus Henderson Group unapproved
pension scheme (2. 0) (2. 3 H3-9-) Net retirement benefit asset recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets $ 68.3 $ 85.3 §
94-9-We used the following key assumptions in determining the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2024 and 2023
and2022-: December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Discount rate 4-5 . 5 % 4. 85 % Inflation — Retail Price Index (“RPI ) 3. +2 % 3.3
1 % Inflation — Consumer Price Index (“ CP1 ) 2. 5 % 2. #5 % Pension increases (RPI capped at 5 % per annum (““ p. a. ™)) 3.
61 % 3. 2-0 % Pension increases (RPI capped at 2. 5 % p. a.) 2. 1 % 2. 1 % Life expectancy of male aged 60 at accounting date
29. 0 29. 1 204-Life expectancy of male aged 60 in 15 years’ time 30. 0 30. 1 36-3-The discount rate applied to the plan
obligations is based on AA- rated corporate bond yields with similar maturities. The Company is aware of a court decision in the
UK regarding the validity of certain historical modifications to pension scheme rules, including with regard to benefits. More
specifically, the judgment voided certain benefit modifications and the original benefits were reinstated, resulting in increased
liabilities for the scheme and ultimately for the sponsoring employer Although the Company was not party to this litigation, the
UK court’ s decision may have a material impact to other UK pension schemes, including our UK pension scheme. The
jadgmentis-subjeetto-appeatand-the-impact, if any, that this litigation may have on our UK pension scheme is unknown at this
time. The fair values of the JHGPS plan assets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and-2622-, by major asset class are as follows
(in millions): December 31, 2024 2023 2022-Cash and cash equivalents $2.98$ 19. 9 $+-8Money market instruments 7. 1 7. 8
$-6-Bulk annuity policy 217. 7 240 —7#236-. 7 Fixed income investments 269. 0 300. 6 249—3-Equity investments 128. 4 127. 4
+76—FTotal assets at fair value § 625.1 8 696. 4 $660-5-As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2622-, § 93. 9 million and $
103 —4-mithenand-$148-. 4 million, respectively, of JHGPS assets were held in JHG managed funds The bulk annulty

contract represents On-September5;2649,FHGPSand-- an : W :
agreement that (“agreement>)—The-agreement-provides JHGPS a monthly contractual payment stream 'ﬁ‘e'lﬁ—SWL—tO satlsfy

pension obligations payable to certain appreximately43-%-oftotal-plan participants feeetv-mg—beﬂeﬁts—frem—J-HGP-S—as-ef
Beeember3+2649-. The agreement does not relreve JHGPS or JHG (as plan sponsor) of the pr1mary responsrbrlrty for the
pension obligations. : ag
feeerded—&t—fatr—value—as—a—plaﬂ—asset—eﬂl—l@P—S—The remaining assets of the JHGPS plan are allocated toa portfolro of ﬁxed
income assets. This portfolio aims to broadly match movements in the value of liabilities caused by changes in interest rates and
inflation. Excludrng the bulk annurty polrcy, the strategrc asset allocatron as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, was 100 % fixed
income yand aHoes v owthrassets- The followmg table
presents JHGPS plan assets at farr Value on a recurring basrs as of December 3l %92—3—2024 (1n millions): Fair value
measurements using: Quoted prices in Significant active markets for other Slgmﬁcant identical assets observable
unobservable Stgnifieant-other-Stgnifieant-and liabilities ebservable-inputs srebservable-inputs (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Total Cash and cash equivalents $49-2. 9 § — $ — $49-2 . 9 Money market instruments 7. 81 — — 7. 8-1 Bulk annuity
contract — — 246-217 . 7 246-217 . 7 Fixed income investments 366-269 . 6-0 — — 3606-269 . 6-0 Equity investments 27128 .
4——327-128 . 4 Total $ 455-407.4 8 — $217 . 7 § 625 —$240-. 1 7-$-696—4-The following table presents JHGPS plan




assets at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2022-2023 (in millions): Fair value measurements using: Quoted
prices in Significant active markets for other Significant identical assets observable unobservable Signifieant-other
Stentfteant-and liabilities ebservable-inputs unebservable-inputs (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Cash and cash equivalents $
+19 . 895 —$— $4+19 . 89 Money market instruments 7. 8 =8~—— 7. 8 =8-Bulk annuity contract — — 230-240 . 7 236
240 . 7 Fixed income investments 249-300 . 3-6 — — 249-300 . 3-6 Equity investments +7#6-127 . +4 — — +76-127. 4 Total $
455 . 7 Fotal-$429-8-5 — $ 236240 . 7 $ 668-696 . 5-4 The value of the bulk annuity contracts inereased-decreased from $ 238
240 . 7 million at December 31, 2022-2023 , to $ 246-217 . 7 million at December 31, 2623-2024 . The inerease-decrease was
due te-changes in financial conditions resulting in a decrease of & +3-21. 9 million, foreign currency translation of $ 4 . 2
million, combined with cash payments received under the contract resulting in a decrease of $ 14. S million. These
decreases were partially offset by $ 9. 9 million of interest on the bulk annuity asset, a $ 3-7 . 3-6 million gain on financial
assumptions , and a fefeigﬁ—etlfreftey—t-faftsla&en—e-ﬁ$ -1-3—0 1 m11hon gam due to —"Phe—mefeases—wefe—pa-mawl-l-y-effset—by
changes in demographic assumptions resulting d 3e onineas FAents
patd-under-the-eontraetterms-. The expected rate of return on as%ets for the ﬁnanc1al perlod endmg December 31, %92—3—2024
was 4. 4-1 % p. a. based on financial conditions as of December 31, 2622-2023 ( 26222023 : +4 . 64 % p. a.). Th1§ rate is
derived by taking the weighted - average of the long- term expected rate of return on each of the asset classes in JHGPS’ s target
asset allocation. The expected rate of return has been determined based on yields on either long- dated government bonds or
relevant corporate bonds, dependent on the class of asset in question, adjusted where appropriate based on the individual
characteristics of each asset class. Actuarial Gains and Losses Cumulative amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income and the actuarial gai-loss , net of tax deducted at source, credited to other comprehensive income for
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, are shown below (in millions): 2024 2023 2622-Opening accumulated
unamortized actuarial loss as of January 1 $ (84.7) $ ( 70. 4 ¥$-328-) Actuarial loss (17. 5) ( 18. 8 3533 Tax at source on
current year actuarial gain 3. 2 3. 5 +5—Prior service cost 0. 4 0. 5 8—4-Amortization of actuarial loss 1. 3 0. 5 —Closing
accumulated unamortized actuarial loss as of December 31 $ (97. 3) $ (84. 7 }$70-4) Net Periodic Benefit Cost The
components of net periodic benefit cost in respect to defined benefit plans for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and
2022 ard2024-, include the following (in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2024-Serviee-cost$——S
f@—é)—Sef&emeﬁt—less—H—H—Gtﬁ&&meﬂt—less—f@%)—lnterest cost $ (27 2)$(27.6) 8 (16. 9 y¥43-5-) Amortization of
actuarial loss (1. 3) (0. 5) Amortization of prior service cost (0. 4) (0. 4) (0. 4) Expected return on plan assets 26. 7 28. 7
13. 8 H—3-Net periodic benefit credit (cost) (2. 2) 0. 2 (3. 5 3H4—6-) Contributions to money purchase section ( 12. 5) (11. 6) (11.
53H-3) Total cost $ (14.7) $ (11. 4) $ (15. 03$-E5-9-) The following key assumptions were used in determining the net
periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and-2024(in millions): Year ended December
31,2024 2023 2022 202+-Discount rate 4. § % 4. 8 % 1. 9 %+3-%Inflattenr—-salaries NAFANAA25-% Inflation — RPI 3.
1% 3.3 % 3. 4%2-9-% Inflation — CP1 2. 5§ % 2. 7 % 2. 8 %2-2-% Pension increases (RPI capped at 5 % p. a.) 3.0 % 3.2
% 3. 3 %2-9-% Pension increases (RPI capped at 2. 5 % p. a.) 2. 1 % 2. 2-1 % 2. +2 % Expected return on plan assets 4. 1 % 4
4% 1. 6 %4—=2-% Amortization period for net actuarial gains at beginning of the year 27. 0 28. 0 29 —8-3-. 0 Employer
contributions of § 2. +4 million were paid in relation to our defined benefit pension plans during 2623-2024 (excluding credits
to members’ money purchase accounts). We expect to contribute approximately $ 2. 44 million to the JHGPS (excluding credits
to members’ money purchase accounts) in the year ended December 31, 2024-2025 . The expected future benefit payments for
our pension plan are as follows (in millions): 20242025 $ 21. 7 2026 $ 22. 9 +2025-$22-42026-$23-82027 $ 24. 0 2028 $
24.720628-$253-2029 $ 26. 2 2030 - 2033-2034 $ 4137138 . 65 Note 17 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss Changes
in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 and2022-, are as follows
(in millions): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2822-Retirement Retirement Foreign benefit Foreign benefit currency asset,
net Total currency asset, net Total Beginning balance $ (478.9) $ (84.7) $(563.6) $ (577.3) $(70.4) $ (647. 73$-B542$
B28)y$38790-) Other comprehensive income (loss) (52. 6) (14. 3) (66. 9) 96. 8 (15. 2) 81. 6 22038612596
Reclassifications to net income (1) 138.11.7 139.8 4. 7 0. 9 5. 6 4—10—4-3—A-Total other comprehensive income (loss) 85.
5(12.6)72.9 101. 5 (14. 3) 87. 2 225H-BF6)3262-Less: other comprehensive loss (income) attributable to
noncontrolling interests 5.5 — 5.5 (3. 1) — (3. 1) 2-6—2-8-Ending balance $ (387.9) $ (97.3) $ (485.2) $ (478.9) $ (84.7)
$ (563. 6 ¥$5FF3 570456477 (1) Reclassifications to net income are primarily related to the release of accumulated
foreign currency translation reserves during the period in which a JHG entity is disposed of. The components of other
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-26824-, are as follows (in
millions): Pre- tax Tax Year ended December 31, 2024 amount expense Net amount Foreign currency translation
adjustments $ (55. 1) $ 2. 5 $ (52. 6) Retirement benefit asset, net (17. 5) 3. 2 (14. 3) Reclassifications to net income (1)
139. 8 — 139. 8 Total other comprehensive income $ 67.2 $ 5.7 § 72. 9 Pre- tax Tax Year ended December 31, 2023
amount expense Net amount Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 94. 4 $ 2. 4 $ 96. 8 Retirement benefit asset, net (18. 7)
3.5 (15. 2) Reclassifications to net income (1) 5. 6 — 5. 6 Total other comprehensive income $ 81.3 $ 5.9 $ 87. 2 Pre- tax Tax
Year ended December 31, 2022 amount expense Net amount Foreign currency translation adjustments $ (224.2) $ 3.2 $ (221.
0) Retirement benefit asset, net (46. 8) 8. 8 (38. 0) Recla%%lﬁcatlons to net income (1) (3. 7) — (3 7) Total other comprehemlve
1ncome(109§)$(274 7)$12 O$(2627 e—tax—Ta at-cheed APOTEE fetantot s

ﬁmﬁﬁ&@%&—(&%ﬁ%ﬁtﬂ—eﬁmﬁmpﬁheﬁsw&hss—%ﬁ%—%%) Note 18 — Earnlngs and D1V1dend§ Per Share
The following is a summary of the earnings per share calculation for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and

2624-(in millions, except per share data): Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 2624-Net income attrlbutable to JHG $§
408.9 $392. 0 $ 372. 4 $626-0-Allocation of earnings to partieipating stock- based awards (9. 9) (11.2) (11. 3 34+ ) Net
income attributable to JHG common sharcholders $ 399. 0 $ 380. 8 § 361. 1 $-602-Weighted- average common shares



outstanding — basic 155. 4 160. 4 161. 7 Dllutlve effect of nonpart1c1pat1ng stock- based awards 0 40.10.3 Welghted—
average common ihare% outqtandlng b4 - . o3

2. 37 $ 2 23 -$—3J.r9—D11uted $2.568 2. 37 $ 2.23 -$—3%—7—The payrnent of Caih d1v1dend% is within the dlscretlon of our Board
of Directors and depends on many factors, including, but not limited to, our results of operations, financial condition, capital
requirements, legal requirements and general business conditions. The following is a summary of cash dividends declared and
paid for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2024— Year ended December 31, 2024 2023 2022 262+
Dividends paid per share $ 1. 56 $ 1. 56 $ 1. 55 $4-50-On January 34-30 , 2024-2025 , our Board of Directors declared a cash
dividend of $ 0. 39 per share. The quarterly dividend will be paid on February 2827 , 2624-2025 , to shareholders of record at
the close of business on February 42-11 , 2624-2025 . Note 19 — Commitments and Contingencies Commitments and
contingencies may arise in the normal course of business. Commitments and contingencies as of December 31, 2623-2024 , are
discussed below. Operating and Finance Leases As of December 31, %92—3—2024 we had future minimum rental commltmentq
under non- Cancelable operatlng and ﬁnance leases A-Jants assoetate h

-Febfuaﬂ—l—EG%—aﬂd—e*p*ﬂng—eﬁ%&gust%H@S%—Refer to Note 9 — Lea%es in Part lI ltem 8,F 1nan01al Statements and
Supplementary Data, for information related to operating and financing lease commitments. We are periodically involved in
various legal proceedings and other regulatory matters. Sandra Schissler v . Janus Henderson US (Holdings) Inc., Janus
Henderson Advisory Committee, and John and Jane Does 1- 30 On September 9, 2022, a class action complaint, Captioned
Schissler v. Janus Henderson US (Holdings) Inc., et al., was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Colorado.
Named as defendants are Janus Henderson US (Holdings) Inc. (“ Janus US Holdings ) and the Advisory Committee to the
Janus 401 (k) and Employee Stock Ownership Plan ( the *“ Plan ). The complaint purports to be brought on behalf of a class
consisting of participants and beneficiaries of the Plan that invested in Janus Henderson funds on or after September 9, 2016. On
January 10, 2023, in response to the defendants’ motion to dismiss filed on November 23, 2022, an amended complaint was
filed against the same defendants. The amended complaint names two additional plaintiffs, Karly Sissel and Derrick Hittson. As
amended, the complaint alleges that for the period September 9, 2016, through September 9, 2022, among other things, the
defendants breached fiduciary duties of loyalty and prudence by (i) selecting higher- cost Janus Henderson funds over less
expensive investment options 4+, (ii) retaining Janus Henderson funds despite their alleged underperformance +and (iii) failing to
consider actively managed funds outside of Janus Henderson to add as investment options. The amended complaint also alleges
that Janus US Holdings failed to monitor the Advisory Committee with respect to the foregoing. The amended complaint seeks
various declaratory, equitable and monetary relief in unspecified amounts. On February 9, 2023, the defendants filed an
amended motion to dismiss the amended complaint. On March 13, 2023, the plaintiffs filed an opposition to the amended
motion to dismiss. The defendants filed their reply to the plaintiffs’ opposition on March 28, 2023. On September 7, 2023, a
magistrate judge issued a report and recommendation, which recommended that the motion to dismiss be granted in part and
denied in part. On September 21, 2023, the parties filed objections to the report and recommendation. Briefing on the parties’
objections concluded on October 12, 2023. A-finatrutingby-On January 22, 2024, the district court remains-pending-judge
adopted the magistrate judge’ s report and recommendation and entered an order granting in part and denying in part
Janus US Holdings’ motion to dlsmlss The partles are currently engaged in dlscovery Janus US Holdings believes that it
has substantial defenses the-ela d 6 W rerit-and intends to vigorously defend
against these claims. Note 20 — Related Party Tran%actlons Dliclosurei relatlng to equity method investments and our pension
scheme can be found in Note 5 — Investments and Note 16 — Retirement Benefit Plans, respectively, in Part II, Item 8,
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. Transactions between JHG and our eentrelted-consolidated subsidiaries have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Certain managed funds are considered to be related parties
of JHG under the related party guidance. We earn fees from the funds and investment products for which we act as investment
manager, and the balance sheet includes amount due from these managed funds. During the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 yand 2022 and-2024-, we recognized revenues of $ 2, 298. 9 million, $ 1, 946. 5 millionand $ 2, 017. 2 1n11110n and-$2;
567 9-mithen-, respectively, from the funds and investment products we manage that are related parties and not consolidated
in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. The following table reflects amounts in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets relating to fees receivable from managed funds as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-(in millions): As-ef
December 31, 2024 2023 2622-Accrued income $ 228.5$ 171. 6 $425-3-Accounts receivable 77. 0 68. 9 86—FSeced
investments held in managed funds are discussed in Note 4 — Consolidation, in Part II, Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data. Note 21 — Geographic and Segment Information Geographic Information The following table provides
our operating revenues by principal geographic area for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 and-2624-(in
millions): Year ended December 31, Operating revenues : 2024 2023 2022 202+-U. S. $ 1, 582.2$1,304.3 $ 1, 324. 6 $%5
6344-UK 391.2 350. 4 315. 1 639—FLuxembourg 452.2 400. 6 512. 5 4372-Australia and other 47. 6 46. 5 51. 4 55—Total
$2,473.2$2,101.8 $ 2, 203. 6 $2,767-6-Operating revenues are attributed to countries based on the location in which
revenues are earned. The following table provides our long- lived assets by principal geographic area as of December 31, 2024
and 2023 ard-2022-(in millions): As-efDecember 31, Long- lived assets : 2024 2023 2022-U. S. $2,143.6 $ 2, 093. 9 UK 334.
1 343. 0 Australia and other 35. 0 38. 6 Total § 2, 899-512 . 7 $§ 8- UK343-0-326-2 Australia35-9-375-Other 2-73-—0-TFotat
$2- 475 5-$2,466-. 5 Long- lived assets include property, equipment, software and intangible assets. As of December 31,
2023-2024 , intangible assets in the U. S., UK and Australia were $ 2, 125. 5 million, $ 316. 0 million and $ 31. 8 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2023, intangible assets in the U. S., UK and Australia were $ 2, 074. 2 million, $ 321. 7
million and $ 35. 4 million, respectively. As-We are a global asset manager and manage a range of Deeember3+-investment
products , 2022-operating across various product lines , intangibte-distribution channels and geographic regions.




However, information is reported to the chief operating decision- maker (“ CODM *), our CEO, on an aggregated basis.
Strategic and financial management decisions are determined centrally by our CEO and, on this basis, we operate as a
single- segment investment management business. Our investment management segment primarily derives revenues
from management fees. Clients pay a management fee, which is usually calculated as a percentage of AUM. Certain
investment products are also subject to performance fees, which vary based on when performance hurdles or other
specified criteria are achieved. The level of asscts tr-subject to such fees can positively or negatively affect our revenue.
Management and performance fees are generated from a diverse group of funds and the-other investment products 5—S
BK-and Australiawere-$-are the primary drivers of our revenue. The accounting policies of the investment management
segment are the same as those described in Note 2 -674— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies . 2-millien; $363-
S-millienrr- The CODM assesses performance for the investment management segment and $37-decides how to allocate
resources based on net income attributable to JHG on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income . 8-mithion
Refer to the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for information on our significant segment expenses. All
of our revenue is earned from external customers. The measure of segment assets is reported on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as total assets. Segment assets are identical to the total assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Significant noncash items include depreciation and amortization . respeetivelystock- based compensation plan expense
and investment gains and losses. Refer to our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for a comprehensive listing of our
noncash adjustments . [TEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and
Procedures As of December 31, 2823-2024 , our management evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a- 15 (¢) and 15d- 15 (e) under the Exchange Act).
Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to
our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Disclosure controls and procedures are designed by us to
ensure that we record, process, summarize and report within the time periods specified in the SEC” s rule and forms the
information we must disclose in reports that we file with or submit to the SEC. Ali Dibadj, Chief Executive Officer, and Roger
Thompson, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed and participated in management’ s evaluation of the disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on this evaluation, Mr. Dibadj and Mr. Thompson concluded that as of December 31, 2623-2024 , our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective. Our Management’ s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
our registered public accounting firm’ s Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, which contains its
attestation on our internal control over financial reporting, are incorporated by reference from Part II, Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data. Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting There were no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during
the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2823-2024 , that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION None. ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING
FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS PART III Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE The information required by this Item will be included in the Proxy Statement under the
captions *“ Board of Directors " and-, ° Corporate Governance ” and “ Our Executive Officers ~” and is incorporated herein by
reference. Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION The information required by this Item will be included in the Proxy
Statement under the captions “ Board Compensation ” and-, “ Executive Compensation ” and “ Executive Compensation
Tables ” and is incorporated herein by reference. Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS The information required by this Item will be included
in the Proxy Statement under the eaptten-captions “ Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management ” and “
Equity Compensation Plan Information ~ and is incorporated herein by reference. Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS
AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE The information required by this Item will be
included in the Proxy Statement under the eaptierr-captions “ Related Party Transactions ” and “ Director Independence ~* and
is incorporated herein by reference. Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES The information required
by this Item will be included in the Proxy Statement under the caption “ Reappointment and Remuneration of Auditors ” and is
incorporated herein by reference. PART IV ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES (a) List of
Documents Filed as Part of This Report (1) Financial Statements The financial statements and related notes, together with the
report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP dated February 27, 2024-2025 , appear in Part I, Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data. (2) Financial Statement Schedules No financial statement schedules are required. (3) List of Exhibits (b)
Exhibits Exhibit No. Document (2) Plan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement, liquidation or succession 2. 1 Agreement
and Plan of Merger, dated October 3, 2016, by and among Janus Capital Group Inc., Henderson Group plc and Horizon Orbit
Corp, is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2. 1 to JCG’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated October 3, 2016 (File
No. 001- 15253) (3) Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 3. 1. 1 Memorandum of Association of Janus Henderson Group plc, is
hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3. 1 to JHG’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated May 30, 2017 (File No. 001-
38103) 3. 1. 2 Articles of Association of Janus Henderson Group plc, is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3. 2 to
JHG’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated May 30, 2017 (File No. 001- 38103) (4) Instruments Defining the Rights of
Security Holders, Including Indentures 4. 1 Specimen of Common Stock Certificate is hereby incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 4. 1 to JHG’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 3, filed on February 4, 2021 (File No. 333- 252714) 4. 2 Indenture
dated as of November 6, 2001 (the “ Base Indenture ), between Janus Capital Group Inc. and The Bank of New York Trust
Company N. A. (as successor to The Chase Manhattan Bank), is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 1 to JCG’ s



Current Report on Form 8- K, dated November 6, 2001 (File No. 001- 15253) 4. 2. 2 Officer' s Certificate pursuant to the Base
Indenture establishing the terms of the 2025 Senior Notes is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 1 to JCG's
Current Report on Form 8- K, dated July 28, 2015 (File No. 001- 15253) 4. 2. 3 Fifth Supplemental Indenture to the Base
Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2017, among Janus Capital Group Inc., Henderson Group plc and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company N. A., is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 5 to JHG’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated May
30,2017 (File No. 001- 38103) 4. 3 Form of Global Notes for the 2025 Senior Notes, is hereby incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 4. 2 to JCG’ s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated July 31, 2015 (File No. 001- 15253) 4. 4 Form of Indenture for debt
securities between Janus Henderson Group plc and the trustee to be named therein is hereby incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 4. 2 to JHG’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 3, filed on February 4, 2021 (File No. 333- 252714) 4. 5 Senior
Indenture, dated as of September 10, 2024, by and among Janus Henderson US Holdings Inc., as Issuer, Janus
Henderson Group plc, as Guarantor, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N. A., as Trustee, is hereby
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 1 to JHG' s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated September 10, 2024 (File No.
333- 252714) 4. 6 Registration Rights Agreement, dated September 10, 2024, by and among Janus Henderson US
Holdings Inc., Janus Henderson Group plc, and Citigroup Global Markets Inc., BofA Securities, Inc. and Morgan
Stanley & Co. LLC, as representatives of the initial purchasers of the 2034 Senior Notes, is hereby incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 4. 2 to JHG' s Current Report on Form 8- K, dated September 10, 2024 (File No. 333- 252714) 4.
7 Form of Note for the 2034 Senior Notes is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 3 to JHG' s Current
Report on Form 8- K, dated September 10, 2024 (File No. 333- 252714) 4. 8 Description of Securities (10) Material
Contracts 10. 1 Facility Agreement, US $ 200, 000, 000 Revolving Credit Facility, dated as of June 30, 2023, among Janus
Henderson Group plc, as borrower, Janus Henderson US 9Hetdings— Holdings y-Inc., as guarantor, Bank of America Europe
Designated Activity Company, as coordinator, bookrunner and mandated lead arranger, and facility agent, Citibank, N. A., as
bookrunner and mandated lead arranger, BNP Paribas, London Branch, NatWest Markets plc, State Street Bank and Trust
Company, and Well Fargo Bank, natteral-National Association, as mandated lead arrangers, and other lenders party thereto is
hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 1 to JHG' s Current report on Form 8- K, filed on July 5, 2023 (File No.: 001-
38103) 10. 2 Form of Instrument of Indemnity, is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 16 to JHG’ s Registration
Statement on Form F- 4, filed on March 20, 2017 (File No. 333- 216824) 10. 3 Second JantusHendersen-Greup-pleThird
Amended and Restated 264+6-2012 DeferredHneentive-Stoekc Employment Inducement Award Plan, effective Febraary3-May
30 ,206206-2017 , is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4. 2-9 to JHG’ s Registration Statement on Form S- 8, filed on
-Febfuaw—z—'/—May 31, 26262017 (File No. 333- 236685218365 ) * 10. 4 3—+FermofUSRestricted-Stoek UnitAward

Agfeeﬂ&eﬂt—fer—gf&nfﬁe—exeet&ﬁe—efﬁeefs—tmder—fhe—)dnus Henderson (Jroup plc :Ph-rfd—ﬁcmeﬂded-&ﬂd—Reﬁafed%G-}O—Befeﬁed-

%9-1-9—6F—1-}e—Ne—333-—3-8—1-939—*—1-9—4—Second Amended and Restated Income Deferral Program %9—1-9—]:eﬂg—"11efrn—l-ﬂeeﬁﬁve
SteekPlan-, effective May 30 A




Appeﬂdﬁ&&éFerfet&tr&&ﬂd-G}awbaelé-effeeﬁveﬁugusH&— 2()17 is hereby mcorpomted by referenee hom Exhlblt 10. 32—9 to

JHG’ s AnmaalReperton-Form 10- Q, filed on August 8 K-fer-the-yearendedDeeember3+, 2017 (File No. 001- 38103) * 10.
5 Seeond-Janus Henderson Group plc F ourth Amended and Restated Dlrector Deferred Fee %9-1—2—E-mp-}ey-meﬂt—l-n&ueemenf
AW&rd-Pldn effectl\ e May 30, 7()17 s-h

effeet—ﬁe—&pri-l—l,—%@-l—} is heleby 1nc01pomted by refeIence from Exhlblt 10. 10 -1-9—9—t0 .]H(J ] F01m 10- Q hled on May—Z—

August 8 , 2649-2017 (File No. 333-001 - 2+8365-38103 ) * 10. 7Janus-6 Amended and Restated Investment and Strategic

Cooperation Agreement, dated October 3, 2016, by and among Henderson Group plc Feunrth-Amended-and-Restated-Mutuat

'F'tlﬂd—Shﬂfe-Iﬁ'VGSﬁ‘l‘leﬁt—P'}&ﬂ- ef-feet—we—May%@-Janus Capltal Group Inc and Dai- 1ch1 Llfe Holdlngs 2—9—1—7—Inc , is hereby
A AR,

Statement on Fo1m F-4, flled on Mmch —2() 2017 (Flle No 333- 21()824)-*—1() -l—l—Ruw}es—7 Termmatlon and Amendment
Agreement, dated as of t-he—F ebruary 4, 2021, by and between Janus Henderson Group plc Beferred—Equ-&y—P—l&n—éBE—P)—and
Dai- ichi Life Holdings, Inc. , is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 46-1 to Registrant-JHG ~ s t
Statement-Current Report on Form £8 - K, dated February 4 fited-on-Mareh-, 26;26+7- 2021 (File No. 333- 246824-38103 )
#-10. 42-8 Service Agreement between Henderson Group plc Restrieted-Share-Plan-and Roger Thompson, effective from
June 26, 2013 , is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. +4-5 to JHG’ s Registration Statement on Form F- 4 , filed
on March 20, 2017 (File No. 333- 216824) * 10. +3-Serviee-Agreement9 CEO Offer letter, dated March 23, 2022, between

Janus Henderson Group ple and Ali Dibadj Riehard-Weth-effeetivefromAtgust52648-is hereby incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.33-1 to JHG’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended September36-March 31 , 2648-2022
(File No. 001- 28102) *10. H—See&emeﬁt—lﬂ Severance nghts Ameement dated Neveﬁabeﬁl-&March 23 %92—1—2022

3-8+93)L1-9€—1—Se1\ ice A(neement between Henderson Admlmstrdtlve lelted and Geerg-ma—Fege—James R. Lowry

eﬁectlve from -M&reh—lé—May 21, %9-1-8— 2021 *

W@%—Jdnus Henderson (Jroup plc 7()22 Defened lncentlve Plan 1S hereby mcorpomted by referenee hom Exhlblt 10.
2 to JHG’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 (File No. 001- 38103) * 10. 24-13 Janus
Henderson Group plc 2022 Global Employee Stock Purchase Plan is hereby incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10. 3 to
JHG’ s Quarterly Report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2022 (File No. 001- 38103) * 10. 25-14 Janus Henderson
Group Global Remuneration Policy Statement * * * 10. 26-15 Form of US DIP Share Unit (RSU) Award Agreement for grants
to executive officers under the Janus Henderson Group 2022 Deferred Incentive Plan on or after January 1, 2023 , is hereby
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10. 26 of JHG' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31,
2022 (File No. 333- 38103) * 10. 2716 Form of US DIP Fund Award Agreement for grants to executive officers under the
Janus Henderson Group 2022 Deferred Incentive Plan on or after January 1, 2023 , is hereby incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10. 27 of JHG' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2022 (File No. 333- 38103) * 10.
2817 Form of US DIP Performance- Based Share Unit (PSU) Award Agreement for grants to executive officers under the Janus
Henderson Group 2022 Deferred Incentive Plan on or after January 1, 2023 %, is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10. 28 of JHG' s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (File No. 333- 38103) * 10. 290-18
Form of US DIP Matching Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Award Agreement for matching grants under the Janus Henderson

group-Group 2022 Deferred Incentive Plan on or after January 1, 2023 #40-36-Separation-and-Release-Agreement, dated



Atrgast16; betweenrTiph 8 is hereby incorporated by reference fresrto
Exhibit 10. +46-29 of JHG = Qttaﬁefly—Annual Repon on F01m 1() Q—K fo1 the guarter-year ended September36-December
31, 26232022 (File No. 664333 - 38103) * 19. 1 Janus Henderson Group plc Share Trading Policy * * 21. | List of the
Subsidiaries of the company prepared pursuant to Item 601 (b) (21) of Regulation S- K * * 23. 1 Consent of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm — PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP * * 24, 1 Power of Attorney (included as a part of the
Signature pages to this report) 31. 1 Certification of Ali Dibadj, Chief Executive Officer of Registrant * * 31. 2 Certification of
Roger Thompson, Chief Financial Officer of Registrant * * 32. 1 Certification of Ali Dibadj, Chief Executive Officer of
Registrant, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 * * 32.
2 Certification of Roger Thompson, Chief Financial Officer of Registrant, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002 * * 97. 1 Janus Henderson Group plc Clawback Policy for
Executive Officers #-is hereby incorporated by reference to Exhibit 97. 1 of JHG’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the
year ended December 31, 2023 (File No. 333- 38103) * 101. INS Inline XBRL Insurance Document — the instance document
does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document. 101. SCH
Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 101. CAL Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
Document 101. DEF Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 101. LAB Inline XBRL Taxonomy
Extension Label Linkbase Document 101. PRE Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document Cover
Page Interactive Data File (the cover page XBRL tags are embedded in the Inline XBRL document) * Management contract or
compensatory plan or agreement. * * Filed with this Report. ITEM 16. FORM 10- K SUMMARY Signatures Pursuant to the
requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Janus Henderson Group plc By: /s / ALI DIBADJ Ali
Dibadj, Chief Executive Officer Known all persons by these presents, that each person whose signatures appear below, hereby
constitute and appoint Ali Dibadj and Michelle Rosenberg, and each of them individually (with full power to act alone), as their
true and lawful attorneys- in- fact and agents to sign and execute and file with the Securities Exchange Commission on behalf of
the undersigned, any amendments to Janus Henderson Group plc’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December
31, 206232024 , and any instrument or document filed as part of, as an exhibit to, or in connection with any amendment, and each
of the undersigned does hereby ratify and confirm as his or her own act and deed all that said attorneys shall lawfully do or
cause to be done by virtue thereof. Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on February 27, 2624-2025 .
Signature / Name Title /s / JOHN CASSADAY Chairman of the Board John Cassaday /s / ALI DIBADIJ Director and Chief
Executive Officer Ali Dibadj (Principal Executive Officer) /s / ROGER THOMPSON Chief Financial Officer Roger Thompson
(Principal Financial Officer) / s / BRENNANHUYGHES-BERG CRAWFORD Chief Accounting Officer Berg Crawford and
FreasurerBreananrHughes{ Principal Accounting Officer) Signature / Name Title /s / BRIAN BALDWIN Director Brian
Baldwin /s / KALPANA DESAI Director Kalpana Desai /s / KEVIN DOLAN Director Kevin Dolan /s / EUGENE FLOOD JR
Director Eugene Flood Jr /s / JOSH FRANK Director Josh Frank /s / ALISON QUIRK Director Alison Quirk /s / LESLIE F.
SEIDMAN Director Leslie F. Seidman /s / ANGELA SEYMOUR- JACKSON Director Angela Seymour- Jackson /s / ANNE
SHEEHAN Director Anne Sheehan Exhibit 10. 25-11 Ref: RW / James Lowry 21 May 2021 Dear James I am pleased to
confirm our offer to you to join Henderson Administration Limited (the Company) on the following terms, subject to: e
proof that you are entitled to work in the United Kingdom; e the Company’ s satisfaction with the outcome of reference,
criminal records and other pre- employment checks as required by the Company. For the avoidance of doubt, the above
conditions must be satisfied prior to the commencement of your employment. If you are unable to satisfy these
conditions this Agreement will not take effect. In order to prove your entitlement to work in the UK, you must, prior to
the commencement of your employment, produce the original of your passport (and biometric residence permit, if you
have one) for copying by us. In addition, because of the nature of your position, the Company may determine that your
employment should be subject to the acceptance of your application for registration by the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA). In view of this, you are required to complete and return the enclosed FCA form. Under the FCA rules, the
Company is required to ensure that appropriate employees have, or undergo training to acquire, the requisite knowledge
and skills to enable them to perform their duties competently and with due regard to the needs of their clients and the
requirements of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. Accordingly, if the Company determines that your role
requires, upon taking up your employment, you will be provided with appropriate induction training to enable you to
gain sufficient knowledge of Janus Henderson’ s products, funds and procedures. Following that you will need to
demonstrate continuously that you remain Threshold Competent. Should you at any stage fail to maintain Threshold
Competence, the Company may terminate your employment. The following terms include the statutory particulars we
are required to give you in accordance with the terms of the Employment Rights Act 1996, which, together with the
contractual sections of the Employee Handbook make up your contract of employment (the Agreement). Where there is
any conflict between the statement of terms of employment and the contractual sections of the Employee Handbook the
statement of terms will apply. We do not automatically send out copies of the Employee Handbook, as it is available on
the Source (the Company’ s intranet). If you wish to see a copy before accepting this offer, please let me know. 1. Date of
commencement of employment 1. 1Your employment with the Company will, subject to the conditions above, commence
on a date to be mutually agreed between you and the Company. The mutually agreed date should be entered where
indicated on the copy of this letter which you return as signifying acceptance of these terms (such date being the
Commencement Date). 1. 2The first six months of your employment will constitute a probationary period (the
Probationary Period). During the Probationary Period the Company will review your work and contribution to the
Company and will decide whether to confirm your ongoing employment. Alternatively the Company may at its option




extend the Probationary Period where this is deemed necessary and / or where satisfactory references or evidence of
your qualifications, identity or entitlement to work in the UK have not been received. 1. 3Your period of continuous
employment for the purposes of the Employment Rights Act 1996 will begin on the Commencement Date. 2. Duties 2.
1Your job title is Global Chief Operating Officer and you will perform and observe such duties as may from time to time
be required of you by the Company. The Company reserves the right to change reporting lines and change, add or
withdraw duties subject to giving you prior notice. 2. 2You consent to the secondment or transfer of your employment
under this Agreement to an Associated Employer (within the meaning of the Employment Rights Act 1996) at any time
during your employment. 2. 3The Company has the right to require you to remain away from the office at any time and
for any period, and to modify or reassign your duties, provided that the Company continues to pay your Basic Salary
during such period. 2. 4You agree that you will act in the best interests of the Company and the Janus Henderson Group
at all times during your employment. 3. Remuneration and benefits 3. 1Basic salary 3. 1. 1 Your initial basic salary will
be £ 280, 000 per annum (Basic Salary) payable in equal monthly instalments in arrears on the 25th day of each month to
a bank account in the UK, as directed by you. If you join or leave the Company part way through a month you will be
paid for the number of working days worked in that month. The method for calculating a day' s pay for these purposes
will be your Basic Salary (or, if applicable, your Adjusted Salary (defined below)) divided by 260. Where you have
agreed with the Company that your Basic Salary will be reduced as part of a salary sacrifice arrangement, you will be
paid instead an “ Adjusted Salary ”, being the Basic Salary less the authorised reduction. 3. 1. 2 Salaries are reviewed in
the first quarter of each year and your salary will first be reviewed in the first calendar year following the
Commencement Date, provided that the Commencement Date falls before 1 October in the immediately preceding
calendar year. The Company would, however, have no obligation to increase your salary consequent on any such review.
3. 2Discretionary Bonus 3. 2. 1 You will be eligible to be considered for an annual discretionary bonus under the
Company’ s bonus scheme in place from time to time. To be eligible to receive any award, you must be in employment
with, and not have given notice of termination to, or received notice of termination from, the Company for any reason
whatsoever by the date payment would otherwise be made. Any award will be entirely at the discretion of the Company
and is not part of your contractual remuneration and is not pensionable. 3. 2. 2 Award of bonuses (if any) is usually
made in the first quarter of each year, and any awards which are made are determined by reference to performance in
the calendar year (the Performance Year) preceding the award. You will be eligible to be considered for a bonus award
if you are in the Company’ s employment on that date and not under notice of termination. You will not be eligible to be
considered for a bonus award if the Commencement Date was after 1 October in the relevant Performance Year. 3. 2.3
The amount and form of any discretionary bonus award will be determined by the Company in its absolute discretion
taking into account such factors as the Company considers, from time to time, to be appropriate, which may include the
performance of Janus Henderson Group plc and the relevant business area, and the performance, contribution and
conduct of the individual. 3. 2. 4 The fact that the Company may pay you a bonus in one year does not mean that you will
receive a bonus in any later year and you should not expect this. The Company has the right in its absolute discretion to
amend any aspect of the scheme or to withdraw it completely and in particular (without limitation) the Company may
impose conditions in relation to forfeiture and / or clawback. 3. 3Deferred Incentive Plan Award (DIP) 3. 3. 1 Subject to
the provisions of this clause and Compensation Committee of the JHG Board of Directors approval (if required) you will
be granted an award valued at $ 300, 000 in Janus Henderson Group plc shares (the DIP Award). 3. 3. 2 If approved, the
DIP Award will be made to you under and subject to the rules of the Janus Henderson Group plc Deferred Incentive
Plan (the DIP Rules); in the event of any conflict between the DIP Rules and the terms of this Agreement, the DIP Rules
will override the terms of this Agreement. Capitalised terms used within this clause that are not otherwise defined, are
defined in the DIP Rules. 3. 3. 3 The number of shares in Janus Henderson Group plc making up the Award (the “
Shares ) will be calculated using the New York Stock Exchange average high /low trading prices on the Grant Date.
The Grant Date will be the date of your commencement of your employment with the Company. To the extent the Grant
Date falls in a closed trading period, the Grant date will be the first day following the end of the closed period. 3. 3. 4 The
DIP Award will be granted at nil cost and will, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set out in this Agreement and the
DIP Rules, vest on the first, second and third anniversary of the Grant Date in three equal tranches (the “ Vesting Dates
). Amount $ 100, 000 $ 100, 000 $ 100, 000 3. 3. 5 The period of time between the Grant Date and each Vesting Date is
the Restricted Period. During the Restricted Period the Shares will remain in the trust. Prior to the Vesting Date, you
will have a conditional right to receive the Shares only. 3. 3. 6 Vesting of each Tranche of DIP Award is strictly subject to
the following conditions: 3. 3. 6. 1 you remaining in employment and not having given or received notice of termination
of employment for any reason and by or on the relevant payment and / or vesting dates; and 3. 3. 6. 2 you not being
subject to the Company’ s disciplinary procedure or any other actions which would result in forfeiture of any or all of
the award as may be required pursuant to any applicable laws or regulations prior to the relevant payment and / or
vesting dates. 3. 3. 7 In the event of any dispute over whether any of the DIP Award Tranches will vest, the Company’ s
view will prevail. 3. 4 Incentive schemes and remuneration policies 3. 4. 1 Any proportion of any award or payment may
at the Company' s discretion be paid in the form of shares in Janus Henderson Group plc or other instruments. The
Company may require you to defer a proportion of any award or payment into the Company’ s deferral scheme from
time to time in force. The terms of the current deferral scheme will be communicated to you in the event that any award
or payment reaches the appropriate deferral threshold. 3. 4. 2 If, on termination of employment (whether lawfully or in
breach of contract) you lose any award, or proportion of an award, or any of the rights or benefits under any incentive,
deferral or other scheme in which you have participated during your employment (including rights or benefits which you
would not have lost had your employment not terminated) you will not be entitled, by way of compensation for loss of



office, breach of contract or otherwise, to any compensation for the loss of any such award, rights or benefits. 3. 4. 3 If
the amount of any award or payment made to you pursuant to your employment exceeds any maximum amount that
may be paid to you pursuant to any law or relevant regulation in effect at the time of such award or payment (or vesting
thereof), your eligibility or entitlement (as relevant) will be reduced to the maximum amount allowed under such law or
regulation and the Company' s obligations to make any such award or payment will be reduced accordingly. You agree
that if such a payment or award has already been received by you, you will on demand repay any excess above the
maximum permitted amount (less any tax already paid). 3. 4. 4 The provisions of this clause 3 apply not only to any
awards and payments referred to in this Agreement but also to any awards and payments made to you subsequently,
irrespective of whether the provisions of this clause are repeated in any notification relating to such awards or payments.
For the avoidance of doubt, ¢ awards’ and ¢ payments’ may include (but are not limited to) all types of bonuses,
incentives, fees (whether discretionary or guaranteed) and salary. 3. SMedical Cover 3. 5. 1 You and your accompanying
family members will be covered under the global Cigna benefits plan. To reduce your tax cost on this benefit, you will
receive a monthly allowance of GBP 470 which will be subject to usual deductions for tax. 3. 6Relocation Provisions 3. 6.
1 Immigration / Visa Assistance The Company will assist with securing the appropriate work permit / visa for you and
your accompanying family members. The Company will co- ordinate these applications with its immigration provider,
as appropriate. 3. 6. 2 Travel You and your accompanying family members will be entitled to a one- way business class
flight from Boston to London. You may claim the cost of reasonable taxi and public transport costs to and from the
airports via the usual expense claims process. 3. 6. 3 Temporary Accommodation You will be entitled to up to 30 days
temporary accommodation to be used in the home and / or host location. 3. 6. 4 Shipment of Personal Effects You will be
entitled to the following surface shipment / airfreight: Surface ShipmentAirfreightAccompanied children40 foot
container (60cbm) 720 lbs 220 lbs per dependentInsurancecapped at £ 2, 000 per cbm Please read the section detailing
Excluded Items in the New Hire Relocation Policy as any additional costs incurred will be your own responsibility. It is
your responsibility to ensure that legal, insurance, customs and other administration is complied with at ports of entry or
exit. You should ensure that you have the necessary paperwork to facilitate clearance of your goods through customs. 3.
6. 5 Settling In Assistance You will be entitled to one day of settling in support. 3. 6. 6 Relocation Allowance To
contribute to miscellaneous relocation costs in both the home and host locations you will receive a one- time taxable
allowance of GBP 3, 500. This will be paid in your first payroll and will be subject to usual deductions for tax. 3. 6. 7 Tax
Assistance You will receive a one- time taxable allowance of GBP 10, 000 to assist you with your tax return filings during
your time in London. This will be paid in your first payroll and will be subject to usual deductions for tax. You are
responsible for any tax liabilities, both in the US and the UK, and for complying with your tax filing and payment
obligations. 3. 6. 8 These relocation provisions are subject to the following conditions: The terms of your relocation
provisions must be agreed and confirmation provided to the Company prior to your relocation. Your signature acts as
confirmation of your understanding and acceptance of the terms and conditions. You and any accompanying dependants
being granted the appropriate work or residence permit and / or visa and these authorisations are in place prior to the
transfer. 3. 6. 9 Relocation Cost Reclaim on Resignation If you resign or are terminated for gross misconduct within 12
months of the relocation, the Company will look to reclaim up to 50 % of the costs borne by the Company for your
relocation. These will include the cost of: Flights to new location Air / surface shipment costs Temporary accommodation
costs Relocation allowance 3. 7Pension scheme 3. 7. 1 You will automatically join the money purchase section of the UK
staff pension scheme, subject to the rules of the scheme. A copy of the Pension Scheme Booklet which sets out the rules of
the scheme is enclosed. You should familiarise yourself with this document. 3. 7. 2 The Company reserves the right to
amend or discontinue the pension scheme or its rules at any time, subject to having given the employees affected prior
notice. 3. 7. 3 The trustees of the pension scheme and their advisers and administrators (as detailed in the Annual
Scheme Report and Accounts) will need to process certain data about you. These may include items which are
categorised as special categories of personal data under the General Data Protection Regulations such as health details or
death benefit nominations. You accept that the trustees and their advisers and administrators need this data to calculate
and pay benefits for statistical purposes for reference purposes and to administer the pension scheme as a whole. Further
details of this processing are set out in the Janus Henderson Group’ s Employee Privacy Statement. 4. Absence from
work 4. 1Sickness or injury 4. 1. 1 If you are ill or injured and unable to attend work, you must notify your manager
within one hour of your contractual start time, on each day of your absence where this is for seven calendar days or
fewer. You must return to work as soon as you are fit to do so. Full details of the procedures in case of sickness or injury
are set out in the Employee Handbook, which will be available to you on the Company’ s intranet. 4. 2Sick Pay 4. 2. 1 If
your employment is confirmed after your Probationary Period, you may be entitled to receive company sick pay under
the Company sick pay policy as a discretionary entitlement to your full salary and contractual benefits. There is no
entitlement to be paid salary during absence due to ill health during the Probationary Period. Further details of this can
be found in the Handbook. 4. 2. 2 Any payments made by the Company on account of absence through sickness or injury
will be inclusive of any entitlements you may have to statutory sick pay and will be reduced by any benefits to which you
may be entitled from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) as a result of such sickness or injury (whether or
not claimed or recovered). You should claim any benefits due from the DWP. 4. 3Medical examinations / reports 4. 3. 1 If
required, the Company may ask you to produce a medical certificate and / or we may ask you at any time to undergo a
medical examination by your own registered medical practitioner subject to your consent and your rights under the
Access to Medical Reports Act. The Company may also ask you to undergo a medical examination by a registered
medical practitioner of our own choice and at our own expense. This will be discussed with you in more detail at the
relevant time. 5. Hours of work 5. 1Your standard working week is 35 hours: 9. 00 am to 5. 00 pm, Monday to Friday,



with a one hour break for lunch. 5. 2The Company reserves the right to alter established working hours to meet business
contingencies. From time to time, you may be required to work additional hours for the proper performance of your
duties. You will not be entitled to additional remuneration for working outside your standard hours of work. 6. Holidays
6. 1The Company’ s holiday year runs from 1 January to 31 December. 6. 2Your annual holiday entitlement (including
statutory entitlement) is 30 days, in addition to the usual public holidays. 6. 3Your annual holiday entitlement accrues at
the rate of 1 /365th per calendar day. If you join the Company or your holiday entitlement changes part way through
the holiday year, your holiday entitlement (s) will be pro- rated on this basis. 6. 41f you leave the Company part way
through the holiday year, your entitlement will be calculated in the same way. You will be paid for any holiday which has
accrued during the final holiday year of your employment, but which has not been taken by the last day of your
employment. If you have taken holiday in excess of your entitlement, you will be required to repay to the Company the
relevant amount, which you agree may be deducted from your final salary payment or other sums otherwise owed from
the Company pursuant to the Employment Rights Act 1996. 6. SThe method of calculating a day' s pay for holiday pay
and unpaid leave will be your Basic Salary (or, if applicable, your Adjusted Salary) divided by 260 for full- time
employees; for part- time employees, holiday pay will be calculated by the same method but on a pro- rated basis. 6.
6Holiday may only be carried over into a new holiday year if there are legitimate business reasons which have prevented
you from taking your full allowance, and subject to authorisation by the head of your business area. Additional
information regarding holidays is set out in the Employee Handbook. 7. Employee Handbook 7. 1'The Company reserves
the right to make alterations to the Employee Handbook at any time. 8. Season ticket loan 8. 1You are eligible to apply
for a loan to purchase an annual season ticket; the granting of such a loan will be entirely at the Company' s discretion.
This loan is interest- free and will be recovered monthly from your salary. The outstanding amount of any loan will
become immediately repayable upon the termination of your employment or the surrender of the ticket. 9. Notice 9.
1Subject to clause 10 below, in order to terminate your employment, during or on the expiry of your Probationary
Period either party will be required to give the other party one month’ s written notice: 9. 2Following the successful
completion of your Probationary Period and subject to clause 10 below, in order to terminate your employment, either
party will be required to give the other party written notice as follows: 9. 2. 1 from the Company to you: 6 months (or the
statutory minimum, if longer) 9. 2. 2 from you to the Company: 6 months. 9. 3 Notwithstanding clause 9. 1 and 9. 2, the
Company may, in its sole and absolute discretion, terminate your employment at any time and with immediate effect by
making a payment in lieu of notice equal to the basic salary which you would have been entitled to receive under this
Agreement during the notice period referred to above, (or, if notice has already been given, during the remainder of the
notice period) less income tax and National Insurance contributions. For the avoidance of doubt, basic pay shall not
include any bonus, commission, award or payments that might otherwise be due during this period. 9. 4The Company
will not be obliged to provide work to you at any time after notice of termination of your employment has been given
either by you or by the Company and the Company may, at its discretion, take any one or more of the following steps in
respect of all or part of an unexpired period of notice (Garden Leave): 9. 4. 1 require you to comply with such conditions
as it may specify in relation to attending at, or remaining away from, the places of business of the Company and any
company in the Janus Henderson Group; 9. 4. 2 assign you to other duties; 9. 4. 3 withdraw any powers vested in, or
duties assigned to you; or 9. 4. 4 require you to take any outstanding holiday. 10. Termination of employment without
notice 10. 1 Notwithstanding the notice periods set out in clause 9 above the Company may, by written notice, terminate
your employment immediately and without compensation (except for salary and holiday pay accrued, due but unpaid) in
any of the following circumstances: 10. 1. 1 if you are in serious or repeated default of any of your obligations of
employment; 10. 1. 2 if you are guilty of gross or persistent misconduct, dishonesty or any conduct tending to bring the
Company into disrepute; 10. 1. 3 if you are imprisoned for any reason or convicted of a crime other than a minor offence
under the Road Traffic Acts; 10. 1. 4 you fail to achieve or maintain any relevant regulatory approval appropriate to
your position; 10. 1. 5 are declared bankrupt or enter into or make any arrangement or composition with or for the
benefit of your creditors generally or have a County Court administration order made against you under the County
Court Act 1984; 10. 1. 6 breach the Company’ s policies and procedures including without limitation those relating to
anti- bribery and corruption and those dealing with use of internet, e mail and / or social media or otherwise makes use
social media in a way which is likely to prejudice the reputation of the Company, or the Janus Henderson Group or its /
their employees or clients; 10. 1. 7 infringe or the Company has reasonable suspicion that you have infringed any rules
or regulations of any regulatory or other external authority or professional body applicable to your employment or
which regulate the performance of your duties; 10. 1. 8 knowingly or negligently supply any misleading, inaccurate or
false information in connection with any investigation or procedure of the regulators relating to the Company’ s or any
Janus Henderson Group regulated activities; 10. 1. 9 commit (by action or omission) any serious breach of compliance
rules; 10. 1. 10 if employment references and / or verified evidence of your qualifications, identity or right to work are
not forthcoming or prove inadequate or unsatisfactory (where you have commenced employment before the Company
has received such documentation); or 10. 1. 11 if you cease to be eligible to work in the UK. 11. Location 11. 1 Your
normal place of work will be the London office of the Company or such other place within the United Kingdom as the
Company may from time to time determine. You may also be required to travel to such places, whether in or outside the
UK as the Company may from time to time require. 12. Disciplinary and grievance procedures 12. 1 Details of the
Company’ s disciplinary and grievance procedures are contained in the Employee Handbook. These rules may be
amended by the Company from time to time at its absolute discretion. 13. Collective agreements 13. 1 There are no
collective agreements in force which directly affect your employment. 14. Health and safety 14. 1 You are required to
observe such health and safety regulations as may from time to time be in force at your place of work. The health and



safety policy is displayed on notice boards in the Company’ s London office. 15. Financial regulation 15. 1 You have an
obligation to act and conduct yourself in conformity with the rules of the FCA, any other regulatory organisation
constituted in accordance with the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and any other relevant overseas regulatory
authority. 15. 2 All employees must comply and co- operate fully with all instructions, directions, requirements or
requests made or imposed by or on behalf of our regulators under the relevant rules. In particular you must comply with
all relevant principles, rules and requirements of the FCA where applicable including the FCA’ s Conduct Rules. 15. 3
You will perform one or more senior management function (s) and will need to be aware of, and fully compliant with,
your obligations in this respect. In addition, in performing your senior management function (s) you must take all
reasonable steps to ensure that the Company and any Janus Henderson group company in respect of which you have
responsibilities comply with its regulatory obligations. 15. 4 You will discharge your responsibilities in your role as set
out in your statement (s) of responsibilities in relation to any Janus Henderson group company (as amended from time to
time). It is your responsibility during your employment with the Company to notify the Company if you consider that
any changes in your duties during the course of performing your role impacts on such statement (s) of responsibilities.
The Company and / or any Janus Henderson group company shall determine in its absolute discretion which approvals
from the appropriate regulators are necessary for you to carry out your duties, as amended from time to time. 15. 4. 1
You consent to the Company and / or any Janus Henderson group company and / or any appropriate regulator
undertaking such vetting as is necessary during your employment to verify that you continue to meet the required
standards of fitness and propriety for your function. You must co- operate with any such vetting and provide any
information requested by the Company and / or any Janus Henderson group company and / or any appropriate
regulator. You warrant that you meet the required standard of fitness and propriety for your function; and 15. 4. 2 you
have notified the Company of any matter which is or could be relevant to the Company’ s and / or any Janus Henderson
group company and / or any appropriate regulator’ s assessment of your fitness and propriety. It is your responsibility
during your employment with the Company to notify the Company immediately of any information which is or could be
relevant to the Company’ s and / or any Janus Henderson group company’ s and / or any appropriate regulator’ s
assessment of your fitness and propriety. If you are in doubt as to the relevance of such information, you should discuss
this with the Company. Your continued employment is conditional upon you maintaining any applicable regulatory
approvals; and 15. 5 the Company and / or any Janus Henderson group company and / or any appropriate regulator
being satisfied that you continue to meet the required standards of fitness and propriety for your function. The
Company reserves the right to amend your duties for it or any Janus Henderson group company, or terminate your
employment with immediate effect, in the event of any breach of the above warranties or failure to meet any of the
conditions set out above (for example ceasing to hold any applicable regulatory approvals or the Company and / or any
Janus Henderson group company no longer being satisfied that you meet the required standards of fitness and propriety
for your function). 15. 6 During your employment and after the termination of your employment you undertake to co-
operate fully with the Company or any Janus Henderson group company or its or their advisers in relation any internal
investigation or other internal enquiry or any investigation or other enquiry by the (FCA) or any other regulatory
authorities, clearing houses and exchanges, professional bodies, or government bodies or agencies in relation to the
Company or any Janus Henderson group company or any litigation brought by or against the Company or any Janus
Henderson group company in any case relating (in whole or in part) to matters with which you are involved during your
employment with the Company. 15. 7 During your employment and after the termination of your employment you
undertake to co- operate fully with the Company or any Janus Henderson group company or its or their advisers in
relation to the comprehensive, timely and accurate handover of your duties. 15. 8 You are required to comply with the
rules for employees' personal investment transactions (the'" Personal Code of Ethics'"), relating to the purchase and sale
of securities, details of which are enclosed. 16. Confidentiality 16. 1 There is a need for strict confidentiality in connection
with all the Company' s business. You agree that you will not, either during your employment or thereafter, use to the
detriment or prejudice of the Company or the Janus Henderson Group or, except in the proper course of your duties,
divulge to any person any trade secret or information of a private, secret or confidential nature concerning the business,
finances or affairs of the Company of the Janus Henderson Group or any of their respective customers, clients or
suppliers (including but not limited to terms of contracts or arrangements, existing and potential projects, accounts,
information regarding customers, clients or suppliers, disputes, business development and / or marketing programmes
and plans) which have or may have come to your knowledge during the course of your employment with the Company
and you will use your best endeavours to prevent the publication or disclosure by others of any such trade secret or
confidential information. 16. 2 The restrictions contained in this clause do not apply to any disclosure by you: 16. 3
which amounts to a protected disclosure within the meaning of section 43A of the Employment Rights Act 1996 and / or
policy on disclosure operated by the Company from time to time; 16. 4 in order to report an offence to a law enforcement
agency or to co- operate with a criminal investigation or prosecution; 16. S for the purposes of reporting misconduct, or a
serious breach of regulatory requirements to any body responsible for supervising or regulating the matters in question;
16. 6 to the Equality and Human Rights Commission; 16. 7 authorised by the Board or required in the ordinary and
proper course of your employment or required by the order of a court of competent jurisdiction or by an appropriate
regulatory authority; or 16. 8 as otherwise required by law. 17. Return of papers etc. 17. 1 You will promptly, whenever
requested by the Company and in any event upon the termination of your employment, deliver to the Company all lists
of clients or customers, correspondence and all other documents, papers and records, including computer information
and disks, which may have been prepared by you or have come into your possession, custody or control in the course of
your employment, and you will not be entitled to and will not retain any copies thereof. Title and copyright therein will



remain with the Company. 18. Other employment 18. 1 During your employment, you must not be engaged in any other
business without prior written consent of the Company. 19. Deductions 19. 1 We are entitled to deduct from your pay or
any other sums payable to you by the Company any sums which you may owe us including (without limitation): 19. 1. 1
loans including advances of salary; and 19. 1. 2 a day’ s pay for each day of unauthorised absence (including any
unauthorised absence during your notice period or failure to make yourself available for work). Unauthorised absence
means failure to notify us in accordance with the sickness notification provisions or to obtain our written consent before
being absent from work other than as authorised by and subject to the terms of your contract. 19. 2 All sums payable by
the Company will be subject to deductions required by law. 20. Third party rights 20. 1 You and the Company agree
that any rights which a third party (other than a member of the Janus Henderson Group) may acquire under this
contract of employment by reason of the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 are excluded. 21. Data protection
21. 1 During the course of your employment, you acknowledge that the Company will need to hold, access or process
personal data relating to you in accordance with the Janus Henderson Group’ s Employee Privacy Statement (the
Employee Privacy Statement ) as may be provided to you and amended from time to time. 21. 2 You are obliged to
familiarise yourself and comply with the Data Protection Policy and any privacy statements as issued or updated from
time to time and undertake to: 21. 2. 1 take all reasonable steps to ensure that confidential information relating to or
belonging to the Company or the Janus Henderson Group, or personal data which you access, hold or process during the
course of your employment will not be available or disclosed to third parties and will be kept securely by you,
particularly if such information is accessed by or accessible to you via a mobile device; and 21. 2. 2 immediately notify
the Company if you become aware of any unauthorised disclosures of any confidential information relating to or
belonging to the Company or the Janus Henderson Group, or personal data or any other breaches of the Data Protection
Policy. 21. 3 You acknowledge that a failure to meet the obligations in clause 21. 2 may lead to disciplinary action. 21. 4
You must not use any personal computer which is not under the custody or control of the Company (or other electronic
equipment capable of holding / processing personal data) for any business of the Company or the Janus Henderson
Group without first obtaining authorisation from your manager. If you wish to change the nature and / or extent of such
authorised usage you must first obtain approval from your manager. Business related information (including personal /
sensitive information) must not be stored, processed, or transported on personally owned devices that do not run Janus
Henderson approved IT controls to protect such information. You should refer to the Data Protection Policy and the
Acceptable Use Policy for additional guidance. 21. 5 If we instruct you to do so (and in any event when your employment
terminates for whatever reason) you must surrender all manual data relating to any business of the Company or the
Janus Henderson Group and erase all data relating to any business of the Company or the Janus Henderson Group from
any computer to which you have access but which is not under the custody or control of the Company. In such
circumstances you must also surrender (or destroy) any paper copies made of such data. 21. 6 For the purposes of your
employment with us we may process any data we hold in respect of you in accordance with the Employee Privacy
Statement. For the avoidance of doubt, processing includes the monitoring of your e- mails and computer use to the
extent we consider necessary to ensure compliance with our e- mail policy, legal and regulatory obligations and any
other roles or policies which apply from time to time. 22. Covenants 22. 1 For the purposes of clause 22, Termination
Date means the date of the termination of your employment howsoever caused (including, without limitation,
termination by the Company which is in repudiatory breach of this Agreement). 22. 2 You covenant with the Company
(for itself and as trustee and agent for each other company in the Janus Henderson Group) that you will not, whether
directly or indirectly, on your own behalf or on behalf of or in conjunction with any other person, firm, company or
other entity: 22. 2. 1 during employment and for the period of 6 months following the Termination Date (subject to clause
22. 3 below), solicit or entice away or endeavour to solicit or entice away any individual who is employed or engaged by
the Company or any company in the Janus Henderson Group with whom you had business dealings in the course of your
employment in the 12 month period immediately prior to the Termination Date or commencement of any period of
Garden Leave; 22. 2. 2 during employment and for the period of 6 months following the Termination Date (subject to
clause 22. 3 below), for the purposes of any business which competes or is about to compete with any business carried on
by the Company or any company in the Janus Henderson Group, canvass, solicit, deal with or accept business or custom
from or endeavour to canvass, solicit, deal with or accept business or custom from any person, firm, company or other
entity who is, or was, in the 12 month period immediately prior to the Termination Date or commencement of any period
of Garden Leave, a client of the Company or any company in the Janus Henderson Group with whom you had business
dealings in the course of your employment in that 12 month period. Nothing in this clause 22. 2. 1 prohibits the seeking or
doing of business not in direct or indirect competition with the business of the Company or any Janus Henderson Group
Company; 22. 2. 3 during employment and for the period of 6 months following the Termination Date (subject to clause
22. 3 below), so as to compete with the Company or any company in the Janus Henderson Group, carry on, set up, be
employed, engaged or interested in a business which is itself or is about to be in competition with the business of the
Company or any company in the Janus Henderson Group as at the Termination Date with which you were actively
involved during the 12 month period immediately prior to the Termination Date or commencement of any period of
Garden Leave. It is agreed that in the event that any such business ceases to be in competition with the Company and /
or any company in the Janus Henderson Group this paragraph will, with effect from that date, cease to apply in respect
of such business. The provisions of this paragraph will not, at any time following the Termination Date, prevent you
from holding shares or other capital not amounting to more than 3 % of the total issued share capital of any company
whether listed on a recognised stock exchange or not and, in addition, will not prohibit the seeking or doing of business
not in competition with the business of the Company or any company in the Janus Henderson Group. 22. 3 The period



during which the restrictions referred to in clauses 22. 2. 1, 22. 2. 2 and 22. 2. 3 will apply following the Termination Date
will be reduced by the amount of time during which, if at all, you are placed on Garden Leave under the provisions of
clause 9. 4. 22. 4 You agree that if, during your employment with the Company or the period of the restrictions set out in
clauses 22. 2. 1, 22. 2. 2 and 22. 2. 3 (subject to the provisions of clause 22. 3), you receive an offer of employment or
engagement, you will provide a copy of clause 22 to the offeror as soon as is reasonably practicable after receiving the
offer and will inform the Company of the identity of the offeror as soon as possible after the offer is accepted. 22. 5 You
will, at the request and expense of the Company, enter into a separate agreement with any company in the Janus
Henderson Group under the terms of which you will agree to be bound by restrictions corresponding to those contained
in clauses 22. 2. 1, 22. 2. 2 and 22. 2. 3 (or such as may be appropriate in the circumstances). 22. 6 Each and every
obligation under this clause 22 will be treated as a separate obligation and will be severally enforceable as such. If any
restriction contained in this clause 22 will be adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be void or
unenforceable as going beyond what is reasonable in the circumstances but would be valid if part of the wording were
deleted the said restriction will apply with such deletions as may be necessary to make it valid and effective. 23. General
23. 1 The headings to clauses are for convenience only and have no legal effect. 23. 2 Any reference to ¢ Janus Henderson
Group’ means Janus Henderson Group plc and any and all of its subsidiaries (as such term is defined in s. 1159
Companies Act 2006). 23. 3 The validity construction and performance of this contract will be governed by English law
and subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts. 23. 4 The Agreement sets out the entire agreement and
understanding between you and the Company regarding the terms of your employment. This Agreement supersedes all
prior discussions between you the Company and all representations terms and conditions and warranties (other than in
relation to anything affecting your suitability for employment) whenever given and whether orally or in writing and any
other contracts of employment (oral or written) which you may have from or with the Company, except that nothing
herein will limit liability for fraud. I trust that this offer is acceptable. If so, I should be grateful if you would sign the
attached copy and return it to me in the envelope supplied, together with the documents listed below as enclosures.
Please note that if we have not received a signed copy of this letter within seven days the offer of employment will lapse.
We are very much looking forward to you joining the team. Yours sincerely Charles Brooks Head of Talent Acquisition
Personal Details Form Pension Scheme booklet Personal Account Dealing Rules BUPA Form and BUPA info Dental
Form and Info New Starter Form WTR Form Political Activities / Conflict of Interest Disclosure
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Definitions 8Overview 1. 1Policy Statement Janus Henderson Group plc (the “ Company ) operates a single Remuneration
Policy which applies in its entirety to all entities and employees including the executives, unless local laws or regulations set
more rigorous requirements for any aspect, in which case the higher standards apply. The GRPS is in place to ensure
remuneration aligns with evolving business strategy and changes in the markets in which we operate, is consistent with best
practice, promotes sound and effective risk management and is compliant with applicable regulations. A successful
remuneration policy should be sufficiently flexible to take account of future changes in the Company’ s business environment
and remuneration practice and therefore the GRPS is subject to change from time to time. The policy is therefore reviewed on an
annual basis. Our remuneration practices aim to link pay with performance and drive long- term shareholder returns, while
appropriately managing risk. In doing so, the Human Capital and Compensation Committee (HCCC or ““ the Committee ) and
the Board recognize that our remuneration policies and practices must enable us to attract, motivate and retain exceptional
people, while aligning their interests with those of our clients and shareholders. 1. 2Key principles The key drivers of our
remuneration philosophy are: @ Attract and retain employees critical to our long- term success; ® Fully align pay with our
strategic priorities, reinforce a strong performance culture through rewards that reflect Company, department, team and
individual performance; ® Align management, client and shareholder interests, deferring a significant portion of remuneration
into JHG stock awards and / or fund units; ® Manage risk taking and conflicts of interest in our incentive plans, maintain an
appropriate balance between base pay, short- term cash incentives and long- term deferred incentives; ® Ensure that
remuneration processes and procedures comply with industry requirements and legislation, are consistent with market practice,
and include effective risk management controls. The Company’ s remuneration principles are reinforced through an appropriate
balance of the following elements of remuneration: Base PayAttract and retain employees with the personal attributes, skills and
experience required to deliver long- term value for clients and shareholders. BenefitsProvide health benefits to support our
employees and their families, geared toward employee wellbeing, competitive within each of our local markets, cost- effective
and tax- efficient whenever possible. Offer competitive retirement and / or pension arrangements that allow employees to build
wealth, are aligned with the Company’ s risk appetite, and cost- and tax- efficient for employees and the Company. The
Company operates voluntary all employee share plans including Buy As You Earn (BAYE), Sharesave (SAYE), and an
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) in which staff can participate within approved contribution guidelines to encourage
employees to become shareholders in the Company. Variable Incentive AwardsEmployees are eligible to receive discretionary
variable incentive awards based on Company, department, and individual performance. These awards are funded from a Profit
Pool more fully described below. Variable incentives are paid in the form of cash and / or deferred awards. Deferrals are
delivered in Company restricted stock and / or fund units. Under the scorecard approach that applies to certain senior executives
as described below, a portion of the deferral is delivered in performance shares that cliff vest on the third anniversary of the
grant date using a matrix- based target derived from a combination of annual net new revenue growth and adjusted operating
margin. Performance Fee IncentivesThe Company receives performance fees in relation to certain funds depending on




outperformance of each fund against pre- determined benchmarks. Performance fees may be shared directly with investment
professionals, on a discretionary basis, subject to the Company’ s standard-deferral arrangements which apply to the variable
incentive awards described below. The Company operates a small number of formulaic performance incentive arrangements,
including legacy contractual arrangements, which predominantly relate back to historic acquisitions. These incentives are subject
to adjustment and the Company’ s deferral arrangements. Commission ArrangementsDirect front line sales professionals located
in the US participate in market- standard Sales Variable Pay Plans (the “ Plans ”) that include formulaic commissions and
discretionary incentive awards. The Plans are intended to reward sales professionals for individually generated sales and the
performance of the broader team. Monthly commissions are generally a set percentage (*“ basis points ) of individual gross sales
(basis points may increase upon achievement of key sales thresholds), or the amount may be determined based on an *
attainment’ framework and calculated as a percent of achievement relative to the sales goal. Discretionary awards are funded by
team gross sales and allocated to individuals based on achievement of key performance indicators. Individual payments from
these plans may be adjusted at the discretion of line management, and in consideration of personal conduct and behaviours. UK
employees do not receive commissions. The Company operates a maximum variable to fixed compensation ratio for Material
Risk Takers under MIFIDPRU. For all other employees the Company does not operate ratios (maxima or minima) in regard to
the mix of base pay and variable pay, opting instead for managing fixed and variable remuneration in line with market practice
and by reference to each employee ° s role and individual performance. The Company pays variable incentive remuneration for
most employees from a pool funded by Company profit (“ Profit Pool ”*). The Profit Pool funds employee variable incentive
awards, as well as performance fee remuneration (where applicable). The pool has a specific Pre- Incentive Operating Income (*
PIOI ”) calculation and a corresponding funding percentage, effectively creating a ‘ profit share’ arrangement between our
employees and our shareholders. PIOI is generally considered as operating income before the deduction of incentive
remuneration and overhead. The indicative funding percentages are subject to oversight and approval by the Human Capital and
Compensation Committee (HCCC). The HCCC retains the discretion to modify or terminate remuneration plans and
programmes without prior notice. Profit Pool funding level is directly linked to profit generated in the current year, reflecting
the firm’ s ability to pay and thereby strengthening its capital base. Adjustments to the Profit Pool are common based on
business as usual and non- recurring events that impact profitability. Additionally, the Committee may apply its discretion and
further adjust the profit pool (even to zero): olf the HCCC believes an adjustment, either up or down, better aligns the Profit
Pool with Company performance, or in consideration of any non- financial objectives or factors as appropriate, oin consideration
of an annual assessment of backward- and forward- looking risks, and / or obased on independent guidance or advice from the
JHG Board Risk Committee, the Janus Henderson UK Holdings Limited Board (“ JHUKHL Board ), or the Janus Henderson
Investors Europe SA Board (“ JHIESA Board ). The ability to adjust the Profit Pool in this manner is designed to ensure
alignment between variable compensation levels and broader company performance. The annual risk assessment considered by
the HCCC addresses types of risk relevant to the firm (including relevant sustainability risks) and allows the HCCC to
consider; if the firm” s compensation structure is adequately aligned to its risk and control environment, and whether further
adjustments to the pool should be made. In this respect, the firm’ s remuneration policy is also consistent with the integration of
relevant sustainability risks. Once the Profit Pool is calculated, allocations are cascaded to department leadership through a
process initiated by the Chief Executive Officer (the “ CEO ”), in collaboration with members of the Executive Committee.
During this allocation process, department performance and contribution toward Company results are taken into account, and
consideration is given to financial and non- financial key performance indicators as determined for each department. This group
may review relevant department level information gathered from the annual risk assessment, the review of material risk events,
and any conduct or behaviour issues. Employees receive variable incentive awards from the profit pool on a discretionary basis,
based on the recommendations of line managers and in consideration of individual performance appraisals. Under the Company’
s performance appraisal framework, employees; ® set individual objectives (jointly with line management), aligned to the
Company’ s overall strategic priorities and financial objectives, yet unique to their individual role and department, and e must
demonstrate a commitment towards diversity and inclusion, and e are expected to exhibit certain behavioural competencies,
aligned with the Company’ s values: o ‘ clients come first —always’, o © execution supersedes intention’, o * together we win’, o
¢ diversity improves results’, and o * truth builds trust’. In respect of individual incentive awards from the Profit Pool, employees
are measured against; @ achievement of their individual objectives, and @ demonstration of the above behavioural competencies.
This is a  guidance based’ approach with no specific rules constraining line manager discretion. Final decision- making and
approval of individual awards is held by department leadership. The CEO and Global Head of Total Rewards review
department outcomes, including a gender pay view, and provide oversight and direction as needed. 0The Remuneration Review
Committee (the “ RRC ) reviews individual incentive remuneration in the context of material risk events, conduct and
behaviours and may recommend an adjustment to individual incentive awards based on this review. oThe RRC also reviews
exceptional remuneration proposals relating to individuals identified as Code Staff under the MIFIDPRU, AIFMD and UCITS
Remuneration Codes. Profit Pool eligibility does not guarantee that variable incentives will be paid to an employee, and the
payment of no variable incentive is a possibility should performance of the firm and / or the individual require this. Employees
typlcally must be actively employed by Janus Henderson on the day that Profit Pool incentives are distributed in order to
receive these awards. oEmployees paid outside the Profit Pool: Empleyeesinthe-foHowingpositions-The Chief Executive
Officer (“ CEO ), Chief Financial Officer (“ CFO ), Chief Risk Ofﬁcer (“ CRO ) and Chlef Admlmstratlve Ofﬁcer (“
CAO ”) do not receive variable compensation from the Profit Pool =

€RO)-Chief Finanetal-Offieer (- CFO-and-General-Counsel. The HCCC retains decision- maklng and approval of CEO
and Executive Committee remuneration, taking into consideration Company, department, and individual performance. oAs a
result of new business acquisitions, there may be a small number of compensation arrangements that are paid outside the Profit
Pool. These are considered short- term and are to avoid any undue pressure on the Profit Pool whilst new business acquisitions



are embedding into the wider firm. Scorecard Approach The HCCC uses a structured scorecard to measure performance of the
CEO and his direct reports on the Executive Committee. The scorecard approach is designed to align senior executive
remuneration with Company performance and reward them for achieving outcomes that maximise long- term value for clients
and shareholders. The scorecard is based on the same factors used by the Company to evaluate business results. The
performance categories, measures, and weightings are as follows: oFinancial Outcomes (25 % weighting). Deliver strong
financial results for shareholders measured by revenue growth, cost management, operating margin expansion, and total
shareholder return; oClient Outcomes (25 % weighting). Deliver superior investment performance and client service measured
by three- year investment performance relative to benchmark, client satisfaction, and net AUM flows; oStrategy (25 %
weighting). Transform and articulate the Company’ s strategy to position the organization for growth; and oCulture (25 %
weighting). Embed new missions, values and purpose, create a high- performance culture focused on delivering positive client
outcomes, attract and retain diverse talent, drive cross- functional collaboration and communication, and reinforce our
commitment to Corporate Responsibility. At the end of each year, the HCCC uses the scorecard to evaluate senior executive
performance relative to the specific performance measures established at the beginning of the year. Following this assessment,
the Committee determines the total variable incentive award for these executives. Deferral arrangements Deferrals are a key
driver of our remuneration philosophy as they create employee ownership and align the interests of our employees, our clients,
and our shareholders over the long term. All employees are subject to the Company’ s standard-deferral arrangements which
apply to variable incentive awards, excluding the menthly-and-quarterly-commission arrangements described above. Deferral
rates apply to awards that exceed a minimum threshold, rates of deferral increase for larger incentive awards, or as appropriate
under the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD) or Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities (UCITS) regulations. Deferred awards vest in three equal instalments over a 3- year period. Forfeiture provisions
apply to employees who cease employment with the Company during the vesting period, other than in prescribed
circumstances. Deferrals are awarded in JHG restricted stock and / or fund units. Deferral arrangements are reviewed
periodically to ensure they remain aligned with: @ the Company’ s business strategy, associated time horizons and risk appetite;
e competitive practice in the sectors and jurisdictions in which the Company operates; and ® emerging regulatory practice.
Malus and Clawback Arrangements All deferred awards are subject to malus provisions. In addition, clawback provisions apply
to all variable pay for identified Material Risk Takers and the most senior officers (“ ExCo ) at the firm . The vesting schedule
of an award represents the minimum timeframe during which the malus and clawback provisions are applicable .
Performance Appraisals The Company operates an annual performance appraisal process on a global basis. Line managers must
undertake reviews of individual performance at least annually. In conjunction with department heads, Human Resources analyse
and calibrate performance appraisal results and consider a number of outcomes, including but not limited to; the consistent
application of ratings, the degree of performance differentiation, gender pay effects, and the alignment between pay and
performance. Additional Remuneration Policies and Practices Anti- avoidance and anti- hedging Per the Company’ s Share
Trading Policy, employees are prohibited from engaging in hedging designed to offset or reduce the risk of price fluctuations in
our common stock or any other transactions that include the use of derivatives. Identified Material Risk Takers (MRT” s) are
required to complete an annual attestation certifying that they; ounderstand that they must act and make decisions within the
Company’ s risk appetite as described in the Enterprise Risk Management Framework, and owill adhere to the Company’ s
Personal Account Dealing policy which includes a prohibition of personal hedging transactions. Guaranteed bonus and buy out
awards The Company complies with the principles of the Financial Conduct Authority Remuneration Code (s) in relation to
guaranteed bonuses in that guaranteed variable remuneration is only awarded to material risk takers or employees with AIFMD
or UCITS responsibilities in cases where: ® it is exceptional; @ it occurs in the context of hiring new staff; @ the firm has a
sound and strong capital base; and e it is limited to the first year of service. Buying out deferred bonuses is permitted subject to,
as far as possible, the timing, delivery mechanism (i. e. shares or cash) and amounts paid out being set to match the former
arrangements (quantum and vesting schedule) including, where relevant, applicable performance conditions associated with the
forfeited awards. Severance Pay The Company does not have a set policy or criteria in making a determination of an award of
severance pay. However, should it be deemed appropriate to make an award of severance pay (for example in a redundancy
situation), the Company will take into account factors such as the individual® s contribution up until the point of termination (for
example in an extended transition period or completion of a specific project), length of service and the circumstances regarding
the termination. Any severance payments are not designed to reward poor performance or misconduct. 1. 3Scope This policy
applies to all employees of Janus Henderson Group plc, its subsidiaries and affiliates. 1. 4Roles and Responsibilities
Remuneration Governance Framework Oversight, decision- making and management activities in relation to remuneration
related matters are conducted through a number of governing bodies. Human Capital and Compensation Committee of the JHG
Board of Directors The independent non- executive Directors of the Committee are responsible for; ooversight and approval
regarding CEO and Executive Committee remuneration, odecision- making regarding the Company’ s remuneration practices
and variable incentive plans, including; oreview of the annual risk assessment and approval of any adjustments to the Profit
Pool, and operiodic review of incentive plans in respect of conflicts of interest and / or mitigation of excessive risk- taking
behaviours. The Janus Henderson UK (Holdings) Limited (JHUKHL) Board reviews the application of remuneration related
matters to the UK consolidated prudential group (Regulatory Group). The Remuneration matters the JHUKHL Board are
responsible for are as follows: oApprove the application of JHG Global Remuneration Policy for the Regulatory Group,
ensuring that it is: i. consistent with and promotes sound and effective risk management within the Regulatory Group and ii.
designed to comply with applicable regulatory requirements and guidance. oPeriodically review the general principles of the
Regulatory Group Remuneration Policy and check that they are designed to comply with applicable Remuneration Codes.
oReview the Group Remuneration Policy and oversee its implementation. oApprove the MRT List for the Regulatory Group.
The JHUKHL Board delegates authority to the Regulatory Group Remuneration Committee to assist it with its oversight of the



above matters. Janus Henderson Investors Europe S. A. The Janus Henderson Investors Europe S. A (JHIESA) Board reviews
the application of remuneration related matters to JHIESA. The Remuneration matters the JHIESA Board are responsible for are
as follows: oApprove the application of the JHG Global Remuneration Policy for JHIESA, ensuring that it is: i. consistent with
and promotes sound and effective risk management within JHIESA and oPeriodically review the general principles of Global
Remuneration Policy and check that they are designed to comply with applicable JHIESA Remuneration Codes. oReview
Global Remuneration Policy and oversee its implementation and application toward JHIESA regulatory requirements, including
by encouraging the integration of sustainability aspects. oApprove the MRT List for JHIESA. The RRC includes the Global
Head of Total Rewards, the CRO and the General Counsel. This group considers guidance and feedback from relevant
department heads where appropriate and is responsible for; oconsidering material changes to global remuneration practices and
variable incentive plans, oreviewing variable incentive plans in respect of conflicts of interest and / or potential for excessive
risk taking and recommending changes, orecommending changes, amendments and revisions to existing remuneration
mechanisms to comply with regulatory requirements, odetermining the list of identified MRT’ s and reviewing remuneration
decisions for this group, odetermining adjustments to individual and / or team remuneration following an assessment of material
risk events, conduct and behaviours, and oapproving any special remuneration arrangements for individuals and / or teams. 1.
S5References ® FCA: AIFM Remuneration Code (SYSC 19B) @ CSSF: Luxembourg law of 12 July 2013 on alternative
investment fund managers (the “ AIFM Law ) @ CSSF: ESMA Guidelines on sound remuneration policies under AIFMD
(ESMA 2016 /411) @ FCA: UCITS Remuneration Code (SYSC 19E) e CSSF: Luxembourg Law of 17 December 2010 on
undertakings for collective investment (the “ UCITS Law ) @ CSSF: ESMA Guidelines on sound remuneration policies under
the UCITS Directive (ESMA 2016 /411) Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (MiFID) @ FCA: MiFID II Remuneration
and performance management of sales staff (SYSC 19F) e CSSF: ESMA Markets in Financial Instruments (MiFID II)-
Directive 2014 / 65 / EU @ CSSF: ESMA MiFID II Delegated Regulation 2017 / 593 e CSSF: Article 1 of Grand Ducal law of
30 May 2018, which incorporates MiFID II Delegated Regulation 2017 / 593 into Luxembourg law FCA MiFIDPRU
Remuneration Code (SYSC 19G) CSSF Commission Recommendation of 30 April 2009 on remuneration policies in the
financial services sector (2009 /384 / EC) 1. 6Review Schedule The Global Remuneration Policy Statement is reviewed at least
once a year and whenever changes in regulations require it. This review takes into consideration the risk profile (s) of individual
funds, and the business as a whole, in order to grant employee remuneration that is in line with the risk profile of the funds we
manage. 1. 7Escalation Requirements You should report any known or suspected violations of this policy to Risk and
Compliance or senior management. You can also report violations via the incident management form within the governance,
risk management and compliance system (GRC / BWise). If you feel uncomfortable using any of these avenues, you can also
anonymously report violations to our independent hotline provider via the web at janushenderson. ethicspoint. com or telephone
at 844. 765. 6701 (US), 0808. 234. 9715 (UK), or AT & T Direct Access Code 844. 765. 6701 (Other). Although the Company
will not retaliate against anyone for making a good faith report, failure to report violations may lead to appropriate disciplinary
action. Dehnltlons e Variable Incentive Awards: Varlable pay includes Bonus (including any guarantee) and ;7 5S—Menthly
ards;-Performance Fees @ Pre- Incentive Operating Income: net
operating income, excluswe of passive income and incentive costs, and calculated before non- operating interest and taxes ®
Material Risk Takers: Employees whose professional activities have a material impact on the risk profile (s), of the parts of the
Group covered by the MIFIDPRU, AIFMD, & UCITS Remuneration Codes Exhibit+8-19 .
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Termination Transactions 11 3. 7 Policy Breaches 11 3. 8 Further Information 11 1. 1Purpose This Share Trading Policy
( PSY-this “ Policy ” ) AWARD-AGREEMENT-outlines your responsibilities with respect to your Transactions in the
securities of Janus Henderson Group plc ( including its subsidiaries, “ JHG ” or the “ Company ) grants-and the handling
of material non- public information about JHG. JHG has adopted this Policy to <GRANTEE>-promote compliance with
all applicable securities laws that prohibit persons who are aware of material non- public information about JHG from: (
i) trading in any securities issued by JHG; or (ii) providing material non- public information to the-other persons who
may trade on the basis of that information. Janus Henderson Group plc has issued common stock that is publicly traded
on the New York Stock Exchange. As a Director, employee, or contractor of JHG, all of your trades in common stock
and any other securities issued by Janus Henderson Group plc ( * Grantee-JHG Securities ), effeetive-as well as trades by
your Related Persons, are monitored and must be disclosed and pre- cleared in accordance with this Policy. You must
comply with all of <BATFE>the principles and procedures in this Policy as your failure to do so may result in serious
civil and criminal penalties for you and your Related Persons as well as adverse consequences for JHG. Capitalised terms
have the definitions given to the-them in Section 2 of this Policy. 1. 2Policy Statement You must: e disclose to the
Compliance Department all accounts in which you or your Related Persons hold JHG Securities; ® request pre-
clearance before you or your Related Persons trade in JHG Securities; and e only trade JHG Securities during a
Window Period. You must not engage in: ® Transactions in JHG Securities outside of a Window Period if you are a




Covered Person; ® Transactions in JHG Securities (or encourage others to do so) while in possession of ** GrantDate
material non- public information ” (defined in Section 1. 3 of this Policy ) ; or ® Transactions in JHG Securities that are
speculative or short- term in nature , including hedging transactions, publicly- traded options, and short sales. For
additional information on prohibited Transactions in JHG Securities, please refer to Section 3. 3 of this Policy. 1.
3Definition of Material, Non- Public Information Material Information. Information is considered *“ material ” if
deferredineentive-reasonable person would consider it important in making their decision to buy, sell, or hold securities.
Either good news or bad news may be material. There is no bright- line standard for assessing materiality; rather,
materiality is based on all of the facts and circumstances, and is often evaluated by enforcement authorities with the
benefit of hindsight. While it is not possible to define all categories of material information, some examples of
information that could be regarded as material are: » Projections of future earnings or losses, or other earnings
guidance; * Significant corporate transactions, such as mergers, acquisitions, and purchases or sales of significant assets;
* Impairments of assets or additions to reserves for contingent liabilities; * Changes in JHG’ s credit ratings or dividend
policy; * New equity or debt offerings or other significant financing transactions; * Implementation, suspension, or
termination of a repurchase program for JHG Securities; * Changes in executive management or certain portfolio
management personnel; * A change in auditors or notification that the auditor’ s reports may no longer be relied upon; *
Important business developments, including material developments related to JHG’ s clients or assets under
management; * Developments in significant litigation or regulatory actions; * A significant data security breach or other
cybersecurity incident; * Impending bankruptcy or the existence of severe liquidity problems; and * The imposition of a
special blackout on trading in JHG Securities or the securities of another company. When in doubt as to the materiality
of information, do not trade and consult with the Legal Department. When Information is Considered Public.
Information is “ non- public ” until it has been broadly disclosed to the market (such as by press release or a public filing
with an exchange or market regulator) and the investing public has had time to fully absorb the information. As a
general rule, information should not be considered fully absorbed by the marketplace until the business day after the
day on which the information is released. You must not communicate material non- public information to anyone else at
any time except where such disclosure is made in accordance with JHG’ s policies regarding the authorized external
disclosure of such information. 1. 4Persons Subject to this Policy This Policy applies to all Directors, employees, and
contractors of JHG and their Related Persons (collectively, “ Covered Persons ). Different trading restrictions and
procedures apply depending on whether you are classified as a Corporate Insider or a Restricted Person. These terms
are defined in Section 2 of this Policy. If you are in doubt about your classification, please contact the Compliance
Department. 1. SRoles and Responsibilities Although the Compliance Department monitors trading in JHG Securities
by Covered Persons and compliance with this Policy, it is your personal responsibility to comply with this Policy and
with all applicable insider trading laws. Accordingly, you should make sure your family and household members are
award-aware in-of the need to confer with you before the-they trade in JHG Securities, and you should treat all such
Transactions for the purposes of this Policy and applicable securities laws concerning trading while in possession of
material non- public information as if the Transactions were for your own account. In all cases, the responsibility for
determining whether an individual is in possession of material non- public information rests with that individual, and
any action on the part of JHG or any other employee pursuant to this Policy (or otherwise) does not in any way
constitute legal advice or insulate an individual from liability under applicable securities laws. The General Counsel (or,
in his or her absence, the Chief Financial Officer or the Chief Risk Officer) is authorised to exercise any discretion
expressly permitted by this Policy. Either the Chief Financial Officer or the General Counsel may classify Covered
Persons as a “ Corporate Insider ” or approve changes in any classifications made under this Policy. 1. 6Compliance
with Insider Trading Laws This Policy is intended to assist you in complying with the insider trading and other laws and
regulations applicable to Transactions in publicly traded securities in the United States, where JHG Securities are
currently listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Further: e any pre- clearance to trade under this Policy is
not an endorsement of the proposed trade, and you are individually responsible for your investment decisions and your
compliance with the insider trading laws and regulations that apply to you personally; e before you or your Related
Persons trade in JHG Securities you should consider carefully whether you are in possession of any material non- public
information that might preclude you from trading at that time and, if you are in any doubt, you should not trade; e in
seeking pre- clearance to trade in JHG Securities you are required to certify that you are not in possession of any
material non- public information that might preclude you from trading at that time; and e if you do come into
possession of material non- public information after receiving pre- clearance to trade, you must not trade despite having
received that pre- clearance. Compliance with this Policy will not necessarily be a defense under insider trading or other
similar laws, whether in the United States or elsewhere. 1. 7Escalation Procedures You are expected and are strongly
encouraged to report any known or suspected violations of this Policy internally. You can report violations via the
incident management within the governance, risk management, and compliance system. Alternatively, you may
report violations directly to your manager, the Chief Risk Officer, or the General Counsel. If you feel uncomfortable
using any of performanee-these avenues, you can also anonymously report violations to our independent hotline provider
via the web at https: // janushenderson. ethicspoint. com / or telephone at 844 - based-Share-Units-765- 6701 ( US), 0808-
234- 9715 (UK) or 1- 844- 765- 6701 ( the-Other ). Although JHG will not retaliate against anyone for making a good
faith report, failure to report violations may lead to appropriate disciplinary action. Controlled EntitiesEntities that a
Covered Person influences or controls, including any corporations, partnerships, or trusts. Corporate InsiderAll Section
16 Insiders, members of the Executive Committee, members of the Strategic Leadership Team, members of the Finance
Department, and such other Covered Persons designated by the Chief Financial Officer or General Counsel as a



Corporate Insider from time to time. Covered PersonAll Directors, employees, and contractors of JHG and their Related
Persons. Designated ApproverThose persons set out in Section 3. 2. 5 of this Policy. DirectorEach member of the Janus
Henderson Group plc Board of Directors. Executive CommitteeThose employees appointed to the Executive Committee
of JHG from time to time. Executive OfficerAny employee designated by the Board as an “ executive officer BYPPSY
Aoward- d bed-belovw stubjeetto-thetermsand-conditions—setforth i ts
Agreement>)-accordance with SEC Rule 3b- 7 under the Exchange Act. JHG’ s Executive Officers will be named in
2622-Annual Report on Form 10- K and / or Proxy Statement. Exchange ActThe Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended. Family MembersIncludes (1) family members who reside in the same household as the Covered
Person (including such person’ s spouse or domestic partner, children, children away at college, stepchildren,
grandchildren, parents, stepparents, grandparents, siblings, and in- laws), (2) anyone else who lives in the Covered
Person’ s household, and (3) family members who do not live in the Covered Person’ s household but whose Transactions
in JHG Securities are directed by the Covered Person or are subject to their influence or control, such as parents or
children who consult with the Covered Person before they trade in JHG Securities. JHG SecuritiesAny JHG securities,
including equity securities, debt securities, options over or rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities, and other
derivatives or other financial instruments linked to JHG equity or debt securities (e. g., employee stock awards).
Restricted PersonAny Covered Person not classified as a Corporate Insider (as defined above). Related PersonThe
Family Members and Controlled Entities of a Covered Person. SECThe U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission.
Section 16 InsidersJHG’ s Directors, Executive Officers, and Chief Accounting Officer. TransactionsThis Policy applies
to transactions in common stock, DPeferred-preferred stock, bonds and other debt securities, options to purchase common
stock, convertible debentures and warrants, as well as derivative securities whether or not issued by JHG, such as
exchange- traded put or call options or swaps relating to JHG’ s securities. Transactions subject to this Policy also
include gifts of JHG securities, which may include gifts to trusts for estate planning purposes, as well as donations to a
charitable organization. See Section 3. 3 (Additional Restrictions) and Section 3. 6 (Post- Termination Transactions) for
further discussion of certain types of securities and transactions. Window PeriodThe period generally commencing on
the second full trading day following the announcement of JHG’ s quarterly earnings and (i) for Corporate Insiders,
closing on the 15th of the last month of each calendar quarter and (ii) for all other Restricted Persons, closing on the last
day of each calendar quarter. Covered Persons will generally be permitted to trade in JHG Securities only during the
Window Period. However, JHG may reduce or close the Window Period for all or individual Covered Persons at any
time and will communicate any ad hoc restrictions on trading via the JHG intranet or by email where relevant.
Additional Procedures 3. 1Account Disclosures You must disclose to the Compliance Department all brokerage accounts
in which you or your Related Persons hold JHG Securities. Account disclosure procedures are outlined in the Personal
Account Dealing Policy (https: // portal. myjonline. com / SharedSpace / Policies / Personal % 20Code % 20of %
20Ethics. pdf #). 3. 2Pre- Clearance 3. 2. 1 Trading During the Window Period You may only request pre- clearance to
trade in JHG Securities during the Window Period. The pre- clearance process applicable to you depends on whether
you are classified as a Restricted Person or a Corporate Insider. These terms are defined in Section 2 of this Policy. If
you are in doubt about your classification, please contact the Compliance Department. From time to time, an event may
occur that is material to JHG and is known by only a few Directors, Executive Officers and / or employees. The existence
of an event- specific blackout will not be announced. If, however, a Covered Person requests permission to trade in JHG
Securities during an event- specific blackout, the General Counsel (or his or her designee) will inform the requesting
person of the existence of a blackout period, without disclosing the reason for the blackout. Any person made aware of
the existence of an event- specific blackout should not disclose the existence of the blackout to any other person. 3. 2. 2
Restricted Persons and Their Related Persons Any trading in JHG Securities by or on behalf of a Restricted Person or
their Related Persons must be pre- cleared via MyComplianceOffice prior to trading in JHG Securities. 3. 2. 3 Awards
and Vesting Under Stock- Based Employee Plan-or Saving Schemes Typically , new awards and vesting of
existing awards under stock- based employee incentive or saving schemes will not require pre- clearance where no
decision to deal in JHG Securities is being made by the employee at the time of the award or vesting. After an employee' s
awards have vested, any decisions made by the employee to sell or exercise those JHG Securities (including decisions to
sell to cover tax liabilities) will require pre- clearance. 3. 2. 4 Corporate Insiders and Their Related Persons Any trading
in JHG Securities by or on behalf of a Corporate Insider or their Related Persons must be pre- cleared as follows prior
to trading in JHG Securities: Approval procedure for JHG Board of Directors (including the Chief Executive Officer) 1.
Pre- clearance request submitted by email to your Designated Approver (specified in Section 3. 2. 5). 2. Pre- clearance
request approved / rejected by the Designated Approver by reply email to you and the Head of Corporate Legal.
Important note: Proposed trades by the Chief Executive Officer must be entered into MyComplianceOffice prior to
trading in JHG Securities. The Compliance Department will then route the request via email to the relevant Designated
Approver. Once approved or denied, the Compliance Department will notify the CEO via MyComplianceOffice of the
outcome of their request. 3. If approved, you may execute the approved trade by the close of the next business day after
you receive approval and email a trade confirmation to the (1) General Counsel and (2) Head of Corporate Legal by the
end of the next business day after the trade. Approval procedure for Executive Officers, Chief Accounting Officer,
Executive Committee, and other Corporate Insidersl1. Pre- clearance request must be entered into MyComplianceOffice.
The Compliance Department will then route the request via email to the relevant Designated Approver (specified in
Section 3. 2. 5 below). 2. Pre- clearance request approved / rejected by the Designated Approver. The Compliance
Department will notify the requestor via MyComplianceOffice of the outcome of their request. 3. If approved, you may
execute the approved trade by the close of the next business day after you receive approval. You must also submit your




trade confirmation via MyComplianceOffice by the end of the next business day after the trade. 3. 2. S Designated
Approvers Corporate InsiderDesignated ApproverNon- Executive DirectorGeneral Counsel (or, in his or her absence,
the Chief Financial Officer) Executive Officers, Chief Accounting Officer, and members of the Executive CommitteeAll
except the General Counsel — General Counsel (or, in his or her absence, the Chief Financial Officer) General Counsel —
Chief Financial Officer (or, in his or her absence, the Chief Executive Officer) Important note: Proposed trades must be
entered into MyComplianceOffice prior to trading in JHG Securities. Compliance will then route the request via email
to the relevant Designated Approver. Once approved or denied, the Compliance Department will notify the requestor via
MyComplianceOffice of the outcome of their request. Members of the Finance Department (other than the Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer) Chief Financial Officer (or, in his or her absence, the Chief Accounting
Officer or General Counsel) Important note: Proposed trades must be entered into MyComplianceOffice prior to
trading in JHG Securities. Compliance will then route the request via email to the relevant Designated Approver. Once
approved or denied, the Compliance Department will notify the requestor via MyComplianceOffice of the outcome of
their request. 3. 2. 6 Approvals / Denials Any request to deal in JHG Securities may be denied at amended-or-amended-and
restated-from-time-to-time-(the discretion of “-CompanyPlan;-the attached-Appendiees{Designated Approver, including if
any);-and-any-it raises insider trading concerns or other concerns under applicable laws and regulations, to avoid the
appearance of insider trading and the significant reputational damage that may cause, or due to other factors such as the
existence of certain information or such other circumstances that the Designated Approver, in their absolute discretion,
considers relevant. Note that: e approval to trade can be withdrawn if new information comes to light or there is a
change in circumstances; e the decision to refuse pre- clearance is final and binding on the person seeking the pre-
clearance; and e if your request is denied, you must keep that information confidential and not disclose it to anyone.
You will usually be notified of approval or denial within two (2) business days of your request. Any approval given will
only be valid for two (2) business days. If you do not trade within the time allowed and still wish to do so, then you must
reapply for pre- clearance. 3. 3Additional Restrictions 3. 3. 1 No Hedging or Use of Derivatives You are prohibited from
entering into hedging Transactions designed to offset or reduce the risk of price fluctuations in JHG Securities or any
other Transactions that include the use of derivatives (including contracts for difference any-appleableseeuritiestaws)-,
governmentregtlations-spread betting . stoelk-prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars, or exchange

funds) hsﬁﬁg—reqtﬁremeﬁts—erGernp&ny-pehetes—m relatlon effeet—freﬂa—t-nﬁe—lo JHG Securltles t—ﬂﬁe-apphe&b-}e—te—the—BI-P—P-S-U
B e G&pﬁa-l—rzed—terms—used—btrt% 2 No

Pubhcly Traded Optlons You may not deﬁ-ﬁed-trade in optlons, warrants, puts this-DIP-Award-Agreement-have-the-meaning
speetfiednrthe-CompanyPlan-and #calls, or similar instruments on JHG Securities in-the-attached-Appendiees(ifany)-.

Given The-CompanyPlanand-the method-relatively short term of aceepting-the DIP-PSU-Aswward-publicly traded options,
Transactions in options may create be-aeeessed-at-the site-appearance that a Covered Person is trading based on whieh-the

Gr&ﬁtee—&eeesses—materlal non- pubhc information fe}ated-te—the—Gr&ﬁtee—and focus a Covered Person s attentlon on short-

term d-rsabﬁﬁy—beﬁeﬁt-p-}aﬂ—ob]ectlves 3.3.3No Short Sales You may not engage in short sales of JHG Securltles A short
sale has occurred if the seller (i) does not own the securities sold or (ii) does own the securities sold but does not deliver
them within 20 days or place them in the mail within five (5) days of the sale. Short sales may reduce a seller’ s incentive
to seek to improve JHG’ s performance and often have the potential to signal to the market that the seller lacks
confidence in JHG’ s prospects. In addition . requiring-medieal-eertifteation-Section 16 (c) of the Exchange Act prohibits
Section 16 Insiders from engaging in short sales of JHG Securities. 3. 3. 4 No Margin Accounts or Pledges Because a
margin sale or foreclosure sale may occur at a time when the pledgor is aware of material non- public information or
otherwise is not permitted to trade in JHG Securities, you may not hold JHG Securltles ina margm account or otherw1se
pledge JHG Securities as collateral for a loan. 3. 3. 5 Standing de ph
inrdeath-orexpeeted-totast-for—- or Limit Orders Standing and limit orders a—eeﬂtmﬂeﬁs—peﬂed—ef—net—}ess—ﬂaaﬂ—twe}ve—(
except standing and limit orders under approved Rule 10b5- 1 Plans +2)-menths—e—tfthe-Grantee-has-a-Termination-of




add-rt—teﬁ—rn—aeeerelanee—wrth—Sutmn .6 below 2—€g—) create helghtened risks and—Seeﬁen—4—2—e-Pt-he—Gempany—P—l&n—t-he—P—l&n
Committee-may-exereise-diseretion-to-aceelerate-or-for insider trading violations similar waive-any-or-at-of the-terms-and
eonditions-appheable-to the DIPRSH-Award-ormake-adjustmentsto-use of margin accounts. There is no control over the
Performanee-Criteria-timing of purchases or sales that result from standlng instructions the—P-lan—Gemmrttee—deems—equrtab-le
irrespeetofany-eorporate-transactiorrin-order—to preven
P—S-Uﬁ%ward,—melud-mg,—wrtheut—luﬁrt&ﬁeﬁ—upeﬁ—a mer-ger—broker

sha-H—have—nerrrg-l‘rts—as—a—sl‘rareheldeﬁelel-y—ds a result efthe broker could execute a Transactlon when a dlrector, ofﬁcer or
the-other grant-employee is in possession of the-Share-Units:-provided;-material non- public information. JHG therefore
discourages placing standing or limit orders on JHG Securities. If a person subject to this Policy determines that ;te-the
they extent-dividends-must use a standing order or limit order, the order should expire in conjunction with their trade
pre- clearance approval window (i. e., two (2) business days). 3. 3. 6 No Communication of Material, Non- Public
Information You arc paid-prohibited from communicating material en-non Shares—- public information to persons within
JHG whose jobs do not require them to have that information, or to anyone else outside of JHG, including family,
friends, business associates, investors, contractors, and consultants, at any tlme except where such dlsclosure d-rﬁdeﬁds
have-areeord-date-that-is made in accordance on-e b 6 :
Gr&ﬂtee—shal-l-be-ered-rted-\\thHG' tratentsasifthe-Grantee hrad-been

empleymeﬂ-t—wrﬂa—pohcles regardlng lhc authorlzed external dlsclosure Company-and-any-Subsidiary-and-for-a-pertod-of
twelve-months-after-the-date-such information. 3. 3. 7 Material on-Non whieh-- Public Information of the-Other Grantee™s

employmentwith-the-Company-Companies terminates-{the-“TFerminationDate)-In addition to restricting trading in JHG

Securities, this Pohcy also requlres that no D1rector, Executlve Ofﬁcer, Executive Committee member, for— or other

employee any »f JHG (or any other person designated as
subject to this Pohcy) who 'ﬁ'ﬂ‘ﬁ-lll the course of worklng erfor JHG learns of materlal non- public 1nformatlon about a
compam with —-h o v 0 v way—Fre or-any-Stb

1nclud1ng a client

an—y—d-rreeter,—emp-leyee—m eeﬂsu-l-t&ﬁt—vendor 0[ t-he—JHG may trade in that €ernpan-y—company er&ny—sueh—Su-bsrd-xary—wﬁh
omm-the Rtee-wo s employment-with-securities until the

1nformat10n becomes pubhc or is no longer materlal 3 4Exchange Act Section 16 Requirements Section 16 of the
Exchange Act requlres Sectlon 16 Insiders to disgorge to the Company er-any profit realized sueh-Subsidtary—ii—soliett;

from any Gustemer—e%t-he—@empany—purchase and sale, or any sale and purchase




provided-underthe DIP-PSH-Award-during-the-six- month period , regardless immediately-following-the-Grantee’s—
separation-from-serviee(within-the-meaninig-of the intention of such Scction 469A-ef16 Insider when the— he Cedeyshalt
instead-be-patd-on-or she entered into the Transactions, subject to certain exceptions. Section 16 also requires Section 16
Insiders to file with the SEC certain information regarding the-their first-beneficial ownership of JHG Securities.
Generally, Section 16 Insiders must report any change in their direct or indirect interest in JHG Securities to the SEC no
later than the end of the second (2nd) business day after-following the date-day on which the change occurred. The Legal
Department will assist Section 16 Insiders in preparing and filing Section 16 reports, but each individual Section 16
Insider is responsible for the timing and contents of his or her reports. 3. SRule 10b5- 1 Trading Plans Rule 10b5- 1
under the Exchange Act provides an affirmative defense from insider trading liability under Rule 10b- 5. To be eligible
to rely on this defense, the Transactions in JHG Securities must occur pursuant to a pre- arranged written trading plan



that complies with the requirements of Rule 10bS- 1 (a “ 10b5- 1 Plan *). If the plan meets the requirements of Rule 10b5-
1 (including specified waiting periods and limitations on multiple overlapping plans and single trade plans), JHG
Securities may be purchased or sold without regard to certain insider trading restrictions. Section 16 Insiders should be
aware that JHG is six-menths-required to make quarterly public disclosures regarding all 10b5- 1 Plans entered into,
amended or terminated by Section 16 Insiders and to include the material terms of such plans, other than pricing
information. The following requirements apply to all 10b5- 1 Plans: e Prior Approval. Anyone subject to this Policy who

wishes to enter into a 10b5- 1 Plan must submit the Grantee™s—separation-fromserviee>-10b5- 1 Plan to the General
Counsel and the Head of Corporate Legal or-for approval ée&ﬂa—rf—e&ﬁieﬁ—e%ﬁeeh%nyﬂte&ee—te—be—gﬁfe&te—fhe
Gemp&n—y—shal—l—b&&édfessed-te—the—Geﬁﬂa&n-y—al least five S ey

>
Retpa




for any amcndment or early termmatlon of an effectlve 10b5 1 Plan o Entry 1nt0 a Plan. A Dlrector or employee may
enter into a 10b5- 1 Plan only at a time when he or she is not in possession of material non- public information regarding
JHG or its securities and only during a Window Period and at a time when he or she is not otherwise subject to a
blackout period. Each 10b5- 1 Plan must include a representation that, as of the date of adoption of the plan, the
individual is not aware of any material non- public information about JHG or its securities, and that the plan is being
adopted in good faith and not as a part of a plan or scheme to evade the prohibitions of Rule 10b5- 1. ® Waiting Period.
The waiting periods from the time a 10b5- 1 Plan is adopted until the time of the first trade under the plan must comply
with requirements of Rule 10b5- 1. Under Rule 10b5- 1, plans established by Section 16 Insiders must include a waiting
period consisting of the later of (i) 90 days after the adoption of the plan, or (ii) the period ending two business days
following the disclosure of the Company’ s financial results in a Form 10- Q or Form 10- K for the completed fiscal
quarter in which the plan was adopted that discloses the Company’ s financial results ( +but in any event, this waiting
period is subject to a maximum of 120 days after adoption of the plan ) . For all other individuals, the waiting period
must be at least 30 days from adoption of the plan. @ Duration. Directors and employees are encouraged to design plans
with clear instructions that contemplate spreading smaller trades over a longer period of time as opposed to a small
number of large trades. ¢ Multiple Plans. Generally speaking, an individual entering into a 10bS- 1 Plan may have only
one 10b5- 1 Plan in place at any time. An exception to this restriction permits an individual to enter into one later-
commencing plan so that the waiting period of the later plan can begin to run while an existing plan is in place. However,
if the individual terminates the first plan early, then the exception docs not adversety-affeet-apply and a full waiting period
from the rights-time of such termination must occur before Transactions can begin under the Grantee-later- commencing
plan. Lastly . individuals may have an additional plan providing only erfor (it)-is-eligible sell- to- cover Transactions,

where the plan provides for sales of securities as are nccessary er-advisable{as-determined-by-the-Committee)-to earry-out
satlsfy tax w1thhold1ng obhgatlons ar1s1ng excluslvely from the pﬂrpese—vestmg of t-he—BH’—P—S-U—Aw&rd—as—d compensatory

asseeiated—w{th—a—greﬁp—layefﬁe-ﬁnwlc than one plan person;-in wh-teh—ease—rt—any 12- month perlod that is de51gned to 45
i --- effect date-of-a single Transaction. Single Transaction plans are generally discouraged. ®

days)-folowing the-effeetive-

Trading Suspension. The 10b5- 1 Plan must permit the Ferminattonrof-Affiliatton—Company to suspend trading under the
10b5- 1 Plan for any individual who holds shares subject to and-- an underwriting lockup for the duration of such lockup.
o Amendments. Amendments to 10b5- 1 Plans will be permitted only at a time: (i) when the Director or employee is not
revoking-in possession of material non- public information and (ii) during a Window Period and when the-- he release

wﬁhrn—t-he—t-rme—or she is not 0therw1se subject toa blackout period fer—revee&&efrset—fei%ﬁn—t-he%lease)—&nd—éb)—eeﬁrf}&ﬂg—te

exeeutive-offieer-of lhc purchase or sale of securltles w1ll Gemp&rryﬂ%PPEN-BHGGFQRFEl:PU-RE—GMAEUS%%N-B—GW-
BACKThe BIPRPSU-Award-shall-be subject to the ferfeitare-and-elaw-same waiting periods as would be applicable to a new



Amountandit—if the-Grantee-eeases-at any time upon advance approval of the General Counsel. However, termmatlng a
10b5- 1 Plan is strongly discouraged because it may call into question whether the plan was entered into and operated in
good faith and not as part of a plan or scheme to evade the insider trading rules, which could affect the availability of the
Rule 10bS- 1 affirmative defense. ® Qutside Trades. Adoption of a 10bS- 1 Plan does not preclude trading outside of the



plan that otherwise is in accordance with this Policy. However, Directors and employees should be cognizant of the fact
that the Rule 10b5- 1 affirmative defense will not apply to such trades outside a partieipant-10bS- 1 Plan. In addition,
under Rule 10bS- 1, the Director or employee may not have further influence over whether, when, or how the trades
under the plan are made once the plan is put in place, and, therefore, their trading outside of the plan must not have
direct or indirect influence on the trading instructions under the plan. e Section 16. Section 16 Insiders should note that
the approval or adoption of a 10b5- 1 Plan in no way reduces or eliminates such person’ s obligations under Section 16 of
the Exchange Act, including such person’ s disclosure and short- swing trading liabilities thereunder. If any questions
arise, such person should consult with their own counsel in implementing a 10bS- 1 Plan. In addition, each Section 16
Insider must agree to cooperate with the Company in any reporting of the 10b5- 1 Plan and+in the Company’ s SEC
filings. 3. 6Post- Termination Transactions This Policy continues to apply to Transactions in JHG Securities even after a
person’ s service with JHG is terminated. If a person is in possession of material non- public information when his or her
service terminates, that individual may not trade in JHG Securities until that information has become public or is no
longer material. Questions or concerns on whether any continuing non- public information remains material should be
directed to other—-- the equity-award-plan-operated-General Counsel or the Head of Corporate Legal. 3. 7Policy Breaches
Failure to adhere to any of the requirements outlined above may result in a breach of this Policy. Breaches are taken
very seriously by JHG. Any potential violation the-Compatny;-or-the-number-of Shares-whieh-the provisions of the Policy
will be investigated by the Legal and Compliance Departments or, if necessary, the Ethics and Conflicts Committee. If a
determination is made that a violation has occurred, sanctions may be transferred-imposed. Sanctions may include, but
are not limited to, one or more of the following: A warning letter, profit surrender, personal trading ban, and
termination of employment or referral to civil or criminal authorities. Material violations will be reported promptly to
the Board of Dlrectors 3. 8Further Informatlon If you have any questlons or need further 1nf0rmat10n on er—fel-}ewmg

t-he—Gfeﬂp—t-heﬁ— the prlnclples ; ] . oo
baek;-and-for-— or procedures set out in thlS Pohcy, please contact t-hese» the purpeses—Legal Department or the
Compliance Department €la d A o the

. Exhibit 21. 1 List of Subsidiaries The following is a list of subsidiaries included in our Consohddted financial statements and
the state or country of incorporation of each: OrganizationPercentage of ownershipState or other jurisdiction of
ownershipAlphagen Capital LimitedUK Gartmore Investment EimitedkcGartmeretnvestment-Management
leltedUKGdrtmme Sel\lLGS leltedJeIsey ((hannel lsldnds) HendeLsonAl-teﬂaaﬁve—I-nvestrﬂeﬁt—Adﬁser

Funds leltedJeIsey ((hmnel lsldnds) Henderson Equity Partners Jelsey ((JP) leltedJeIsey ((hmnel Islands) HendeIson

Equity Partners LimitedUKHenderson Global Greup-EimitedirelandHendersen-Global-Investors ( Brand-Managementy

SarfbuxembourgHenderson-GlobalHnvestorsHoldings) LimitedUKHenderson GlebaHnvestors-(International- Holdingsy
-BWet-her}&ﬂésHeﬂéefseﬂ—Clobdl Investms Asset Mdmmelnent leltedUKHendeIsonG}eba-l—}fwesters—Geﬁeva—Fm&ﬂee

He}dmgs—Gretrp—I:rmrted-U-IG-Ieﬁderseﬁ—Holdmg,s leltedUKHenderson Umt Trusts J:x-m-rted-U-IéI—I—E—P—(GP)—leltedUKHGl
(Investments) HimitedKHGHAsset Management-Greoup-Limited UKHGP2 EimitedbKHPENominees-Limited UK Janus
Henderson Administration UK LimitedUKJanus Henderson Advisers US LLCDelawareJanus Henderson Distributors US
LLCDelawareJanus Henderson Cayman Islands (Holdings) LLCUKJanus Henderson Emerging Markets Private
Investments LimitedUnited Arab EmlratesJ anus Henderson Fund Manaoement UK LimitedUKJanus Henderson Indices

LLCDelawareJanus s-Henderson Investors (Australia) Funds
Management LmntedAustrahaJdnus Henderson Investms (Austrdlld) lnstltutlonal Funds Management Limited AustraliaJanus
Henderson Investors (Australia) LimitedAustraliaJanus Henderson Investors (Hong Kong) LimitedHong KongJanus Henderson
Investors (Japan) LimitedJapanJanus Henderson Investors (Jersey) LimitedUKJanus Henderson Investors (Schweiz)
AGSwitzerlandJanus Henderson Investors (Singapore) LimitedSingaporeJanus Henderson Investors Europe
SALuxembourgJanus Henderson Investors International LimitedUKJanus Henderson Investors Taiwan LimitedTaiwanJanus
Henderson Investors UK LimitedUKJanus Henderson Investors US (Holdings) LLCNevadaJanus Henderson Investors US
LLCDelawareJanus Henderson Jersey (Holdings) LimitedUKJanus Henderson Management US CorporationDelawareJanus
Henderson Secretarial Services LimitedUKJanus Henderson Services US LLCDelawareJanus Henderson UK (Holdings)
leltedUKJanus Henderson usS (Holdmos) lm Delavx areJanus Henderson US (Holdings) LLCNevadaKapstream

datar o g nEimtted am-Capital Pty -I:nﬂrtedﬁustrahaNew—leltedAustrahaTabula
-St&h*sset—Holdlngs leltedUKTabula Investment Management {Bermued § AtrdaiNe
Group-LimitedUKUKFP (Asia) Nominees LimitedBritish Virgin {s-}&ﬁds%LS—IslandsVlctory Park Capltal Adv1s0rs
LLClIllinoisVictory Park Management LLCIllinoisVS Holdings Inc. Delaware Interests in joint ventures Privacore
G&pﬁa-l@e-l-er&de—Capltal LLCDelaware Certain subsidiaries which, if considered as a single subsidiary, would not constitute
a" significant subsidiary" as defined in Regulation S- X, have been omitted. Exhibit 23. 1 CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration
Statements on Form S- 3-8 ( Ne-Nos . 333- 2527H4-218365, 333- 23668S and 333- 265647 ) and Form S- 84 ( Nes— No . 333-
283305 248365;333-236685-and-333-265647-) of Janus Henderson Group plc of our report dated February 27, 2624-2025
relating to the financial statements and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form
10- K. / s / PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP Denver, CO February 27, 2624-2025 Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION I, Ali Dibadj,
certify that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of Janus Henderson Group plc; 2. Based on my knowledge, this




report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report; 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report; 4. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal controls over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: a) Designed such
disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; b) Designed such internal control over
financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; ¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s
disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and d) Disclosed in this report any
change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant” s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and 5. The registrant’ s other certifying officer and
I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): a) All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting that are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and b) Any
fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’ s
internal control over financial reporting. Date: February 27, 2624-2025 / s / ALI DIBADJ Ali Dibadj Chief Executive Officer A
signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to Janus Henderson Group plc and will be
retained by Janus Henderson Group plc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
Exhibit 31. 2 I, Roger Thompson, certify that: Date: February 27, 2624-2025 / s / ROGER THOMPSON Roger Thompson Chief
Financial Officer A signed original of this written statement required by Section 302 has been provided to Janus Henderson
Group plc and will be retained by Janus Henderson Group plc and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request. Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES- OXLEY ACT OF 2002 In connection with the annual report of Janus Henderson
Group plc (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), I, Ali Dibadj, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,
pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) The
Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) The
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of
the Company. / s/ ALI DIBADJ Ali Dibadj Chief Executive Officer A signed original of this written statement required by
Section 906 has been provided to Janus Henderson Group plc and will be retained by Janus Henderson Group plc and furnished
to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. Exhibit 32. 2 In connection with the annual report of Janus
Henderson Group plc (the “ Company ) on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023-2024 , as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “ Report ), I, Roger Thompson, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act 0f 2002,
that: / s / ROGER THOMPSON Roger Thompson Chief Financial Officer Date: February 27, 2624-2025 Eschibit 97—+

A\ () 2 A dante A I 0 ha o a1£a a1 101







